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Preface

Responsibility for the Health and Safety Commission
(H5C) and the Health and Safery Executive (H5E)
transferred to the Department for Work and Pensions
(WP} on 24 July 2002, From thar dare the Commission
reports to the Secretary of Stare for Work and Pensions,
and to other Secretaries of State for the administration of
the Health and Safery ar Work etc Act 1974 (HSW Acr)
throughout Great Britain.

From May 2003, the Rt Hon David Blunkerr MP is the
Secretary of Stare for Work and Pensions. Lord Philip
Hunt of Kings Heath OBE is the DWP Parliamentary
Under Secretary (Lords) with responsibility for
occupational health and safery. The previous Secretary of
State for Work and Pensions was the Rt Hon Alan Johnson
MP and the Minister of State for Work was the Bt Hon
Jane Kennedy MP

Departmental responsibility for HSC/E previously lay with
the Department for Transport, Local Government and the
Regions, and before thar (until June 2001) with the
Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions.

The HSW Acr established HSC and HSE. H5C's primary
functions include making arrangements to secure the
health, safety and welfare of people ar work and protecting
the public against risks to their health and safery from
work activities. The functions include proposing new laws
and standards, conducting research and providing
mformarion and advice. H5SE advises and assists HSC and
rogether with local authoritics (LAs) has day-to-day
responsibility for enforcing health and safery law,
investigating accidents, licensing and approving standards,
in particular hazardous areas, and commissioning research.

Commission’s duties
The Commission's statutory duties include:

[ ] encouraging other people 1o secure safe and healthy
working conditions;

W arranging for research and traiming to be carried our
and encouraging others to undertake research and
Iraining;

m  arranging for an advisory and information service for
stakeholders;

m  submiring proposals for regulations to ministers;

m  paying to the Exccutive sums appropriate for it to
perform its functions.

Commission’s powers of actions

The Commission’s powers of action are wide. They include
anything necessary to help ir advance these statutory duties.
The primary role of the Commission is 1o give SITategic
direction o the work of H5E. Ir also has powers to:

®  approve and issue Codes of Practice (*Approved
Codes of Practice” (ACOPs)) with the consent of the
Secretary of State, subject 1o consultarion with
government departments and other organisations;

[ make agreements with any government department or
person to perform H5C or HSE funcrions on HSC/E's
behalf;

] make agreements with any minister, government
department, or public authority for HSC to perform
functions on their behalf:

m give mandarory guidance to LAs on enforcement;

B direce H5E or authorise any other person mo
investigate and report on accidents or other matters
and, subject to regulations made by the relevant
minister, direct inquiries to be held.

Commission Code of Practice

The Commission has adopted a Code of Pracnice, which the
Chair and Commissioners follow. This conforms 1o Cabinet
Oifice guidance. It sers out the responsibilines of the Chair
and the corporate and individual responsibilities of
Commissioners.

Openness

The Commission recognises thar public access to health and
safety information improves public understanding and
strengthens public confidence in the health and safery
system. The Commission has published a policy statement
on access oo health and s:lft:r}' information. As part of this
commitment to openness, the Commission decided thar
from April 2005 itz meetings would be open o observers,
Details of meetings, together with agendas, papers, minutes
and those of its advisory commirttees and sub-commirrees,
are published on the interner, and can be found on the H5E
wiehsite {htrp:n’fwmhsc.gm'.uk}.
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Chair and members of the Health and
Saftety Commission: 2004/05

Chair

Bill Callaghan Appointment as Chair of HSC commenced on 1 October 1999, Bill was previously
the Chief Economist and Head of the Economic and Social Affairs Department ar the Trades Union
Congress (TUC). He has served on the boards of Business in the Community and the Basic Skills

Agency, He has a particular interest in developing parmerships berween trade unions and employers
ar the workplace and ar national level. He served on the Low Pay Commission 1997-2000, and was
a member of the Economic and Social Research Council’s Research Prioriries Board. He is a Visiring

Fellow of Nufficld College, Oxford. He became a magistrate i 2005,
Commissioners

Darery Carvigan  Appoinment commenced on 1 Ocrober 2004, Daniel has worked in public
services, shipbuilding, construction and oil rigs. He has over 23 years' experience of FEPresenting
employees and negotiation, through his union service for AMICUS (and its predecessors) as a
regional officer, national officer, and regional secretary. He has worked on HSE advisory
committees and on government advisory bodies. He holds one other current public appointment,
serving as a member of the Young People’s Commirtee on the Learning and Skills Council since
2003,

Margaret Burns CBE Appointment commenced on 1 April 1998, Margarer is a part-time tutor
of public law at the University of Aberdeen. She has taught in the law faculties at Dundee and
Glasgow Universities and ar the Open University. She was formerly the Legal Advisory Officer
for, and is now a member of, the Scortish Consumer Council, which nominated her for the
Health and Safety Commission,

Judith Donovan CBE Appointed 1 October 2000, Judith is 2 Yorkshire businesswoman who
founded her own direct marketing company in 1982, She was Chairman of Bradford Training
and Enterprise Council 1989-97, and the first female President of Bradford Chamber of
Commerce 1992-2001. She is Chairman of the Yorkshire Tourist Board, a direcror of the
Morthern Baller Theatre, and a member of the Programme Monitoring Committee for

Objective 2 Funding for Yorkshire and the Humber. She is also a Millennium Commissioner and
Chairman of Postwatch for the North of England.

Clir Joyee Edmond-Snrith Appointment commenced on 1 April 1997, A member of Brighton
and Hove Council, Joyee has been a councillor for 19 years. She was a member of the
Association of District Councils (ADC) for eight vears and has wide experience of environmental
and health issues in local government. She has chaired the ADC's Environment and Health
Committee, has been a member of Brighton and Hove Community Health Council and a
member of the Local Agenda 21 Steering Committee. She is currently the Chair of Brighton and
Hove Council’s Sustainability Commission. She taught in further education for 20 years.
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Judith Hackire Appointment commenced 1 April 2002, Judith trained as a Chemical Engineer at
Imperial College, London, She has been Director of Business and Responsible Care at the Chemical
Industries Association (CIA) since 1998 and was appointed Director General of the CIA from

1 April 2002, Judith was previously employed as Group Risk Manager ar Elementis PLC, with
worldwide responsibility for health and safety insurance and litigation. She also served for three

| years as a non-executive Director of Oxfordshire Healch Authoricy. She holds no other ministerial
appointments nor is she engaged in any political acrivity.

Jobn Lorgrworth Appointment commenced 1 April 2003, Currently an Executive Director Asda
accountable especially for Exvernal Affairs and Legal marrers, John is also Group Company
Secretary. Prior to joining the Asda Board, John was a Stores Board Director at Tesco where he held
a number of diverse positions in corporate areas. In the 1980s, John was with the Co-operative
Group, lacterly as Head of External Affairs and Deputy Company Secretary and was involved in the
Co-op Board, Marketing and Strategic Planning Developments.

Elizabeth Swape Appointment commenced | November 2003, Elizabeth worked as a legal officer
with the union NALGO 1990-94. She then ook on Equal Opportunities and European Policy
Employment with UNISOMN, where she has been Head of Policy since 1999, Since 2001 she has been
a member of the TUC General Council, and served as an executive member of the European Public
Services Union since 1996, She has experience of workers” health and safety concerns from her work
as a UNISOMN safery representative.

Hugh Robertson Appointment commenced on 1 April 2004, Hugh is Senior Policy Officer on
Health and Safety at the TUC. He was formerly Head of Health and Safety and Bargaining Support
with the rade union UNISOMN. He is also a member of the Industrial Injuries Advisory Committee
and the Boards of the Faculty of Occupational medicine and the British Occupational Health
Research Foundation.

Past Commissioners

George Brumuvell CBE Appointment ran from 1 Apnl 1998 o 31 October 2004. He is General
Secretary of the Union of Construction, Allied Trades and Technicians (UCATT). He is a member of
the Labour Party National Policy Forum and the TUC's Executive Committee and General Couneil.
He is a long-time member of the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) and a board member
of the Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS). He is an executive commirtee member of the
European and International Federation of Building and Wood Unions and a board member of the
Building and Civil Engincering Benefits Scheme.

Abdul Chowdry JP Appointment ran from 1 April 1998 to 30 March 2005. Abdul gained more
than 34 years’ experience as a health, safety and environment advisor at Turner and Newall ple
{manufacturing), where he worked until August 1998, He is the Director of BlackburnMarwen
Racial Equality Council, and has been a magistrate since 1976, He was a Labour Councillor at
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 1972-98, where he chaired a number of committees
including: Housing; Policy; and Economic Development. He was also a member of the Greater
Manchester Police Authority 1986-48,

MNew Commissioners

Dr Sayeed Khan Appointment commenced 1 April 2005. Dr Khan is an accredited specialist in
occupational medicine. He worked at Rolls-Royce ple for 10 years prior to joining EFF in 2002,
where he is Chief Medical Advisor. He started work as a machinist, then trained and pracrised as a
GP before qualifying in occupational medicine. He is on the BOHRF/FOM Scientific Committee,
NHSplus Evidence-based Medicine Guidelines Advisory Group, DoH Sickness Absence Certification
Project Advisory Board and was a member of the Continuous Improvement Programme Action
Group (Securing Health Together).

il
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The Commission’s work during

2004/05

The Commission published its report on the first year of its
Straregy in March 2005 (see paragraphs 48-55). Enritled
Warkplace Strategy: Mowing to Delivery, it derailed how the
Commission’s Strategy, in the vear since its launch in
February 2004, was setting priorities and how resources
were being directed to areas that could have the biggest
iMpPACT On IS Argers.

It also provided a wealth of examples which showed how
the Strategy’s four themes were shaping HSE's approach
and directly determining outputs, such as closer working
with LAz, ro focus resources on agreed health and safery
TArEeLs.

The Commission recognised challenges as well as
celebrating successes. lts key messages included:

[ ] the Stratepy has been well received by ministers and
stakeholders alike;

[ ] HS5E has made major changes oo irs working methods
to become an organisation centred around delivery. A
clear link berween the Straregy, resources and outputs
has been established:

®  the Straregy is a long-term commitment and we are
only at the start of the process - some big challenges
lie ahead;

m  not least of these challenges is thar of culture change -
baoth internal and externals

B concerns regarding HSE's commirment to enforcement
have been, and continue to be, reburted; and

[ ] the Strategy’s first-year objectives (the “early
deliverables’) have been met and a new set drawn up.

Changing ways of working

The Commission has further developed wavs of
championing and supporting delivery of the Strategy, taking
an increasingly proactive approach in communicating H5C's
vision at public events. Examples include:

®  chairing and involvement in the steering group (which
includes LA-clected members for England, Scotland
and Wales) for the Local Aurhorities and HSE
Working Together Steategic Enabling Programme;

B establishing and chairing a Small Business Forum with
representation from small business trade associarions
aiming ro ensure that the “voice® of small business is
heard by HSC/E;

B developing and chairing the steering committee for the
Health and %afery ar Work in Scotland Forumg

wiil

] speaking at a wide range of conferences, seminars,
workshops erc;
B hosting fringe events at political party conferences.

The Commission held s first open meeting in October
2004 when a large audience heard Commission members
debate current issues. The success of this event confirmed
the Commission’s aim to be as rransparent and open as
possible. They decided that from April 2005 all their
business meetings should be made open to the public.

In addition, they would hold one meering a year where
stakeholders could debare with them.

I~
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Members of the Health and Safety
Executive

Director General

Timotly Walker CE Director General since 1 October 2000, Previously an academic scientist,
Timothy taught physics and chemistry at various universities. He worked ar the DTI, was
Principal Private Secretary to successive Secrearies of State for Trade and Industry, and held
the posts of Governor of International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), Chairman of the EBRD
Nuclear Safety Account, Home Office Director General for Immigration and Nationality and
Deputy Chairman of HM Customs and Excise. He is a lay member of the Council of the
University of Warwick and a council member of the Institute of Employment Studies.

Deputy Director General (Operations)

Justin McCracken Justin took up post as Depury Director General {Operations] on 1 \ pril
2002, Based ar the Merseyside Centre, he is responsible for all of H5Es operational divisions.
A physics graduare, he joined [CLin 1976 as a research sclentist, moving inio process
development and plant management, then onto marketing and business management in the UK
and overseas, culminating in worldwide responsibility for ICIs caralyse business. In 1993, he
joined the Environment Agency as North West Regional Diirector. He is a trustee of the Biritizh
Safery Council.

Deputy Director General (Policy) From September 20047

Jonathan Rees Jonathan succeeded Kate Timms as Deputy Director General (Policy) en her
retirement in September 2004, and is responsible for the strategy, pe licy, communications and
legal directorates, and delivery of HSE's targets for improving conventional health and safery.
Previously he was a direcror of Consumer and Competition Policy at the DI, director,
Modernising Public Services Group in the Cabinet Oiffice, and a member of the Prime
Minister's Policy Unit 1994-97. He has been seconded to the European Commission and
worked in the UK Permanent Representation in Brussels,

* Dieputy Director General (Policy) until September 2004: Kate Timms CB

Register of Interests

A copy of the Register of Interests relating to members of the Health and Safery Commission
and the Health and Safety Executive can be obtained by contacring the HSC Secretariat at the
following address: The HSC Secretariat, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge, London SE1 #H5 or
phoning 0207 717 6641
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Health and Safety Executive structure

May 2005

Dr David Buchanan
Chiaf Exacitive
Health and Safety Laboratory
{H5L)

Heather Bolton
Head
Dperational Palicy and
Support Division (OPSD)

l

Peter Buckley
Head
Strategy Division (SD)
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Chair’s foreword

The highlight of last year’s Annual Report was the
publication of the Commission’s Strategy for workplace
bealth and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and beyond.
The main theme of this year's Report is the work to
implement thar Straregy.

The Strategy has been influential. The endorsement of the
Commission’s Strategy by the Hampron review was
particularly welcome, as was the support for higher
penalties. We must continue 1o seek and maintain the
right balance of enforcement and advice. This year has
also seen the starr of consuleation with our stakeholders
on how to best place our intervention resources. Leading
from this we hope to achieve a more efficient and effective
targeted interventions programme.

We must work closer with LAs and ensure that we both
target the right areas, with the appropriate level of
intervention required. The high-level Statement of Intent
agreed with LAs has set out our joint commitment to
partnership working. Leading from this local and regional
partnership arrangements are being formed to best place
resources to agreed priorities.

A further highlight of the past year has been the
advertising campaign promoting the business case for
better health and safery and the publication of case studies
on director leadership. The Commission has also stressed
the importance of worker involvement through a
collective declaration and development of the Workers®
Safery Adviser Challenge Fund.

So while we can point to some significant achievements
there are challenges ahead. We face a major challenge on
occupational health. Working in partnership with LAs, the
Marional Health Service (MHS) and DWP we have made
further progress towards delivering occupational health,
safety and return ro work (OHSR) support in the
workplace. Local pilots such as the Better Healtl at Work
partnership and Constructing Better Health have begun to
provide OHSR support to those who most need it. A
larger scale programme, Workplace Health Direct,
complementing DWP's Pathways to work, is being
prepared.

In addirion, the challenges of meeting our targets for
improving health and safety remain. We can see a marked
improvement in some sectors, such as construction, paper
and board, and food and in dealing with some hazards
such as musculoskeleral disorders. In other areas progress
has not been made. In tackling these areas we need to

continue to work in partnership, The Ministerial Task Force
on Health, Safety and Productivity provides the basis for a
sustained improvement in the public service.

A final challenge is communicating our core message to
seck sensible management of risks, nor a risk-free sociery,
We have worked in the past year with the Better Regulation
Task Force and the Department of Constitutional Affairs in
tackling the alleged ‘compensarion culrure.’

In July 2004 the Government announced the outcome of
the Rail Review. The Commission was disappointed with
the decision to move rail safety to the Office of Rail
Regulation (ORR) but was glad thar HSC/E's positive
contribution to rail safety was recognised and we are
determined to make the transition of HMEI to ORR a
smooth and oimely one,

RBill Callaglan
Chairman
Health and Safery Commission
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Director General’s foreword

This is my last Annual Report as Director General of the
Health and Safety Executive and 1 am pleased to report thar
much has been achieved over the last year with the Strategy
being taken forward in a very positive way, This is of
course a tribute to the hard work and commitment of scaff
throughout the organisation. Ir is because of them thar HSE
continues 1o make a difference to the lives of working
people, and has helped Grear Britain to achieve one of the
best safety records in Europe, Opinion surveys do indeed
show a large majority of both employers and employees
have a favourable impression of HSE and our peers in
Europe welcome our active participation.

As Bill's foreword shows, the Straregy has given us a very
good base for setring out how we intend to achieve our
targets. Our work is changing as the workforce changes irs
characteristics and becomes more diverse. Health issues, not
least MSDs and seress, are the largest contributor and
provide real challenges. Our work on the development of
stress standards has been widely welcomed and we aim to
establish partnerships with around 100 organisations to
build on this experience and help them prevent the
incidence of new cases as well as deal successfully with
EXNISHINEG Ones.

As well as our work designed to deal with specific health
and safety hazards, we have broughr together our
supporting work into a series of enabling programmes
which will give greater coherence for our efforts to improve
worker and employer involvement in health and safery
issues. The launch of a second tranche of worker safery
adviser projects is one example of how we are rackling
these issues. Another important innovation is the
Enforcement Programme which will look rigorously at all
our enforcement to identify how best it can be psed o
improve health and safery.

We are purting extra effort into the evaluation of our
interveniions and this is reflected in the new science
srrategy, the subject of recent consultation. We are also
currently piloting a new workplace health and safety survey
which will yield much rich detail of what helps improve
health and safery in the workforce.

Our work is also progressing in the major hazards area
where we have experience of the first year of operational
targets for reducing the precursors to porential major
accidents. We remain on track to deliver the rargets in the
offshore, onshore and nuclear industries.

xii

There has been one change in the Executive in the vear with
the retirement of Kare Timms. We are very grateful for her
contribution and wish her well for the future. We welcome
her successor, Jonathan Rees, who joins us from the
Department of Trade and Industry.

Finally I have been extremely proud o lead HSE over the
last five years, and continue to be impressed with the
dedication and professionalism which HSE staff display.

I wish my successor and all in HSE every success in meeting
the challenges ahead.

Timothy Walker CB
Direcror General
Health and 5.1ffr:,' Execurive

=il
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Snapshot of HSE in 2004/05

This section provides snapshot examples of some of
the significant events or developments thar occurred
during 2004/035. Further details can be found on
HSE's press release webpage:
hrepalfwww.hse.gov.uk/pressipress.him.

April 2004

Survey reveals public vote of confidence in bealth
and safery

Three out of four employers say health and safery
requirements benefit their companies as a whole,
according 1o a MORI survey published by HSE on
28 April. The survey, of 3000 members of the
working and non-working public and 500 employers,
found that employers rate health and safety in their
top two most important workplace issues. Most
employers see health and safety as good for business
and disagree that it puts a strain on profirs.

Attitudes towards bealth and safety: a quantitative
survey of stakeholder opinion by MORI Social
Research Institute can be accessed on the HSE
wehsibe at:
httpalfwww.hse.gov.ukfrescarch/misc/artitudes.pdf.

Consultation on new woise and work regulations

HSC published a consultative document on new
proposed regulations and guidance to implement the
European Physical Agents (Moise) Direcrive. The
regulations are about protecting workers from
exposure to noise, which is still a problem in many
industries. It is estimated they will extend protecrion
1o arcund one million new workers. Moise can induce
deafness or persistent ringing in the ears (tinnitus).
Once damage is done it is permanent, and may affect
quality of life; but it can be prevented.

May 2004

Protecting workers from asbestos: A legal duty

Asbestos is the biggest occupational health risk ever
faced by workers in Britain and about half a million
buildings from the 1950-80 period still contain it.
Protection for building and maintenance workers
from the fatal diseases caused by asbestos was

enhanced on 21 May when the new dury 1o manage
came into force, The duty requires anyone responsible
for the maintenance of commercial, industrial or
public properties or for the common areas of
domestic properties, ta check for ashestos and
properly manage the risk, Effective compliance with
this new dury will help save about 3000 lives. More

information on ashestos is available on HSE's website:

htep:fiwww.hse goviukfasbestos,
Factory explosion in Glasgow

H5E, together with the police and the Procurator
Fiscal's office, began the investigation into the
explosion thar occurred in a plastics factory in
Marvhill, Glasgow. The explosion, on 11 May 2004
when nine workers died and over 30 were injured,
wias the largest industrial accident in Scotland since
Piper Alpha.

June 2004

HSE construction canpaign

Ealls, transport and lifting incidents account for over
70% of all fatal injuries in construction, and almost
300 people died from these causes in the previous five
vears. The FaTal Risks Campaign during June
focused on reducing the number of faral and serious
injuries in the industry. HSE site inspections
concentrated on:

F falls arising from wark at height; and

T  transport on site including mobile plant and
vehicles; and

L lifring heavy loads with cranes and other lifting
machines.

Improvessents in constriction design

Also in June, HSE reported encouraging signs that
designers in the construction industry were becoming
increasingly aware of their responsibilities to design
out health and safety risks. This followed findings of
an inspector site visit initiative which compared
favourably with one undertaken the previous year.
Further derails can be found at:

heepe/iwww. hse.gov.ukfconstruction.
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July 2004

HSE publishes new puidance on accident
investigation

HSE published new guidance on how ro investigare
aceidents and incidents, primarily for small ro
medivm-sized enterprises (SMEs) where it is often
difficult to build up an expertise in investigating. This
guidance is aimed at helping them to find out what
went wrong, learn lessons and take action o reduce,
or hopefully prevent, accidents in the future.

Copies of Investigating accidents and incidents: A
workbook for employers, unions, safety representatives
and safety professionals HSG245 ISBN 0 7176 2827 2
are available from HSE Books, priced £9.50.

Work and Pensions Select Commitiee report on the
work af HSC/AE

The Work and Pensions Select Committee's report on
the work of HSC/E was published on 23 July. The
Committee believes HSE is a high-quality organisation
and recognises that Great Britain has one of the best
satety records in Europe. The report can be found at:
hrtpeifwww.publications. parliament.uks
pafcm2O0304fcmselectiemworpen/4 56/4 5602 hem

August 2004

Asbestos investigation

On 3 Avgust, a Nuneaton company and its officers
were fined a total of £245 000 in relation to the
removal of asbestos, following an investigation by
HSE. The inspector who attended the scene, after
being alerted by a worker, found one of the worst
situations she had ever come across. This was not only
in relation to the asbestos risks, bur because work was
allowed to go ahead despite the concerns of the
workforce.

Construction Health and Safety Roadshow Laenched
in Glasgour

On 30 August, George Brumwell, Health and Safety
Commissioner and General Secretary of UCATT,
launched the 2004 Working Well Together (WYWT)
Health and Safety Roadshow at Glasgow Harbour, an
area undergoing major redevelopment in Scotland. In
its sixth vear, the WWT Roadshow has reached over
25 000 workers with its health and safery messages.

HSE brewing up worker interest in offshore safety

H5Es Offshore Division (O50) laenched a new
information sheet, Tea-shack News, aimed ar giving
offshore workers the latest safety news direct from
HSE. Working in partnership with employers and the
unions has brought some very positive progress
towards better health and safety performance offshore.

and Safety Commissson/Executive Accounts 2004005

September 2004

Infoline fields tiwo millionth enguiry

HSE’s public enquiry contact centre, Infoline, handled
its two millionth enquiry in September. Set up in July
1996 as a ‘one stop shop’, Infoline provides enquirers
with rapid access ro HSE's wealth of health and safery
information, and access to expert advice and guidance.

The Infoline service is open to the public from 8.00 am
to 6.00 pm. Enquirers can contact Infoline by
telephone, e-mail, textphone, fax or letter or by
completing Infolines Ask an Expert enquiry form on
the HSE website (htp:fwww.hse.gov.ukfcontact).

Local authorities and HSE unveil grownd-breaking
Statement of Intent

A new partmership intended 1o capture the full
potential of HSE and LAs working together, was
embaodied in a high level Starement of Intent, endorsed
by LA political leaders and HSC/E in July and
launched in September. This was a significant
milestone in the process to give greater recognition o
the essential role of LAs in improving workplace
healch and safery for millions of workers and the
public, and meets the commitment given in the
Commission's Strategy for workplace bealth and safety
in Great Britain to 2000 and beyound.

HSE and Kent's local awthorities joined forces for
transport safety campaign

On 28 Seprember Bill Callaghan announced a
partnership ininative berween HSE and local
authorities in Kent to run the country’s largest-ever
waorkplace transport safety campaign. Workplace
transport incidents are the biggest cause of deaths in
agriculeure and food industries. Between 1992 and
2002, 44 farmers and 30 employees were killed in
transport-related incidents across the country.

Practical guidance for bomeworking

Work-related incidents can affect not just
homewaorkers, but others in their home, including
children and visitors. This means that relatively minor
hazards can become significant risks. In September,
HSE published a report on homeworking, providing a
series of good-practice case studies, which, rogether
with existing guidance, offers practical assistance for
employers and homeworkers. Copies of the report can
be downloaded from the HSE website ar:
heep:/iwww.hse.gov.uk/research/rrhem/rr262 hom.

HSC consults on bow it influences workplace bealth
and safety

i 30 September HSC published the online
consultation document Regulation and recognition:
towards good performance in health and safety on the
methads used by HSE and LAs to influence health and
safety standards in the workplace. The consultation
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document examined and sought views on the value
of a range of intervention techniques including
inspection, investigation, partnership working and
secror-wide initatives.

October 2004

HSC looks to the future

On 12 October HSC held an open meeting ar the
Mermaid Conference Centre, Blackfriars, London 1o
coincide with the 30™ anniversary of the Health and
Safety at Work etc Act. This was the first time that
Commission business has been discussed in full view
of the public and was an opportunity to open the
work to ordinary members of the public and those
dealing with health and safety on a day-to-day basis.

HSE says work is good for you

When vou're off sick, returning to work as soon as
possible may help vou get well. And staying atr home
longer than you absolutely need to could actually
make you worse. These were two recommendations
of guidance published by HSE to explain how
employers and employees can work together 1o
hasten a successful return to work. The
Confederation of British Industry (CBI) esrimares
that 33% of working days lost due o sickness are
accounted for by long-term sickness absence at a cost
of £3.8 billion a year. HSE's guidance offers a
practical step-by-step approach to managing sickness
absence and getting people back 1o work quickly.

HSE targets manufacturing industries

n 27 Ocrober HSE launched a new enforcement-led
campaign to reduce the unacceptable high number of
fatal and serious injuries that continue to occur in
manufacturing industries. Over the next three years
HSE inspectors will target scrap metal, rubber, paper
and wood industries to ensure that correct
procedures are in place for working on machinery.
During the previous three years, over 40 people had
died as a resule of incidents in the manufacturing
industry, most commonly when cleaning machinery
blockages or carrying out running repairs without
the correct safeguards.

Work and Pensions Select Committee report:
Grovermmeni response

The Government's response to the Select Committee
report on the work of HSC/E was published on

27 October. The introduction endorses the
Commission’s Strategy and explains the Government
approach to risk management and targeting of
resources. The main text then responds to each of
the Commirree’s 35 recommendations. The
Government response can be found at:
hetpaiwww.publications.parliament.
uk/palem200304/cmselect/cmworpen/1137/1137.pdf.

MNew business benefits of bealth and safetv web pages

The web pages, launched on 4 October, featured three
new case studies illustraning the business benefirs of
managing health and safety effectively. The benefits
seen by the companies in the case studies included
increased productviry, lower insurance costs, less
absenteeism, better staff retention and morale,
improved reputation and reduced liabilicy claims
(hrtpaffwwawhse govoukibusinessbenefits).

November 2004

Mew online Slips Assessment Tool (SAT) lavsched

This tool was launched o help users o evaluare
potential risks from slipping hazards in the workplace.
Slips and trips are the most common cause of major
injuries at work. They occur in all workplaces, 20%
of all major injurics caused by slips and erips result in
broken bones and they can also be the initial causes
for a range of other accident types such as falls from
height. SAT is easy to use and full instructions are
included with the software package, which can be
downloaded from HSE's Slips webpage ar:
herp:/iwww.hsesat.info. Users will need to purchase

a surface roughness merer.

Helping business cut the cost of work-related stress

On 3 November HSE launched a new approach to
help emplovers work with their employees to manage
the risks from work-related stress. This includes:

™ a benchmarking tool to help managers gauge
stress levels, compare themselves with other
organisations, and work with employees to
identify solurions; and

] Management Standards which define the
characteristics af an organisation where stress is
managed effectively.

At over 13 million days a year, work-related stress 1s
the biggest nccupational cause of working days lost
through injury or ill health. With an average of 29
days lost per case, it costs socicty about £3.7 billion a
year. In 2001/02, over half a million individuals in
Britain experienced work-related stress at levels that
made them ill.

Ufton Nervet derailnent - HSE investigates

On 6 Movember seven people were killed and 37 taken
to hospiral following the derailment at Ufton level
crossing. HSE investigated together with the police.
The HSE investigation focused on the railway aspects
of the derailment and HSE published its inrerim report
on 10 November. Train derailrrent at Ufton level
crossing, near Uftor Nervet, Berkshire, HSE mterin
report is on the HSE website at: hup:ffwww.hse.gov.uk
frailways/uftonnervet/interim. pdf.

W
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December 2004

Language barriers mean new dangers at o

Concern thar migrant workers could be missing our on
crucial health and safery rraining because their
employers are not providing safety material in any
language other than English prompted H5E and TUC
to produce new safery information translared into 21
different languages. Youwr bealth, your safety: A guide
for warkers provides information about safety righes ar
work, the level of safety rramming thar workers should
expect from their employers, and who they should
complain to if they believe their safety is being
compromised by poor workplace pracrices.

Worker Safeiy Advizer (WSA) Challenge Fund secornd
round opened for business

Bill Callaghan, HSC’s Chair, announced the opening of
the second round of the WSA Challenge Fund. The
fund is designed ro help build parmerships that drive
safety and health improvements, Operated by H5E, it
will run between April 2005 and March 2007 and
focuses on small firms and organisations that lack such
arrangements. Increasing worker involvement has been
shown to improve health and safety performance and is
a key part of the Commssion’s Sirategy. The
application form and derails of how o apply can be
found at: hetpaifwww.wsa-clorg.

January 2005

Newr Freedom of Information (FOI) website

The FOI wehsire (htrp:ifwawhse gov.ukffoi) was
unveiled on 4 Janoary to coincide with the first
working day of the new FOI Acr. This website provides
the means for the public to both access informarion as
it becomes available and o request informarion not
already published.

New web-based tool to belp small businesses

This Healeh and Satety Pertormance Indicator (che
Indicator) was developed o help SMEs track and assess
how well they are managing their own health and
safery performance. It is also intended 1o help
companies tell their insurers how well they are
managing health and zafery, 20 insurers can more
accurately calculate insurance premiums based on
individual performance. Supported by the DTI's Small
Business Service, the Indicator can be accessed ar:
hitpsfaww hspiinfo-exchange.com,

February 2005

The business case for bealth and safety

HSE launched a campaign to persuade businesses that

sensible health and safery management is not only
beneficial for staff bur good for their botrom line as
well. The national advertising campaign was backed up
by a new website: hirpa/fwww hse.gov.uk/betterbusiness.

It cites a range of companies who have applied a
managed approach and reaped the benefits in terms of
improved profitability. The studies highlight the
contribution that geod communications, sound training
and development and meaningful worker invelvement
all make - and thar managing health and safety cannot
be viewed in isolation from managing a business
overall.

Secretary of State announces advice and support for
shvall businesses

Secretary of Stare Alan Johnson announced Workplace
Health Direct as part of the launch of the DWP Five-
Year Plan which sets the Department’s direction for the
next five years and beyond. Workplace Health Direct
will provide occupational health, safety and return to
work advice and support 1o SMEs, via a helpline and a
series of regional pilots. A roadshow explaining the
proposed pilors toured England and Wales in March
2003, The pilots are due to stare in early 2006,

Construction industry renews its determination to
bealth and safety commitments

Senior executives and union representatives from across
the construction industry met ar a Construction Health
and Safety Summit in London to review progress on the
health and safery commirments given at the
Construction Summit in 2001, to celebrate successes,
and to commit to further action to further improve the
industry’s health and safety performance.

March 2005

HSE team short-listed for prestigions award

An HSE project team was short-listed in the Public
Servants of the Year Awards 2005 for developing free
interactive software that helps farmers carry our their
own risk assessments and raises levels of health and
safety awareness in the industry. The HSE's farming
sofrware was launched in lare 2004, It can be
downloaded from the HSE website at:
hetpatfwww.hse.gov.uk/agniculiurefassessment.

Waste and recycling industry initiative to reduce
injuries

H5E launched a three-vear initiative with the waste and
recyeling industry to address the high number of fatal
and serious incidents thar occur during collection and
processing of municipal waste and recycling acrivirties.

At initial visits, inspectors looked at policies and
control measures in place and how these were
managed, and will follow up one year larer 1o check
that employers required to produce an action plan of
improvements have carried these our.



Health and Safety Commission
Annual Report 2004/05




Health and Safety Commussion Annual Report and the Health and Safety Commissson/Executive Accounts 200405

Operating and financial review

Mission: To protect people’s health
and safety by ensuring risks in the
changing workplace are properly
controlled.

1 The preamble to the Health and Safety Commnizsion
Annual Report and the Health and Safety Commission and
Executive Accounts 20044035 includes deeails of the
department with responsibility for HSC/E and its ministers,
an analysis of the business of HSC {its aims and objecrives),
the Commission’s duties and powers of action, and
members of HSC/E.

Operating review

2 Part 1 of the Report describes the work of HSC/E
during 2004/035. During this period, HSC's Stratepy for
workplace bealth and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and
beyond (the Commission’s Strategy) directed HSE's work.
The HSC Business Plan 2004005 pur the Commission’s
Strategy into pracrice.

Workplace bealth and safety targets

3 A feature of both documents is delivering the national
targets for health and safety launched by the Government
and H5C in June 2000 - the Revitalising Health and Safery
(Revitalising) rargets. DWP has adopted the Revitalising
indicators (incidence rates of injury, ill health and working
days lost), together with indicators for major hazard
industries, in a new Public Service Agreement (PSA), arising
from the 2004 Spending Review (SR2004). Also in 2000,
the Commission, Government and other stakeholders
launched a long-term strategy to improve occuparional
health: Securing Health Together.” See Figure 1.

Thie heabth-related mrgers in Reviraliemg and additional tangers by 2000
{see higpehawwohatrategy.net)

ha

Vision: To gain recognition of health
and safety as a cornerstone of a
civilised society, and with that
achieve a record of workplace health
and safety that leads the world.

The Commission’s Stralegy

4 The Revitalising targets stimulated a new approach in
HSC and HSE o delivering improvements in workplace
health and safety, but it became clear that more had ro be
done to mobilise the whole health and safety system if the
targets were to be achieved. The Commission’s Strategy,
published in February 2004, provides a clear direcrion for
HSC, HSE, LAs and other stakeholders in the health and
safery system to help realise the vision and achieve the
targets. Importantly, it identifies four high-level themes
HSE muse address to achieve these ends;

partnership working;

effective health and safety managemen;
focusing on core business; and
commumnicating effectively.

The Business Plan

5 The Commission’s Strategy informed the Business
Plan for 2004/05, which set out what HSE would do in the
year, alongside LA enforcement parters and other key
stakeholders, to deliver the targets, the Straregy and the
vision. The Plan focused on five new Straregic Programmes,
which reflecred the Strategy’s high-level themes:

Major Hazards;

Health and Safety Hazards;
Sectors:

Local Authorities: and

Better Health at Work Parmership.

&  The Plan also included details of a number of
supporting activities that enable delivery of the targers and
fulfil HSC/E's statutery functions,
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Revitalising Health and Safety targets

By 2010 (compared to the average for 19992000

B reduce the number of working days lost per
100 000 workers from work-related injury and
ill health by 30%G;

B reduce the incidence rate of fartalitics and major
injuries hy 10%%;

m  reduce the incidence rare of cases of work-related
ill health by 20%; and

m  achieve half the improvements under each target
by 2004 [also DWP's PSA target following the
Government’s Spending Review 2000).

SR2004 Pablic Service Agreement

By 2008, improve health and safety outcomes in
Gireat Britain, through progressive improvement in the
control of risks in the workplace. The rargets are by
2008:

For occupational health and safery (against a 2004005
baseline):

B 1o reduce the incidence rate of fatal and major
injuries by 3%;

B o reduce the incidence rare of work-relared ill
health by 6%;

B o reduce the number of working days lost per
100 000 workers from injury or ill health by 9%.

For major hazard industries,  {against a 2001/02
haseline):

®  a 7.5% reduction in the number of events
reported by licence holders, which HSE's Nuclear
Installations Inspectorate (MII) judges as having
the potential to challenge a nuclear safety system;

m a45% reduction in the number of major and
significant hydrocarbon releases in the offshore
oil and gas sector;

®  a 15% reduction in the number of relevant
RIDDOR-reportable” dangerous occurrences in
the onshore sector.

Figure 1 Mational targers for health and safety

" HSE%s wark on rail safery is incloded in HSES plans until it transfers to
ORR in December 2005, Monitoring of targets for Rail during 2004005 is
described in rhe section Magor Hazands Sivategic Delivery Programivie

¥ Reporting of Injarics Disease and Dangerous Occurrences Regolanons
1995 (RIDIMIR]

Principal activities in pursuance of the aims and
objectives

Programme working

7 In order to implement the Commission’s Stratcgy,
HSE started to realign its work into programmes in
2003/04, bridging both policy and operational funcrions.
During 2004/05, we closely monitored developments with
the programme structures, and saw the need 1o make
organisational changes to ensure we are in the best position
to deliver the targets and our contribution o the
Commission's Strategy. We have elimimared overlapping
elements, ranonalised supporting programmes and
reorganised and revisited how the targets are shared
between component progeammes. The strucoure 1o emerge,
which we will now take torward, comprises:

] rwao Straregic Delivery Programmees (SDPs) as the
main agent for delivery:

- Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow (Fit3):
largely comprising merged elements of the Health
and Safery Hazards and Sector Strategic
Programmes, the structure is aligned with the
occupational health and satery components (injury,
ill health and davs lost) of the PSA rarger; and

- Major Hazards: which focuses on HSEs work in
regulating and assuring safe management of those
industries where failure to manage risks to health
and safety could have catastrophic effects;

| four Strategic Enabling Programmes (5TEPs):

- Local Authorities and HSE Working Together;
- Business Involvement;

- Worker Involvement; and

- Enforcement.
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] Each Strategic Delivery Programme continues to
reflect the Stravegy’s four high-level themes, bur the
Strategic Enabling Programmes implement cach theme
specifically.

Govarnmant objectives for employment, productivity, health
and rehabilitation, including Revitalizing Health and Safely
and Batter Reguiation

DWIP's PSA targat 5 {of 10)
By 2008, improve health and safety outcomes in Great Britain
through progressive improvement in the control of risks from
the workplace

Readuce ill health, injury
and days lost

Control major
hazards

HSC Strategy to 2010 and beyond

Halping people § Communicating Diarerlapirg
atiectrealy closer

HSC three-year Business Plan

Fit3 Sirategic
Strategic Delivery Enabling
Programme Programmes

Major Hazards
Sirategic Delivery
Programma

LAHSE
Parinership
Frogramme

Workear
Invglvemant
Programme

Enfarcémant
Programme

Business
Involvement
Programma

Policy Programme
{ Bwffor Ragulation)

Etficiency, Economy and

Productivity Programma

Figure 2 Links between SDIPs, STEPS and the Commission's
Strategy

9 The Field Operations Direcrorare (FOD) 15 H5E's
largest operational arm, and the majority of FOD' resource
is allocated to the Fitd Strategic Delivery Programme. This
targeted FOD front-line resource is one of the key
interventions used o help deliver the rargets. Ir includes
both proactive and reactive work, including targered
mspections and campaigns, and responding 1o those
incidents thar meer the incident selection criteria,

10 The Enforcement STEP aims to ensure the
appropriate, effective, efficient and rargeted use of
prosecution, Crown censure and enforcement notoes in
delivering the injury and ill-health rargets.

11 And finally, we have recently formed a Policy
Enabling Programme, which takes forward all policy work
not related ro these Straregic Programmes, eg application of
the Government’s Better Regulation principles.

Supporting HSEs programme delivery

12 HSE undertakes a range of activities that underpin
and support the Strategic Programmes” work. These can be
identified under rwo headings:

u activities that enhance the Strategic Programmes, such
as strategy and intelligence, business improvement
and efficiency. Two key areas of support are
communicarons and stakeholder engagement (key
themes from the Commission's Strategy), and science
and rechnology;

[ | functions imposed upon HSC/E by the HSW Acr, such
as drafting and modernising legislation, and providing
guidance, informarion and advice,

13 HSCOE manages all this work in a way that supports
delivery of the Commission’s Strategy and the targers.

14 In addition, HSE manages its business (staff training
and development, information technology, monitoring of
business risk etc) and takes forward centrally driven
initiatives such as implementing the Race Equality Scheme.

15 Inspectors entorce the law in accordance with the
HSC Enforcement Policy Statement (EPS). The EPS includes
criteria and procedures selected for use when investigating
RIDDOFR imcidents and complaints. HSE's Health and
Safery Offences and Penalties Report® provides an annual
report of enforcement action,

16 The prime tool for managing corporate performance
is H5E's Balanced Scorecard, a quarterly report to HSE's
Board providing strategic oversight of delivery in a number
of key arcas,

Efficiency measures
17 H5E manages a co-ordinated programme of business

improvements, through which it has achieved significant
cash releasing andfor productivity savings over a number of

* The Report for 2004005 will be published in the autumn
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years. In 2004/05, key initiatives included reducing back-
office functions and increasing front-line activities through
continued streamlining of corporate support, enabled by
investments in [T and more e-business. For 20005/046-
2007108, HSE has set a target to deliver £50 million worth
of efficiency savings, at least half of which is to be
realisable in cash. An efficiency programme has been
developed, aimed at achieving this challenging target.

Governarce

18  We have ranonalised our governance structures. In
addition to the HSE Board, HSE has established the new
Resource and Delivery Group (RDG) chaired by the
Director General, The RDG takes co-ordinared decisions to
ensure HSE remains in a sound financial position, to direct
improved business efficiency and ensure thar HSE
progresses towards delivery of the PSA targets.

Waorking with DWIT

19 HSE will work with DWP to support its five-year
strategy, including contributing to DWP’s approaches to
helping people with health conditions and disabilities to
engage with the labour market. Particular areas of our
work that conrribute ro this include:

m  preventative work (inspections, publicity campaigns
etc) to improve risk management, prevent work-
related injury and ill health, and stop people from
leaving the labour market for long periods of time;

m  encouraging and supporting employers to play a
bigger role in managing sickness absence and return
to work for their employees who are in poorer health;
and

m  from early 2006, Workplace Health Direct - a pilot
service delivering occupational health, safety and
return to work support to SMEs.

20 We will also work with DWP on rehabilitation,
including DWP's development of the Framework for
Vocational Rehabilitation, and review of incapacity benefit
and statutory sick pay.

Delivery 2004/05

Gereral overvien

The Commission’s Strategy for workplace health and safety
in Great Britain to 20010 and beyond

21 Achievements over the last year have helped us 1o
position ourselves to deliver the rargets:

m  ministers and members of the Commission and
Executive have done much to promote the Strategy;

[ ] based on the direction given in the Strategy, HSE has
introduced fundamental changes to its delivery
mechanisms, such as its planning systems and
working methods;

m the nine key carly deliverables outlined in the Strategy
have all been met by the due date;

] the themes in the Strategy have determined outputs
such as Workplace Health Direct - a pilor service
delivering occupational health, safety and return to
work support to SMEs, through an Adviceline and a
number of regional partnerships providing an on-site
problem solving service; and

[ the creation of a Communications Directorane
desipnied to increase impact through a more serategic
approach to communications.

Strategic Delivery Programmes
Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow (Fied)

22  Re-structuring the Strategic Programmes to form Fied
provides us with a clearer line of sight through the required
contributions of the programmes to the three parts of the
PSA targer. Modelling work is helping to provide greater
rigour in the selection of programme content for the coming
years and our planned evaluation work should provide
early indications of our progress towards delivery. Ar
present, the available statistics provide mixed messages.

23 We continue to make good progress with our planned
activities including development of new law, standards and

guidance, and targeted interventions including stakeholder

engagement, inspection and enforcement.

Maror Hazards

24 Three elements of the major hazards rargers (offshore,
onshore and nuclear) remain on ack to deliver the targets.
The rail indicator is the subject of further work o establish
a more reliable and meaningful indicaror and o achieve
industry commitment to delivery. Examples of key day-ro-
day activities in the four secrors are given in paragraphs
125-214.

Stratepic Enabling Programmes
Local Authorities and HSE Working Together

25  Good progress has been made in the first year of the
Programme, which was established ro deliver the
Commission’s Strategy in respect of the new parmership
berween HSE and local government. The first step was to
develop a joint approach to setting up and delivering the
Programme, with Local Authonities Coordinators of
Regulatory Services (LACoRS) as a practical means for
representing local government at the heart of the
Programme. Building on thart, a Statement of Intent was
agreed berween HSC/E and LA representative bodies and a
‘best practice’ guide was published exemplifving the new
partership. These first steps have been warmly welcomed
by local government, but all involved recognise there
remain some significant challenges in moving from plans
and intentions ro making the partnership a working reality.

Business Involverment
76 HSC/E can report considerable progress during the

course of the year in taking forward measures to promote
and encourage awareness of the importance of greater
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corporate responsibility for health and safery, and the
business and social benefits this approach brings.

Worker frvolivenent

27  HSE has been w::l-rkillg with stakeholders ro devise a
programme of activities to deliver H5C’s Collective
Declaration on Worker Involrement (published in March
2004). In February 2005, the Commission approved the
programme in principle. The intention is to create a climate
for effective dialogue berween emplovers and workers, in
the belief thar this will lead to an ever more constructive
parinership between emplovers and workers in health and
safety matters.

Enforcement

28 The programme will ook ar ways thar formal
enforcement activities help support reduction of injuries,
cases of ill health and time lost caused by work, focus on
those who show a reckless disregard for health and safety
requirements, share lessons learnt from investigations and
gain widespread recognition for the role of enforcement in
supporting sensible standards of health and safery. High-
level plans are currently being considered.

Supporting HSEs programme delivery
Policy

29  HAC/E aims to be a leading performer in applying the
Government’s Better Regulation principles. Both HSC and
HSE have followed such principles since the early 1990s.
They are embedded in policy-making and enforcement, and
underpin the Commission’ Strategy. Indicarors of Berter
Regulation performance for the year are provided.

CI’J.‘IH‘HHFH:'{I‘H}MPS

300 During the year, HSE has built up and recrganised irs
communications capacity to achieve some fundamental
changes: a shift from reacrive and ractical initiagives to
strategic communication, and from providing information
o changing behaviour.

Science

31 The Government's Chief Scientific Advisor is currently
undertaking a review of HSE’s science, covering all acrivities
from horizon SCANNINE for furure issues to maintenance of
existing scientific expertise. HSE has conducred a self-
assessment based on the ten review criteria, which will be
published as an annex to the external review. A new HSC
science strategy, Gatbering Evidence; Developing
Understanding: Identifving Solutions, has been produced,
which describes how HSE will apply its science resources to
help deliver the Commission’s Stravegy. The new HSE
Sctence and Research Outlook website was launched in
Ogcrober 2004,

Managing the organization

31  This section includes information on a wide range of

management and business issues :im:[m]ing business
improvement, diversity, green housekeeping and business
risk. On business improvement, the ourtturn results show
that H5E achieved savings valued at over £11.6 million,
On diversity, H5E has largely mer its targets.

Health and safety in HSE

33 The challenging and ambitious rargers HSE set itself
for 2004/05 were not met, although the bascline (of FEPOrts
from 2003/04) was a year of good health and safery
performance. In recognition of the emerging shortfall, an
emergency meeting of the Corporate Health and Safery
Commirtee was held and a new plan has been developed,
focusing on areas where improvements are possible.

Balanced scorecard

34 The balanced scorecard takes account of four
perspectives or business areas: Delivering the Mission,
Managing Resources, Comtissons Improventent, and
Reputation. Full details of each quarter’s outturns are
available on the HSE website at: httpaiwww. hse.gov.uk.
Artached ar Annex 1 is a snapshot of the element Delivering
planned work (from Delivering the Mission), adapred for
the purposes of the Report. It contains outturns from HSE's
Operational Direcrorates. Progress against plans was well
achieved; robust action was raken in the one shortfall in
quarter 1 (complaints investigated by HM Railway
Inspecrorate (HMRI)) which recrified the problem.

Legislative timetable

35 Annex 2 contains full derails of Enropean and
domestic legislative projects planned for the reporting year
and an up-to-date report on the position at the end of the
year. During 2004, HSC/E reviewed its legislative
programme, reshaping it in the light of new priorites,
Better Regulation principles and the availahility of
resources. Sixreen proposals were stopped and a further
eight were put on hold pending consideration of alternatives
o legislanon,

Revitalizing targets

36 Progress against the mid-point of the Revitalising
targets will be reported in autumn 2005 in H3C’s Health
and Safety Statistics Highlights 2004705, Progress 1o
2003/04 was published in the Health and Safety Statistics
Highlighes 2003/%04:

httpa/iwww. hse gov.uk/statistics/overalllhssh0304.pdf.

A synopsis of progress at that stage reported:

®  fatal and major injuries: there is a mixed picture but
no clear evidence of overall progress since the base
year in the incidence rate of fatalities and major
injuries;

®m  working days lost: the data for 2003/04 shows no
statistically significant progress since 2000-02, the
closest available to the base year; and

B work-related ill health: there is no clear evidence of
met progress since the base year with the incidence
rate of work-relared ill health.
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37  However, the latest data does show a fall in the
incidence rate of musculoskeleral disorders (MSDs) since
19292000 and a levelling off in the earlier rise in work-
related stress. These are the two largest causes of ill health
and days lost, offering some encouragement that the resules
of the actions HSE has iniriated are beginning to show
through in the figures. A further assessment will be made
when new data is available in autumn 2003,

Securing Health Together targets

38  Achieving the targets remains an objective. The
Commission’s Strategy stressed the need o do more o
tackle the new and emerging health issues. Work following
the publication of Securing Health Together targets looked
at ways of encouraging more companics to use occupational
health support. This work developed a model for provision
of health, safery and return-to-work support 1o small and
medium-sized companies. The model will be tested as
Workplace Health Direct, a number of partnership-based
regional pilots, over the next three years. This is in line with
other work to provide advice free from fear of enforcement.
Programmes to tackle stress-related ill health and back and
limb problems, the largest causes of work-related absence,
are being increased. Where possible, these activities have a
clear evidence base, with programmes designed 1o
encourage CONtiNUoOUS improvement, not just to meet legal
rEqUIrEMiEnts,

Financial review

39  In 2004/03, HSE's administrative expenditure was
very close to planned levels, although a degree of
uncertainty arising from delay in confirming our SR2004
settlement impeded investment in forward plans. The
strategy for expenditure on Programmes continued to be to
build up underspend to ensure resources could be targered
to best effect in support of the emerging delivery
programme {described in earlier paragraphs).

40  The Treasury’s Spending Review 2004 was a tough
process for all government departments. HSC/E argued
strongly for the resources to implement the Commission’s
Strategy. It is an indication of the level of support from our
parent department (DWP) and ministers thar HSC/E
achieved a sertlement for 2005-08 that is better than simply
rolling forward budgers at the same cash level. This will
enable HSE to shift resource behind our key delivery
Programmes.

41  HSC’s sertlement provides the confidence ro plan
recruitment for the SR2004 period. Significant retirement
is anticipated over the next three years. HSE will recruit 1o
replace those skills thar would otherwise be lost and 1o
bring in the new skills necessary to deliver our Srrategic
Programmes.

42  The allocation of resources in 2005/06 reflects a
continuing drive 1o reduce spend on corporate support and
redirect resources into work directly contributing to
delivery.

43 There is also a conscious plan to front load
expenditure such thar Year 1 (2005/06) has relatively
grearer spend. This is due ro the need o make addirional
investment quickly to support delivery of the PSA. A review
will be carried our during 2005 1o assess the extent 1o
which resources might need to be rebalanced into the
allocations for 2006/07 and 2007/08. That review will take
account of the larest versions of the Straregic Programme
plans to provide the RDG (see paragraph 18) with the larese
information on likely resource requirements in future years.

44  The external advisor’s report on the scope of H5E'
charging regime is still being evaluated.

45  Derails of HSE involvement in Private Finance
Initiatives (PFls) arc in paragraph 7 of the 200405
Accounts Foreword, Mote 20 of the Accounts, and
paragraphs 316-317 of the Annual Report. The Health and
Safery Laboratory (HSL) PFI has concluded and is reflecred
in Mote 14 of its 2004/05 Accounts.

Further information

46 In addition wo publishing this report as a printed
document, you can also find 1t on the HSE website, The
wehsite addresses for main publications and intormation
are given throughout this report. More comprehensive
information on publications and reports referred 1o can be
found on the HSE Books websire
{hetpfwww.hsebooks.co.uk). HSC/E also provides a
contribution to the DWP’s Departmental Annual Report.
When it is published later in the year, the Departmental
Report 2005 can be found at: hup:/iwww.dwp.gov.uk.

47  The HSE website also contains up-to-date information
and advice on healeth and safery ssues including the larest
statistical information (heeps/fwww.hse.gov.uk/staristics).
Advice can also be sought via HSEs Infoline -

Telephone: 0845 345 0055, Textphone: 0845 408 9577,
email: hseinformationservices@nartbrit.com. Infoline staff
can answer general enguiries and tell you about our
publicarions.
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HSC’s Strategy for workplace health
and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and
beyond: One year on

The Commission’s Strategy

48  In February 2004, HSC with the Minister for Work
launched the Strategy for workplace health and safety in
Cireat Britain to 2000 and beyond (heepafwww hse.gov.uky
aboutus/hscfstrategy.htm). In March 2005, HSC delivered a
report to the Minister for Work describing progress made
with the Strategy in the year following its launch. The
report, entitled Workplace Strategy: Moving to Delivery,
can be found at: hitpafwww.hse.govauk/abourus/plans!
hseplansfjanekennedy. pdf.

49  The Commission’s Strategy contains four high-level
themis:

m  developing closer partnerships;

1 helping people benefir from effective health and safery
Management;

" focusing on core business by being clear about
priorities; and

B communicating effecrively.

50 The genesis of the Strategy was recognition that the
serting of targers for improved national health and safery
performance would not in itself deliver results: straregic
direction, supported by different delivery methods, was also
NECEssary,

51  During the last year, ministers and members of the
Commission and Executive have done much to promaoe the
Strategy, using speaking opportunities to explain the key
ideas, in presenting evidence o the Work and Pensions
Select Committee and in other ways, The effore expended in
its promotion has creared impact. For instance, it has
clearly been influential in shaping the thinking of Philip
Hamptons review of regulatory inspection and
enforcement, whose report Redweing administrative
burdens: effective inspection and enforcenent

(httpaffwww. hm-treasurv.goviak/hampron) was published on
16 March 2005,

52 The Straregy underping a process of seming prioricies
and directing resources to arcas where they can be most
effective. The last vear has seen numerous examples where
the themes in the Straregy have directly determined ourpurs,
a few of which are:

m  Workplace Health Dircct: a pilor service delivering
occupational health, safery and return to work
support to 5MEs through an Adviceline and a number
of regional partnerships providing an on-site problem-
solving service.

m  Government Sciting an Example: a programme of
work set up to improve health and safery
management in the public sector, and to use
Government’s influence as funder, procurer and
standard serter, and overseen by a Ministerial Task
Force. This is now part of a wider *Public Services
Programme’.

B Providing accessible advice and support: HSE
published a statement in Seprember 2004 describing,
four strands of work for improving the advice and
support available, especially to small businesses, free
r:l'ﬂl'l'l f::nr {!f EII'FU]'L'L'I‘I'IL'“.Z
(httpa/iwww.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/plansfindex.htm).

m  [Interventions strategy: this was subject to a
consultation document Regulation and recognition;
Toneards paod performance in bealth and safety.
Analvsis of responses will lead to further
developments in how HSE and LAs rarger their
interventions, which will be openly communicared.

m  Communicating effectively: a direcrorare has been
created to increase impact through a more straregic
approach to communications, and 1o present a clear
picture of HSE's role and focus.

53 The Strategy document also outlined nine key early
deliverables, designed as easily recognisable outpurs, and
these have all been met by the due date.

54 In responding to the challenge of the Straregy, HSE
has introduced fundamental changes to its delivery
mechanisms, especially its working methods, HSE has
developed two Strategic Delivery Programmes, one focusing
on injury and ill-health reducrion (Fic3), the other on major
hazard industries. Four Strategic Enahling Programmes,
covering partnership with local authorities, worker
involvement, business involvement and enforcement,
support these. Complementing this, HSC has established a
science strategy to direct the way in which its science and
technology resources will be rargered. HSE is also
developing a workforce sStrategy to ensure thar it has the
right people in the righe place with the righr skills,

35 Insummary, HSC/E has restructured and refocused,
and is now positioned o deliver irts rargers.
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Strategic Delivery Programmes

Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow (Fit3)
Strategic Delivery Programme

Ownertieiy

56  During 2004/05 we have developed a new Straregic
Delivery Programme that encompasses and builds on work
initiated in both the Hazards and Sector Straregic
Programmes, and the former Better Health at Work
Parmership Programme. This new Strategic Programme will
run from 1 April 2005 for three years,

57 By aligning programme activity to the three
occupational health and safery clements of the PSA (also the
Revitalising indicators) and making organisational changes
to support programme working, the new Strategic
Programme is better placed to deliver the targers, This
structure allows us to apply the principles of programme
management more effectively. In line with the Commission’s
Strategy, we will put more resource into activity thar has
the greatest potential impact on the targets, while scaling
back lower impacy work.

58  The target to reduce days lost due to injury and ill
health continues to be a real challenge. To meet it, our
analysis shows that we must focus on:

m  engaging the public service sector to tackle issues such
as stress and MSDs; and

Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow

] helping organisations to implement systems for
managing sickness absence and return to work.

59  During the last year, we have developed a number of
tools to help organisations, We are now designing new
interventions to ake this work forward in line with the
Commission's Srr;ucg}' !1._|I'l|l.l.l|:1|'§'|.' \'.'lill']-;ill!: 1] |?.1ﬂ:u-rxh15'-
with others, including DWP and DoH. We will need to
ili."'\-"-']ﬁP new skills and li.'?{PI.‘Fﬂi.:-lL' i OUE Programime delivery
teams to support these innovative approaches,

Gl We have had some major successes i the last
1.2 months:

| securing political commitment to action in the public
sector through the Ministerial Task Force review of
managing sickness absence, and endorsement of the
Task Force's delivery plan;

[ ] agrecing guidelines tor detecting and managing
asthma - partner organisations all now have links on
their websites to the detection/management guidelincs
for GPs, practice nurses and occupational physicians;

8 running Safery and Health Awareness Days (SHADs)
and the Warking Well Together |WWT] Roadshow.
The response from our construction stakeholders 1o
these events has exceeded expectations. Take-up of the
Construction Skills Cerrification Scheme (CSCS) has
been in excess of targets;

m testing the provision of occupational healch, safety

System

Injury reduction Diays lost reduction
Stress Ships and Trips
MsD Falls
Public Services
Discase Reduction Construction
Absence Management
Moise and HAV Workplace Transport
Rerurn 1o work/
Occupational Health, Safety Sector Stakeholder Rehabilitation
and Return to Work Support Engagement

Figure 3 The Fit3 structure
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and return-to-work advice and support, including a
national advice line independent of H5E, through the
Workplace Health Diirecr pilors;

] launching the stress management standards after
widespread consultation and work with stakeholder
ErOups;

B publishing guidance on managing sickness absence
and rerurn ro work thar gained DWF acclaim;

m working with the Institute of Occupational Medicine
(I0M) to develop the Sickness Absence Recording
Tool;

B launching new user-friendly assessment tools to help
assess and manage slips and trips, manual handling,
and risk in agriculmure;

] introducing new legislation aimed at reducing the
risks arising from work ar height and vibration;

B focusing work of our frone-line staff on key
PrOEramme arcas.

Hi-bealth reduction

61  This vear has been a challenging one. The narure of
the programme block has changed from one working
influence people to make more use of occupational health
support, to one with a much harder focus on delivering
rargets for improved health. Stress and MSDs have been the
main causes of ill health in the workplace for some years.
Mew analyrical work has shown us the scale of activity we
need o generare to meer the rargers. Workplace Healrh
Drirect is a new venture for HSE. It means we need to
develop new skills and an effective evaluarion process.
Working with partners will be crucial 1o meer the huge
challenges we face in achieving the impact we want in all
these areas,

62 In conjunction with the Disease Reduction
Programme, the Berter Health ar Work team is striving to
reduce the incidence of ill health caused by work by 2008,
To achieve this reduction we are focusing on two main
argas: steess and MSDs, We have made good progress - the
larest statistics for 2003/04 show a fall in the incidence rate
of MSDs since 19992000 and a levelling off in the earlier
rise in work-related stress (the rwo largest causes of ill
health and days lost).

63 Ower the last year we have paid particular attention to
communicating and engaging with stakeholders and
potential partners: key themes in the Commission’s Strategy.

Sress Programime

64 In 2004/05 we planned to reduce the incidence of ill
health caused by stress through a number of programmes:

= developing management standards and supporting
puidance for srress:

= encouraging emplovers ro follow existing guidance in
assessing the risk in their workplace in conjunction
with their employees; and

B encouraging stakeholders to share their knowledge
and form networks.

65  The Stress Programme has made significant progress

thiz year. We carried our a consultation exercise on the
stress management standards, targening secrors with high
rates of stress and using mainly electronic methods (through
the website and distributing a CD-ROM). The standards
were launched in Movember, and were well received by our
stakeholders. We are now ready o targer the sectors where
we need to have most impace.

66 The Programme has engaged key stakeholders
throughour the vear. This included exploring the issues with
human resource managers and a TUC representative, which
informed the development of the Stress Management
Standards. We have also helped to target the public sector
through work with the Public Services Programmee.

67  The website has continued ro be an effective means of
communicating, with up to 15 000 contacts registering per
month. We have established an online community to
facilicate informartion exchange, with around 500 people
subscribing to this service so far

68  HSE continues to work in close partnership with
Hertfordshire County Council to implement the Stress
Management Standards. Berween Seprember and
December 2004, 13 focus groups were held, involving
staff from across the Council’s Schools and Families
Department (with the exception of field social
workers). The findings, when combined with the
results from the HSE analysis tool, have provided a
useful basis from which to develop effective stress
inferventions.

Musculoskeletal Disorders Programe

6©9  Work-relared MSDs are the most common type of
occupational illness, accounting for over a third of all the
working days lost due to work-relared illness.

70 The latest staristics show that there has been a fall in
the incidence of M5Ds. However there has also been an
increase in injuries involving handling, lifting, and carrying.
These topics will be the subject of the HSE Backs!
campaign, which will take place in June/July 2003,

71 In 2004/05, we aimed to reduce the incidence and
number of working days lost by:

B runing stakeholders through Safery and Healkth
Awareness Days;

B commissioning research to provide scientific evidence
supporring the benefits of successful management of
MSDs:

B communicating, including producing guidance, and
undertaking further work ro updare the Marmal
Hardling Assessment Chart (MAC) tool wehsire.
The MSIY website has been successful this vear with a
significant increase in hits. In addition, we have
published and distributed the lifting aids leaflet
widely;

| promoting interventions, including a rargered
inspection programme and investigating where
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necessary. This work included training HSE and LA
INSpectors.

72  An HSE visit identified thar a company’s
management of manual handling risks was poor. The
company used HSE's MAC rool to carry out manual
handling risk assessments for three sample tasks:
heaviest load; most frequent load; and most awkward
load. Far-reaching changes resulred: cell
manufacturing was adopted and stores were delivered
straight to the cells where they were required. All
stores throughout the factory are now on colour-
coded shelves with 20 kg items only stored ar waist
heigh, lighter items stored at knee and chest height
and the lightest items ar floor and head height.
Incoming stores are colour-coded as they arrive and
tabbed with coloured tape or decanted into bins at the
appropriate height. The overall improvement in
efficiency (because of time and motion savings driven
by MAC tool results) was approximately 30% and the
MAC tool philosophy is now being rolled out in the
company’s European factories with massive potential
savings.

Disease Reduction Programme

73  The Disease Reduction Programme plans to achicve a

3% reduction in the incidence of occupational ill health

proposing to consult on a new occupational exposure
limir for respirable crysralline silica, which the
Advisory Commirntee on Toxic Substances approved;
developing COSHH-essentials further
(heepefwww.coshh-essennals.org uk);

piloting asthma SHADs, aimed at motor vehicle repair
body shops that use isocyanare-based paints. We will
roll these events our fully in 2005/06;

publishing new guidelines on detecting and managing
occuparonal asthma.

Mase and Vibration Programme

T

We set out to eliminare disabling levels of ill health

caused by noise at work (by 2030) and hand-arm vibration
(HAV) (by 2015) by:

u addressing m;m|.|I’:u;mn.'rtf:1'1|pp|.il.'n to reduce
EMISSIONS AT SOunce;

m  encouraging employers to take optimum cost-effective
MEASUres to reduce ex POSUTES

[ ] engaging workers to recognise risk and take
ApPropriafe preventive action.

78 A package of new regulations and guidance,

implementing European Directives on noise and vibration,
will inform and support this work.

79

At this early stage in the process, we are focusing on

developing, publishing and publicising the new regulations

caused by chemicals. We have undergone a period of change

in the last yvear and emerged with a bewer-targered
programme. We hope to achieve this target through
reductions in skin disease and occupational asthma, with
contributions from long-latency diseases flowing to
contribute to the next set of (post-2003) argers.

74

75
throughout the year, including GPs, LAs, leading academics,

Our communication work this year has included:

publishing new guidelines (aimed at GPs and practice
nurses) on detecting and managing occupational
asthma;

launching the UK Asthma at Work charter at the
TUC, which HSE worked on with other key
stakeholders;

hosting successful external workshops to look at
occupational respiratory disease and carcinogens.

We have actively engaged key stakeholders

rrade unions (TUs) and industry groups.

76 Throughout the year, the programme’s work has
included:

developing a new project aimed at reducing skin
disease in the hairdressing sector;

raising awareness of the new duty to manage
asbestos, by means of a campaign that included the
launch of a successful new video/DVD Houw are you

managingf;

and guidance. Following widespread consulation, the
vibration package has now been approved and we expect
the Vibration Regulations will come into force on 6 July
2005. The guidance is well developed and we expect to
launch and publicise both packages around the European
Week for Safety and Health in October. HSC is due to

consider the results of consultation on the proposed Noise

Regulations in April 2005.

80 A masonry company had reported several cases

of HAV ill health. Measurements showed that exposure

was above the recommended levels. The involvement
of HSE staff led to actions by the company, including a
revised HAVs assessment, reviewed procedures by their
accupational health physician, and the planned
purchase of a 3-axis CNC router to help alleviate the
problem. In addition, a design change in the ar
hammers (supplied from Italy) will help. The company
is in the Stonemasons Federation and plans to share
information on their improvements with other
members.

Occupational Health, Safety and Return to Work Swpport

Frogramme

81  In 2002/03, 33 million days were lost to occupational

ill health. HSE is committed to reducing the incidence of

work-related ill health by 6% and the number of working

days lost per 100 000 workers by 9%, based on figures
from 2004/05.
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%2 This programme of initiatives will improve
occupational health, safery and return o work supporr,
reducing the number of people who rake time off work due
to work-related ill health and et those who do ke tdme
off back into work as quickly as possible.

83  This year has seen the launch of Constracting Better
Healeh, an industry-led pilor scheme for consrruction
workers in Leicestershire, and the Better Health af Work
project led by Kirklees Metropolitan Authority in
parinership with local NHS trusis and Jobcentre Plus.

84  Building on this experience, we will launch Workplace
Healeh Direct in early 2006, The service will comprise an
Adviceline and a number of regional pilots delivered
through innovarive parmerships, as announced by ministers
in February 2005, The plan is 1o develope a national service
if the pilots are successful. Workplace Health Direct will:

] provide an on-site problem-solving service for SMEs;

] give advice and support to both employers and
wr:rkl.'r.*i; il]'ld

B idenrify the need for further specialist support.

85  In October 2004 the Minister for Work launched a
package of good practice guidance, including new web
pages, with the Government’s Framewark for Vocational
Rebabilitation. The Institute of Oceupational Medicine, on
behalf of HSE, has developed a sickness absence recording
ronl thar will help smaller employers measure sickness
absence and better manage the health of their staff. We
have worked with the TUC on a guide for trade union
representatives on return oo work that will be published in
summer 2005,

Injury reduction

B This programme Bock embraces the former Hazards
Programmes of slips and trps, falls from height, and
workplace transport, in addition to sector engagement work
in agriculture, manufacturing, commercial and consumer
services, transportation and urilities thar was formerly parr
of the Sector Strategic Programme. This year we have
developed the Injury Reduction Programme Block
significantly to bring together interlinked projects and
intervention work, Modelling of our planned interventions
will help us to rarger our efforts o achieve maximum
impact. Much of our project work has delivered
encouraging results over the last year (see paragraphs
87-116) - and the most effecuive elements will be carried
forward into future years.

Cross-enfiing imjury aclivity

BT A major joint enforcement project targeted
transport, distribution and warchousing, concentrating
on the key priority hazards of workplace transport,
MSDs, falls from height and slips and trips. Joint
visiting by H5SE and local authority staff resulted in a
total of 20 prohibition and improvement notices being
served. Working in partnership in this way allowed the

whale range of an organisation’s activities to be dealt
with together. In addition, the enforcing authorities
involved have a much better understanding of each
nther's roles, expertise and priorities. The improved
co-operation continues,

Slips and Trips Programme

B%  The latest statistics show that slips and trips remain
the most common cause of occuparional major injuries.
Slipping and tripping incidents account for 37% of reported
employes major injurics and must be tackled to pmvidr
cost-cffective safety management.

89  We worked to reduce the number of workers injured
by slips and trips by:

m  raining and supporting H5E and local authoricy
IHH.PE!EHIIM

®  working with key stakeholders to promote awareness
of and action on slips and tnips issues. This included
explaining to duty holders why and how to prevent
slips and trips, and encouraging employers to reduece
the risk;

B commissioning and undertaking research to identify
causal factors, trends and slip-resistance measurement
rechnigques.

90} This year we have emphasised partnerships, and
worked with sectors where there are high numbers of slips
and trips accidents, in ling with the HSC Communication
Strategy.

91 As well as working closely wirth our local aurthoricy
partners, we have successfully engaged with stakeholders
including the insurance industry, property management
companies, contract cleaning industry, architects, foorwear
suppliers, ITI, and leading health and safety organisations.
Through these stakeholders we continue to influence
employers,

92 Joint ventures with other organsations included a
public launch of the Slips Assessment Tool, key
presentations and exhibition stands and work to influence
risk management. There has also been positive coverage in
the press. We have developed a communication plan to
ensure key messages achieve maximum impacr,

93 Lecal incident information on slips identified
school catering as a key risk area. Investigations
showed a number of significant and high-risk
situations in dining arcas rather than kirchens because
of the use of linoleum and polished wooden flooring,
together with wetness being brought from ourside,
spillages and children's footwear. The council agreed
to take immediare steps to improve the flooring,
control spillages better and prevent wer floors. In
addirion, they started a county-wide campaign ro
reinforce the precautions in reducing slip risks.
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Falls fraom Height Programme

94  We aim 1o reduce the incidence of injury caused by
falls from heighe by:

®  implementing the Work at Height Regulations 2005;

®m  piloting sector-based approaches and working closely
with relevant stakeholders;

m  developing guidance on the use of work equipment
and safe working methods, where work at height
cannot be avoided;

®m  carrying out a targeted inspection programme, and
investigating where necessary.

95  Throughour the year we have made significant
progress in each of these areas.

96 In line with the Commission’s Strategy, a lot of work
has gone into targeting topics where we will be able to have
most effect. We have achieved this through piloting secror-
based approaches and a targeted inspection campaign, eg
developing a Toolbox Talk aimed at maintenance and
electrical fitters and how they use ladders and stepladders.

97  We have also made progress with implementing the
Work at Height Regulations. Two consultations rook place
on the Regulations, including one specifically on the 2 m
rule for the construction industry. This process included
meeting and engaging with key stakeholders. The
Regulations came into force on 6 April 2005.

98  Communication has been an important aspect of the
programme’s work, including guidance on safe working
methods where work at height cannot be avoided. We have
also seen a steady rise in hits on the websire.

99 A UPVC window installer fell from a ladder and
broke both legs. The cost of providing safe access to
difficule windows (eg above fragile roofs and
conservatories) was not considered when tendering for
work, resulting in pressure to cut corners to bring the
job in on price. An Improvement Notice was issued
and surveyors are now trained and required to assess
risks when tendering. The window systems have been
redesigned, so that they are lighter and most work can
be done from inside the building. Ladders have been
replaced by lightweight access platforms, which can
reach over fragile roofs and conservatories.

Construction Progranime

100 The construction industry is perhaps the last
remaining heavy industry of any size in Great Britain. I is
also one of the largest, employing up to two million people
and contributing some 8-10% to the Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) through an output of some £84 billion. It
has a fatal-injury rate of over five times the UK all-industry
average and is the cause of the largest number of worker
fatalities of any sector. Construction’s record on ill health is
poor, especially in relation to M5Ds, noise, HAVs, asbestos-
related disease, cement dermatins etc.

101 All but a few of the employing organizations are
SMEs and micros (self-employed and small employers),
This creates significant challenges for a regulator with finite
front-line resources and purts at a premium the resourcing of
other means of communicating key industry improvement
messages. Added to this, we need to achieve cultural change
in the deeply embedded artinudes of the construction
industry to its workers in order to deliver real progress.

102 The Construction Programme will shortly be entering
its fourth year. In 2004/05 we planned and delivered on the
following work with the aim of reducing the incidence of
injuries and ill health in the industry by:

| organising a high-level summit under the theme
Cumership, Leadership and Partnership, where more
than 200 senior executives and union representatives
committed to further action to improve the indusiry’s
health and safety performance. The event was
supparted by the artendance of the Minister of Stare
for Work and the Minister for Construction, Small
Business and Enterprise;

u taking forward co-ordinated interventions with larger
construction companics at board level and inte rvening
early on large projects with clients, designers and
CONITACTONS;

" carrying out targeted inspection programmes on the
principal causes of accidents and ill health. These
included nationwide blitzes focusing on key health
hazards in the industry (Healthy Handling) and key
safety issues (FaTals - falls, transport and lifting);

- revising the Construcnion (Design and Management)
Regulations 1994, associated ACOP and guidance;

a working with partners in the industry to deliver
SHADs for small businesses;

m taking forward health initiatives through the supply
chain. Our work with manufacturers, supplicrs,
clients and contractors led to the adoption of new
standards for the mechanical handling of kerbs;

(] in conjunction with industry partners, developing a
tool for managing occupational health;

m  working with stakeholders to deliver safety initiatives
to address significant issues, such as short duration
work at height, lifting operations, site traffic
management and road works;

m  investigating fatal and serious accidents.

103 The National Audit Office (NAO) completed its
review of HSEs work in regulating the construction
industry. The NAQ's report, and a subsequent report
prepared by the Public Accounts Committes, were
supportive of HSEs Construction Programme.

104 There are encouraging signs of progress within the
industry towards delivering the Construction Programme
rarget (the rate of fatal accidents in construction i5 now
25% Jower than 199972000, the rate for reported major
injuries is 15% lower and the rate for reported over-three
day-accidents is 25% lower).

105 A volume house builder set up a system to
develop traffic management plans including changing
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the build order with temporary haul roads to ensure
one-way systems and segregarion, The rraffic
management system now forms part of the initial
meetings with the site layout designers and the sales
department.

Workplace Transport Programme

106 We aim to reduce the incidence of injury caused by
workplace transport by:

] developing managemene standards for workplace
Eranspaort wses

B influencing the safe design, manufacture and use of
waorkplace vehicles;

B developing guidance, including char on *safe sire’
inspection tor inspectors; and

] commissioning targeted research.

107 Communication is the key to delivering this
programme and this yvear we have:

] raised our profile by placing marerial in a number of
trade and professional magazines and running a local
press and radio campaign;

B engaged stakeholders in the private and public secrors;

B worked in Europe to share material and discuss
approaches to driver- and vehicle-relared issues.

108 We have made good progress with developing new
ways of gerting information across o particular audiences

this year. Two new products will be launched in April 2005:

®  a web-based interactive roolkit for small businesses;
m 3 web discussion forum (in parmership with the
Freight Transport Association).

109 A rwo-week transport revitalising initiative,
comprising a major inspection and awareness-raising
programme, with HSE, Kent Police and all 13 local
authorities in Kent and Medway working together. The
aims of the initiative were to tackle the food chain in
Kent and specifically to promote the message of Safe
driver, Safe vebicle, Safe site: raise awareness of
workplace rransport safery and reduce workplace
transport risks: and create a parmership berween HSE,
local authorities and the police. Outcomes included
companies reducing transport risks by segregating
vehicles and pedestrians; reducing reversing;
reassessing risks; implementing monitoring
arrangements; training drivers and providing
information for drivers and others. One visit resulted
in a national supermarker chain rolling our risk
reduction measures to 265 stores, impacting on

122 000 employees and their conrractors. In addition,
108 MNotices were issued and over 50 dangerous
vehicles taken off the road. Media coverage reached an
estimated 1.5 million people.

Sector stakeholder engagement

110 Mamufacturing Manufacturing industry in Great
Britain accounts for around 20% of all reported injuries
and cases of ill health. The sector has seen a further small
decline in the number of workers directly emploved,
although the figure is sill over 3.5 million, with a similar
number of jobs in contracted services which are directly
dependent on manufacturing. Industries such as meral
fabrication, basic meral producrion, recycling of marerial,
woodworking and quarrying still have significant rates of
fatal and major injury. Rates of ill health, notably asthma,
dermatitis and noise-induced deafness, are consistently
higher in manufacturing than other industey sectors. The
main challenge is to engage with those stakeholders who
contribute disproportionately to injury and ill-health
sranisrics and o secure commitment o targered reductions
in injury and ill health, We also need to rackle the rising
aceident trends in the waste and recyeling industries.

111 HSE's Manufacturing Sector is working to improve
performance by:

m  sering clear targers for improvement with the poorest
pch-:}rming industrics:

supporting key intermediaries to lead within their
industries;

negotiating better ways of working with indusiry;
developing and publishing standards and guidanee;
supporting H5E and LA inspectors;

encouraging parmership initiarives to support the
attainment of rargets set out in the Reujrm'isiug
agenda.

112 A Revitalising network has been created, which is
engaging with leading health and safery playvers from
the various industries thar make up manufacturing.
This is acting as a best-practice showcase and
benchmarking group using practical case studies to
demonstrate that good health and safery also makes
business sense. A virtual community site, regular
seminars and themed conferences facilitate sharing
information.

113 Commercial and consumer services, transportation
and wtilities This group of industries accounts for

13 million employees working across a diverse range of
work activities in Grear Britain. Cur work builds on
experience in previous years and includes:

®  supporting key duty holders to develop stravegies for
sustainable improvements in performance. For
example, the ongoing intervention with Royal Mail
has led to a significant reduction in their averall
accident rare since 2000001;

®  developing partmerships thar do not rely on regulatory
enforcement to deliver improvements. Recent work in
health and safery in design ar Heathrow Terminal 5 is
a key example of this approach, and was submirred
for consideration for a national Government award;
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targeting key industry groups to support the reduction
of injury and ill-health levels;

supporting local authority inspectors in LA-enforced
SECIOrs.

‘I
114 Bus-operator audits showed thar most operators
were aware of the Departmenit for Transport’s (DfT's)
guidance on violence in Protecting Bus and Coach
Crews. A minority had already taken action to reduce
the risk of violence. Operators in urban areas
encountered a much higher risk of assaults than those
in semi-rural areas. This difference in risk has led 1o
different control strategies, but strategies include
improved physical protection, such as assault screens,
as well as CCTYV, fare safes and emergency radios.
Some operators are working closely with the police and
even experimenting with DNA spir kits and global
positioning system (GPS) tracking devices. All
operators are training drivers in aggression diffusion
techniques.

115 Agriculture Planned delivery 2004/05:

progressive engagement with stakeholders who can
influence industry, including rural forums, banking,
insurance, education/training sectors, retail supply
chain and social partners;

work with the Qualifications and Curriculum
Authority (QCA) and a number of national land-
based training organisations and awarding bodies to
develop vocational {and other) qualifications on
managing occupational health and safery;

provision of targeted information, advice and
guidance, including free interactive Farm self-
assessment software. The software, widely distributed
through trade press and available from the HSE
website, was well received by industry. It helps
farmers carry out their own risk assessments, has
raised levels of health and safety awareness and is
being trialled in the fresh produce retail supply
chain:

stimulating action among self-employed, family and
small farms through SHADs and local farmers” group
INSPeCtion events;

influencing safety through design, eg involvement in
standards, engaging with manufacturers and
importers of machinery;

promoting the development of occupational health
and rehabilitation provision and encouraging take-up
by the farming community;

continuing work on child safety in agriculure;
work with users and providers of casual and
temporary labour (including migrant workers) in
agriculture and the fresh produce sectors; in
particular, co-operation with the local Sea Fisheries
Committees in England and Wales to promote
guidelines for safe working in estuaries and ridal
areas developed out of the investigation of the tragic
deaths of 21 Chinese migrant workers in
Morecambe Bay in February 2004,

116 Through a variety of different local agricultural
parmners, we developed a more targeted ap-pm:lc'h o
small-farm problems. We developed mini-5afety
Awareness Days (SADs) based on a single farm to
which neighbours are invited. Less resource-intensive
than traditional agricultural SADs, they proved to be a
flexible, popular and cost-effective method of
intervention. Simultaneously, we developed a more
co-ordinated approach to the preparation of health
and saferv-related articles for local media and trade
press focusing on specific activities, eg harvest, as a
more effective way of targeting and amplifying the
impact of the mini-SADs, We have also developed
direction, guidance and training for health and safety
awareness officers (HSAOs) newly allocated to FOD's
Operational Field Management Units responsible tor
agriculrure.

Duays lost reduction

117 We aim po:

m  improve health and safety management in
government departments to reduce injury, ill health
and sickness absence;

[ | reduce the number of workers injured or made ill in
the health services,

118 Both programmes aim to achieve these goals by:

| influencing through key stakeholders including
other regularors;

m  agreeing targets for delivery;

m IMProving Management systems; and

m  ensuring compliance through targeted inspection
and investigarion where necessary.

Public Services Progranmme

119 Central government Delivering the joint Task
Force/Cabiner Office report on Managing sickness absence
in the public sector to the Chancellor {and publishing it on
8 December 2004) was a significant achievement this year
for the programme and for HSE. The report is enabling
strong links to be made with the wider efficiency and
public sector reform agendas by stressing the benefits to
delivery of having a fit and healthy workforce at work
rather than off sick - without which the impact of HSE on
ite own would be limited. These links give us a powerful
top-level driver, which applies across the public sector - the
key objective of the programime during 2004.

120 Early in 2005 we produced the Task Force Delivery
Plan and continued to forge alliances with our srakeholders
Ty

®  agreeing to pilor innovative approaches to sickness-
absence management with other departments,
including DWP, Inland Revenue, Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA}, and
HM Prison Service;
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m  holding a high-level meeting with the prison service to
identify key health and safety issues and a programme
of joint activity to tackle them. This will provide a
model for future interventions in other parts of the
public secror;

®  holding mectings with the Office of Government
Commerce (OGC), NAO, Audit Commission and
Arbitration Concilianion and Advisory Service (ACAS)
to explore joint agendas and involvement in the
Programime.

121 Health services In the health services sector, good
progress continued. During the year, the programme's work
has included;

®  conducting research on patient-handling training. The
research has produced a model question set to assess
manual-handling precautions in health care, and will
be piloted by early 2005/06 with a view o rolling it
out across Acute Trusts over the next two years, The
MHS% Back in Work Awards have identified more
good pracrice in parient handling;

] producing a slips and trips publicity p:l.::l-:agd: o
promote case studies and bese practice in managing
the causes of slips and trips;

] signing a concordat with the Counter Fraud Security
Management Service to agree working arrangements
and communication mechanisms on the management
of work-relared violence across the NHS (England);

] signing the Concordat between Bodies Inspecting,
Regulating and Awditing in Healthcare in June 2004,
which 15 co-ordinated by the Healthcare Commission;

B working clozgely with the Healthcare Commission o
integrare HSE inrelligence on the performance of
healthcare providers into its revised pcrl"nrnmm:::
assessment process, and to contribute expertise in
defining health and safery performance benchmarks
within the core and developmental standards of the
DoH Standards for Better Health;

] visiting PFl projects in the WHS o encourage safery in
building design, and berrer relanonships between
clienes, designers and contractors;

B holding new workshops and SHAD: aimed ar care
homes and primary care.

122 Phase 1 of a new iniriative ro implement the stress
management standards is due to commence in 40 NHS
trusis in May 2005, This is part of a wider project
including 100 large organisations across five priority
sectors. Specially rrained HSE inspectors (termed HSE Stress
Partners) will assist reusts to implement the stress
management standards and ACAS will provide some free
management consultancy 1o help trusts o change their
management systems if this is necessary.

123 NHS trusts continue to benefit from rargeted
HSE interventions looking ar the primary causes of
absence and ill health. In one case, a trust responded o
HSE's report by producing a management system
workbook using the HSE management model as a
template for long-term, sustained improvement, The

trust indicated that they welcomed the way in which

HSE's approach had been successfully moulded ro its
own internal goals. There has been evidence of this in
follow-up interventions by HSE inspectors.

124 HSE has, with the support of the LAs forum, initiated
engagement with LAs in their role as employers, We hope
to advance the Fitd Programme in this major employment
area, and o help deliver the 30% reduction in sickness
absence across the puhl'u: sector, as called for in the
Chancellor’'s March budger.

Major Hazards Strategic Delivery Programme
Owerview

125 This Strategic Delivery Programme focuses on HSE's
imporetant role in regulating and ensuring safe management
of those industries where failure to manage risks to health
and safety can lead to a catastrophic incident (ie where the
health and safery of many people, whether workers or
members of the public, 15 affected).

126 The industries covered include:

nuclear:

offshore oil and gas;

railwavs;

onshore major hazard industries - sites subject to
the Control of Major Accident Hazards Regularions
1999 (COMAH), eg chemical industries;

] onshore major hazard induscries not subject to
COMAH, eg hazardous pipelines.

127 The railway industry is not a major hazard in the
widely recognised sense; however, safety failures in it can
lead to incidents thar affect large numbers of peaple, hence
its inclusion within this Strategic Delivery Programme.

A mational target for major hazard industries

128 HSC/E has developed a national target for major
hazard industries:

To reduce still further the likelibood of catasirophic
incidents i key major bazard industries regulated by HSE,
by achieving a sustamned reduction in the level of precursor
incidents occurring in these industries aver the period

2004-05."

129 A ‘precursor incident’ is an event or group of events
thar indicares failure in systems controlling the risks from a
major hazard. T!'u::.-' are the links in a chain of causation,
which would be key elements in preventing certain
carastrophic ourcomes.

130 The targers represent the diverse range of industries in
the major hazards sector and have been agreed with key
stakeholders. A single aggregated indicator has not been
pursued because of the complexity of bringing rogether the
different data series. They are summarised in Table 1, which
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defines each targer and sers out baselines, Table 2 reports
on 2004/05 performance.

131 Projections for the end-of-year outturn are thar we
will be on target in three of the elements (offshore, onshore
and nuclear). The indicator for the onshore chemicals sector
continues to show year-on-year improvement and is
consistently better than target. Nuclear and offshore sectors
are also on track ro hir target.

132 The figures for rail are not represented, because, twice
during the year, the Rail Safery and Standards Board (R55B)
modified its Safety Risk Model on which the indicator is
based. This prevents meaningful comparison with
previously reported figures. However, there has been an
underlying average improvement in the number of
precursor events of about 5% per year since the original
baseline was set by the industry in March 2002. HSE Rail is
engaged in agreeing an improvement target that is relevant
across the industry and which is stretching, achievable and
can provide the basis for meaningful year-on-year
comparisons, H5E Rail also continues to be very active with
industry to ensure it deals with principal risks (level
crossings and irregular working).

Other HSE activities in major bazard industries 2004703
133 While precursor incidents provide measurable insights
into the way major hazard industries are controlling risk,
they do not form the sole basis for our intervention

SITAICEY.

134 The Strategic Delivery Programme aims to promaote
and demonstrate improved control of major hazards by:

Precursor indicator

[ | inspecting and enforcing the law in major hazard
industries:

[ Operating current permissioning regimes, including
safery case and licensing regimes; and
= working with stakeholders, including employers,

workers and trade associations, to ensure sound
control measures and that standards are maintained
of improved.

135 A snapshor of activities in each secror during 2004/05
can be found in paragraphs 142-214.

HAC policy statement on permissioning regimes

136 The dangers posed by major hazard industries mean
that they are regulated through regimes with higher than
normal levels of scrutiny and varying degrees of
‘nermissioning’ (often to meet international obligations).

A commitment in the Commission’s Strategy is that HSE
will review its safety case regimes to ensure that they
remain relevant and 11r|:p:|r:iun:|1-_‘ to the changing narure
of these industries in Great Britain, A sigmificant research
project has been undertaken this year to review the basis for
HSE's permissioning work, and the resulrs will be available
later during 20035,

137 For further information on this subject, see H5C's
Policy Statement: Our approach (o permissioning regimies
(hetp:/iwww.hse.gov.ukfenforce/permissic ming.pdf).

Delivery of the major hazards targets 2004/05

138 The targers set are given in Table 1:

Baseline Target

{to end of 2005/06)

(2001/02)

143 136
(5% decrease by 2006)

{10% year-on-year reduction]

179 168
(6% reduction]

Muclear Reports made to HSE by licence holders
which indicate a challenge ro nuclear safety
Offshore Major and significant hydrocarbon releases 113 74
Omshore Relevant RIDDOR-reporrable dangerous
(COMAH) occurrences (eg unintentional explosions,

failure of pressure systems)

Table 1 Major hazards targets
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Base Yr 2004405

L001.02 2003,/04

2002503

Cuarter 4 Tivtal

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3

Rail indicators

Signals passed ar 172 143 Serics Figures have not been presented, because for the second
danger discon- time within 12 months, RSSE has modified its Safery Risk
Track compromised 627 577 tinued Model on which the indicaror is based. This prevents
Derarlments (8] 36 and meaningtul comparison with previously reporred figures.
Acts of vandalism 921 741 replaced

Level crossing 182 176 with

ncidents Safery

Total 1965 1693 Risk Index

Satety risk index 101.7 86.9
Muclear indicators

Reports made to 143 156 110* 32 i 28 36 127
HasE |‘|:-.' licence

holders which

indicate a challenge

o nuclear safery

Offshore indicators

Major and 113 #5 g7 s 12 13 27 1 £3
sigmbicant

hydrocarbon

releases

Onshore indicarors (COMAH)

Relevant 179 155 154 37 40 13 30 130

BRI -
reportable
dangerous
ODCCUFTENCes (eg
unimtenticonal
explosions, failure
of pressure

systems)

Table 2 Major hazards indicators

* The ‘101" figure previously recorded was incorrect. The correct total is 110 (from figures for the quarters in 2003/04 of 32,
24, 26 and 28 giving the correct total of 110 for the period). Provisional etid-of-year 2003/04 figures for onshore were
confirnted as 154 instead of the 143 previously recorded.

* " The complex nature of the classification of hydrocarbon releases and the voluntary nature of the reporting system mean that
the figures are subject to change at a late stage. The fignre of 113 recorded in last vear’s Annual Report is now revised to 97,

M RCiedr

13% Despire the increase of incidents this vear compared
with last (which was a particularly good year), overall we
are siill on rrack to hir targer. The quarter-by-quarter
variations are not thought to be statistically significant.

Offshare

140 Although the actual outturns have risen during the

15

first three quarters, the quarter 4 figure has declined. Afrer a
disappointing increase in 2003/04 there has been a significant
reduction and the sector is on track 1o hir the target.

Ohrshore chemicals

141 The indicator is consistently better than targer and has
‘_ﬁhl:'ll“-'ll }'L".'If'l:.l-l'l"_ﬂ.':lr 'i111plﬂ'l"|-'r.!l!'lﬂ'l1[.



Health and Safery Commission Annual Beporr and the Health and Safery Commission/Executive Accounts 200

Offshore Safety Sector
Introduciion

142 HSE ensures that risks to people who work offshore
in the upstream petroleum industry and the diving industry
are properly controlled. It does this primarily through
assessing and verifying safety cases, supported by a
programme of inspection, investigation, enforcement, advice
and education. The core of the offshore safety regime is the
Offshore Installations (Safery Case) Regulations 1991,

We aim to revise these Regulations, to improve their
effectiveness while reducing associated bureaucracy.

143 OSD supports HSC/E's mission by working with
industry to enable the UK to become the world’s safest
offshore sector by 2010, and ro significantly reduce work-
related fatal accidents in the diving industry. Strategic
Programmes are in place that focus resources on the
reduction of major accident hazard risks, the unacceprably
high levels of major and fatal accidents, and occupational
health.

General overview

144 In 2004/05 for the offshore industry and the inshore
diving industry the current figures for fatal accidents are
zero and four respectively. The numbers of major incidents
are 48 and eight for the offshore industry and the inshore
diving industry respectively - very similar to 200304,

145 The offshore industry continues to develop an
occupational health incident darabase to capture ill health
{in addition to that covered by RIDDOR).

146 Serious challenges remain:

m  pressures to reduce operating costs compete with the
need to maintain integrity of ageing installanons;

m the industry is in transition from dominance by the
largest global producers to a mixed economy that
includes new-entrant international operators and
which is increasingly supported by major contractung
Eﬂmpﬂl‘liﬂs;

®  anincrease in the number of depleted fields giving rise
to an increasing number of platforms planned to be
decommissioned.

A snapshot of activities during 2004/05

147 General HSE and the offshore industry’s Step Change
in Safery organisation (an initiative to deliver a major
improvement in the industry’s safety performance) are
working together on a joint stand for the 2005 Offshore
Europe exhibirion.

148 HSE organised a major internarional conference for
senior representatives of the offshore oil and gas health and
safety regulatory authorities thar was held at the QE2
Conference Centre in London. The Duke of York hosted
the reception for this event at Buckingham Palace.

149 HSE introduced a news-sheet, Tea-shack News, that is
published twice a year and targets the offshore workforce.

1500 Installation integrity There has been considerable
stakeholder engagement focused on maintaining the
integrity of plant, equipment and structure critical to the
management of major accidents offshore, particularly for
ageing installations. We have regularly shared good practice
findings (arising from inspections) with industry bodies.
HSE has also worked closely with the industry to develop
relevant industry-wide performance measures. There are
indications from the data collected ro dare thar the
programme is beginning to have a positive impact on
performance offshore.

151 Reducing accidents in drilling and deck operations
During 2004/05 17 major-injury accidents in drilling and
deck operations were reported, six investigations were
completed, and five investigations were ongoing. There
were 22 drilling installation inspections and 13 inspections
of production platform deck operations.

152 Reducing occupational health risks HSE 1s conbnmuing
to promote industry awareness of health issues through
presentations, joint work with industry, and internal and
external guidance.

153 This included providing support for a benchmarking
study of manual-handling safety culture offshore. This
indicated high perceived standards by managers, supervisors
and the workforce for all aspects of manual-handling safety.

154 Reactive offshore intervention HSE carried out a
programme of interventions including 96%: investigation
of valid complaints and 98% investigation of incidents
requiring mandatory investigation. During the vear

646 incidents were investigated.

155 Inshore diving inspection Inspections continue to
reveal a wide range of standards but there is general
improvement in the planning and management of inshore
diving across all sectors. Unfortunately this has not been
reflected by a reduction in diving-at-work fatalities: there
has been an increase from zero in 2003/04 to four in
2004/05. The vear has also seen 25 recreational ‘not-at-
work® sports diving fatalities - the worst for many years.

156 Offshore research and developrent The final issue of
Offshore Research Focus was published in June 2004, Since
then information on OSD's research programmes has been
included in the Science and Research Outlook
{httpz/fwww.hsesro.com) that reports on all of HSE's science
and innovation activities.

157 Standards and external guidance HSE released Satety
Notices that deal with a number of issues including braking
systems on offshore cranes, helideck foam production
systems, acute health effects of hydrocarbon releases and
LAN-based fire and gas detection. HSE contributed to the
UKOOA-sponsored work by the Energy Institute to
catalogue current standards and guidance for the offshore
oil and gas industry and parricipated in the development of

19
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international standards for oftshore strucrures within
150 TORTISCET.

Onshare Safety Sector
Trrtrodiction

158 In consultation with relevane stakeholders, we aim 1o
reduce the risks of major accidents thar could affect both
workers and the public and also reduce the risks of injury
and il health in the following industries:

chemical manufacture and STOTAEe;
gas storage and transportation;
mining;

explosives;

biological agents.

159 HSE's operating plans for onshore safety identified
two key acrivities to fulfil our statutory duties:

[ enforcing the Control of Major Accident
Hazards Regulations (COMAH) 1999 at the
1100 ezrablishments where they apply: and

| ensuring compliance with health and safery
legislarion within the industries.

General overvien

160 H5Es Hazardous Installations Directorate (HID) can
report a successful year in delivering its plans for onshore
major hazard industries activities.

A snapshot of activities during 2004/05

161 Chemical smanufacture and storage As part of the
inspection plan to verify standards of compliance with
COMAH, the Comperent Authority (HSE and the
Environment Agency (EA)) inspected two production units
of a major chemical complex. The operator’s safery report
had identified the unir processes as having the potential for
major accidents with considerable on- and off-sive risks.
The inspections revealed standards below expecrarion,
The responsibilities of the senior management team were
redefined and new arrangements to improve leadership,
supervision, accountability and maintenance were
introduced,

162 Following the publication of the BP Grangemouth
report, HID has been working closely with industry and
trade associarions to gather best practice on developing
process safety performance indicators. An initiarive,
supported by the Chemical Industries Association, has
pramaoted the use of such indicators ar all the major hazard
sites. The United Kingdom Perroleum Industry Association
(UKPIA) has endorsed this programme and the use of
process safety indicators by member companies.

163 HSE has a statutory duty 1o provide advice to
planning authorities on new hazardous substance consents
plus the nature and siting of developments near 1o major
hazard establishments and pipelines, with the aim of
limiting rhe risks in the long term. We have processed

20

nearly 4000 planning applications and dealr with
73 hazardous substance consent FEQLESES OVET the last year

164 The Implementation of the Fundamental Review of
Land Use Planning Project (IFRLUP) is drawing to a
satisfactory conclusion with most milestones achieved.
Rolling out of the IT package PADHI (Planning Advice for
Developments near Hazardous Installations) is a major and
final task, which will bring the project to a close in
December 2005,

165 Gasipipelines Following enactment of the Pipelines
Safery (Amendment) Regulations 2003, HSE approved
Transco’s iron gas mains programme for 2004005, requiring
2882 km of mains to be decommissioned. HSE monitored
progress in accordance with irs policy and Transco has met
agroecd targets.

166 HSE has worked closely with Transco, trade unions,
the Office of Gas and Electricicy Markers (Ofgem) and
other gas industry stakeholders in preparing for Transco’s
proposals to sell four of its eight distribution networks.
H5E has finished assessing Transco’s revised safery case in
preparation for the sell-off in mid-2003.

167 Mines Our investigarion of the increasing number
of underground mine fires during the previous year has
resulted in the trend being reversed, with the operators
concerned revising their emphasis and procedures. We have
engaged with the largest operator to address shorcomings
for controlling very serious reportable falls of ground with
potential for mulnple faralities. To recover its position, the
company is revising irs ground control straregy. We have
consulted the main trade unions during the intervention
process,

168 Explosives Operators of licensed explosives sites
had submirted a significant number of the safety reports
assessed during the period. We provided support to this
group of ‘new entrants’ to COMAH who had encountered
difficulries in understanding and adequately responding to
the necds of the regularions.

169 In anticipanion of the proposed Manufacture and
Storage of Explosives Regulations 2003, we have
implemented revised quantity-distance rules for new
explosives licence applications. This has reduced the off-site
risks around sites handling smaller quantities of explosives.

170 Dwuring the year, we provided significant technical
support to other government departments and enforcing
authorities on security, safe handling and storage of
Ammonium niceate,

171 Biological agents The Biological Agents Unir has
continued to fulfil its statutory duties by operating
notification and permissioning schemes under the
Genetically Modified Organisms (GMO) (Contained Use)
Regulations 2000, and Control of Substances Hazardous
1o Health Regulations (COSHH) 2002,

172 Other activities carried out included providing
training and advice to HSE inspectors and local authorities
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on the control of legionclla; working with other government
departments on civil contingency issues in relation o bio-
security; providing advice and guidance to duty holders and
key stakeholders.

173 Process safery The Process Safery Corporate Topic
Group (CTG) has changed significantly. This has resulted in
a redirection of process safety specialist resources towards
front-line delivery of ourputs needed to implement the
Commission’s Straregy and deliver the PSA rargets.

Nuclear Safety Sector
Introduction

174 HSE is responsible for protecting the public and
waorkers from the activities of the ¢ivil nuelear industry
and parts of the nuclear defence industry. We do this by
operating a nuclear licensing regime. There are 40 nuclear
licensed sites of various sizes and types spread throughour
Great Britain,

175 The industry has been going through a significant
period of change and will continue to do so, especially
with the advent of the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority
(MDA}, which came into being on 1 April 2005, The
nuclear licensing regime and the HSE Nuclear Safery
Directorate’s (NSD’s) approach to regulating and
influencing such change ensures that people continue to be
protected and reassured that both nuclear safery standards
and the more general health and safety standards for
workers in the industry do not slip but are enhanced.

176 NSD uses a variety of approaches to fulfil its
regulatory oversight role in line with HSC/E's vision for
health and safety in Grear Britain. These approaches
include:

®  carrying out programmes of site inspections;

m  assessing safety cases for plant modifications, periodic
safety reviews, organisational changes etc;

®  investigating incidents and taking appropriate
enforcement action in line with H5Es Enforcement
Management Model (EMM];

m  engaging with stakeholders and working in
partnership with others to fulfil our purpose.

General overview

177 During the past year, NSD has met its prime strategic
goals - no major nuclear accidents and ensuring safe
progress in reducing the hazard potential from radicactive
wastes and nuclear decommissioning.

178 A significant aspect of NSD's work over the last year
has been working with DTI, other regulators and the
nuclear industry to ensure thar NDA is set up in a way that
delivers earlier nuclear decommissioning with high
standards of health and safety, for less cost, and with due
regard to environmental and security concerns.

A smapshor of other activities 2004/05

179  Conventional bealth and safety at nuclear sites N3D
has focused on raising awareness of health and safery
priority issues, in particular slips, treips and falls, working at
height, working in confined spaces and workplace
transport.

180 Relicensing and restructuring programmes MNSD has
successfully completed the project for the restructuring and
relicensing of British Nuclear Fuels (BNFL). This has been a
substantial and complex project involving significant
numbers of assessments and audit inspections at sites,
granting a large number of Licence Instruments and
relicensing five nuclear sires.

181 Environmental impact assessments NSD undertook
two public consultations and provided pre-application
opinions for two nuclear power stations, in accordance with
the Nuclear Reactors (Environmental Impact Assessment
for Decommissioning) Regularions. In addition, we received
two requests for consent to undertake a decommissioning,
project and accompanying environmental statements.

182 Safety Assessement Principles (SAPs) In December
2003 we started the project to revise NSD's 1992 Safety
Assessment Principles. The work has progressed well and
has involved engagement with other regulators and all
nuclear licensees on proposals for revised SAPs. We plan to
produce a document for public consultation by the end of
March 2006.

183 International work In accordance with the
international plan of work, NSI¥s priority has been
participating in the development of international nuelear
safety standards and practices. This is in the framework of
the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) and the
Western Furopean Muclear Regulators” Association. This
work continues to be of importance because of maves to
impose common nuclear safery standards within the
enlarged ELL

184 On behalf of the UK, NSD has participated fully in
preparatory work for the meeting of the International
Nuclear Safety Convention in April 2005. Work on nuclear
security has continued and NSD has taken the lead among
the G8 group to coincide with the UK presidency. We have
maintained bilateral contacts, particularly with the USA,
Japan, France and Ireland. NSD has continued to
participate in providing assistance to the regularory
authorities of Russia and Ukraine.

185 Nuclear skills NSD continues to monitor nuclear
power licensees” maintenance af essential research
capability, and can confirm that it is being supported as
agreed in our strategy. NSD is also satisfied that its nuclear
licensees have all the necessary expertise within their own
companies to undertake their operations safely. ND has set
down a strategy for nuclear skills and is working with other
government deparrments and agencies to implement it.
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Railway Safety Sector
Introduction

186 Our overall objective is to further reduce the likelihood
of a catastrophic event and, together with stakeholders, to
maintain an effective and efficient framework for
conoinuously improving health and safery on the railways.
This work supports HSC/E's Railway Strategy

{hetpaiwww hse.govoukirailwaysthscstrategy hem) and the
demanding Rail Delivery Programme (RDP) (as described in
paragraphs 188-189),

General overviens

187 Owerall, the safety record on Britain's railways
continues to improve, We have seen a downward trend in
accidents over the last ten vears. During 2004405, however,
there was a major incident at Ufton Nervet level crossing
when a high-speed train collided with a motor car and was
eventually derailed resulting in seven faralines,

188 Rail Delivery Programme HSE Rail (HMRI and Rail
Policy) underwent considerable change during 2004/05. Part
of this involved driving forward a major progeamme of work
under the framework of the Rail Delivery Programme, using
project working o achieve business, quality, and regulatory
improvements in line with actions recommended by Lord
Cullen (and subsequent Government commitments. to
railway safety).

189 Despite the challenging agenda, the programme has
delivered ro time and within budget. Of the 14 projecrs
within the programme, 11 have delivered their intended
intermediate outcomesfoutputs and are being implemented.
We have pur a new organisation structure in place for HMRI
and this is supported by improved processes for strategic and
business planning, which will ensure a clear line of sight
berween HSC/E's vision, mission, PSA targers, and delivery.

1900 Legislative reform Work to review and reform the
railway safery regulatory framework continued, We
developed detailed proposals and in Seprember 2004, HSC
published a formal Consultative Document containing draft
Railways and Orther Guided Transport Systems {Safery)
Regulations or *ROGS’. The aim has been to replace the
existing regulations® with a single ser of modernised,
coherent and risk-based regulations; and at the same rime 1o
implement large parts of the European Railway Safety
Direcrive (2004/49%EC). Following extensive consultation
with a wide range of stakeholders, HSC approved the draft
Regulations on 8 March 2003,

191 HSC submitred the draft Regulations to the Secretary
of State, but with the advice 1o delay signing them. This is to
allow the Regularions to be implemented at the same time as
DT regulations implementing the Interoperability Directives,
which have been delayed. The current expectation is thar
ROGS may be implemented around the end of the vear
12005).

* Railvays (Safery Case) Regulations 2000 (amended 2003), Railways (Safety
LCotical Work] Regulations 1994, and Railways and Ouher Guided Transport
Systemss (Approval of Works, Plant and Equipment) Regulations 1994

ik

192 Merger of HSE Rail with the Office of Rail
Regulation On 15 July 2004, the Government’s Whire
Paper The Future of Rail ser out the outcomes from the
review of the structure of Britain's railways. [t confirmed
that the responsibility for the regulation of railway health
and safery should transter from H5C/E to ORR. This move
requires primary legislation and rhe expecred dare for the
merger is around the end of the year (2005). HSC/E is
continuing to work joindy with ORR and IMT o ensure the
transifion goes smoothly,

A snapshat of activities during 2004/05

193 "'HSE Rail has continued to drive forward an
integrared package of work to further deliver the railway
scraregy (eg through inspection, safety case assessment,
targeted interventions, enforcement, policy advice, and
guidance). We continue to focus on driving down
catastrophic risk precursors as measured by RSSBs rail
satety risk model. We adopred the industry’s own target as
the rai|way!i element of the major hazards rarget (for
progress with the target see paragraph 132). However, this
rarget is seen as aspiranional and the railway industry, with
HSE Rail's encouragement, is reviewing it to establish a
maore robust and realistic targets.

194 Working with stakebolders HSE Rail works with key
industry stakeholders (including the RSSE, ORR and the
Strategic Rail Authority (SRA)) to help build and solidify

parmerships, and o present a clear picture of our role and
focus,

195 HSE Rail has also supported the development of the
Rail Accident Investigation Branch (RAIB), and provided
input into the Rail Accident Investigation and Reporting
Regulations (expected later in 2005) and the development
of a joint protocol and working arrangements between
RAIB, the British Transport Police (BTP), and HSE.

196  [nitial integrity and r’mfﬂy b}',l Jﬁigu isstees through
mspections, approvals, assessments and anthorisations
Throughout the year, HMRI continued to be involved with
major railway infrastructure projects to ensure satisfactory
resolution of safety issues and acceptable designs, and to
enable imely introduction of services. These included the
West Coast Main Line; Channel Tunnel Rail Link:
Heathrow Airport Terminal 5 Railway Projects; London
Cross Rail; Edinburgh Airport Rail Link; and the East
London Line.

197 Infrastructureftrack maintenance and management of
contractors HMRI carried out a programme of inspections
on track maintenance across representative selected
locations within Network Rail and London Underground
(LLUL) sysrems. Inspecrions were also undertaken on the
arrangements for the detection, prevention and management
of broken and defective rails by companies maintaining the
LUL track asset.

e e i
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198 Nerwork Rail complered its programme to cease
contractorised maintenance and to absorb seven
infrastructure maintenance businesses. HMRI closely
monitored this process and arrangements for managing
residual contracted renewal work, through the Network
Rail Change Oversight Project. While HMRI challenged
certain aspects of detail, we supported the objectives,
outcome and the change risk management system that
Merwork Rail emploved.

199 Level crossings A key project within the Rail Delivery
Programme addressed safety issues at level crossings, and
the outputs from a number of work streams have informed
priorities produced by the National Level Crossing Safety
Group (NLCSG), which is chaired by RSSB. HSE Rail
provides input to the NLCSG, which reviewed its
composition and work activities after the tragic incident at
Ufron Nervet.

200 Sigrals passed at danger (SPADs) HMRI works
closely with the industry’s programme 1o reduce and
mitigate SPAD risk (including inpur to industry working
groups and bilateral mectings with Network Rail). Overall,
the risk of SPADs on the mainline network has reduced by
67% since March 2001,

201 Train protection HSE has continued to monitor
delivery of the work of the Mational European Rail Traffic
Management System (ERTMS) Programme led by the
Strategic Rail Authority.

202 Route crime (trespass and vandalism) and assault
HMRI targets its inspections on trespass and vandalism hot
spots and produced revised guidance for inspecrors on
lineside security and lineside materials management, in
consultation with the industry. HMRI worked closely with
the industry’s National Roure Crime Group, and has
continued participation in its education programme fo raisc
awareness of route crime risks among young people.

HMRI has progressed work to develop route crime policy
and strategy.

203 Through active participation in the Rail Personal
Security Group, HSE is working with the rail industry in
tackling staff assaults. Benchmarks for compliance in
managing the risk of violence to staff were recently
published after consultation with the rail imdustry.

204 Incident investigations Some of the more significant
investigations that HMRI has been involved with include
the Ufton Nerver level crossing incident; LUL’s White Ciry
derailment; the Tebay engineering rrailer incident; and LUL'
Camden Town and Hammersmith derailments.

205 Employee (track worker) safety HMRI carried out
targeted interventions examining:

m  safery-critical communications standards between
track workers and signallers; and

®  practical application of Network Rail’s ‘RIMIND (risk
minimisation) standard governing the safety of track
waorkers during red zone working.
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206 HMERI iz producing reports containing
recommendarions to help the railway industry to improve
safery standards for track workers, HMRI has worked with
the industry o address the safe use of road rail vehicles and
other on-track plant, following a series of mcidents
invelving the use of this cquipment in track possessions.

207 Occupational bealth and slips and trips HMRI has
run special projects to investigate manual handling risks
among trackside workers, post-rraumatic stress disorders in
train drivers, minimising shp and trip risks, and hand-arm
vibration in railway workers. HMRI is developing revised
guidance on welfare provisions for railway workers.

208 Public inguiry reconmendations A Progress report
on public inquiry recommendations was published by HSE
in September 2004, Only 27 (of 293 recommendarions in
the four reports from public inquiries) remain to be
implemented.

209 Enropean Directives and ILGGRI (International
Ligison Group of Government Railway Inspectors) HSE
Rail provided inpur (via DT} 1o a draft proposal for a
Directive to harmonise standards across European urban
rail systems.

210 The European Railway Agency (ERA) published its
approved work plan for the year 2005/06. HSE Rail
reviewed the plans and identified key arcas thar impact on
the way safety is managed on Britain's railway network,

211 HSE Rail provided advice on safety aspects of the
proposed Social Parmers Agreement covering cross-border
workers.

212 HSE Rail attended meetings as part of the SAMNET
project funded by the European Commission to look at
common standards of assessment for safety management
systems required by the Railway Safety Directive.

213 HSE Rail continues to play a key role in ILGGRL
This work includes rationalising the structure of ILGGRI m
prepare for future work with the European Commission
(EC) on the harmonisation of safety certification. HSE has
launched and is hosting the new ILGGRI website at:
www.ilggn.org.

214 Channel Tunnel Safety Authority fCTSA) HSE Rail
has continued 1o support the work of the bi-national CTSA.
The UK Secretariat of the Authority is based within Rail
Policy, although the work of the Authority is independent
of HSC/E. The Authority plans to publish its own Annual
Report in September.
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Strategic Enabling Programmes

Local Authorities and HSE Working Together

215 LAs are responsible for enforcing health and safery
law in over a million premises and in relation to more than
12 million employees. This includes many in the services
sector, eg offices, shops, retail and wholesale distribution,
hotel and catering establishments, perrol filling stations,
residential care homes and the leisure industry.

216 LAs have a pivotal role to play in ensuring that risks
in the changing economy are properly controlled, With the
growth of services, these enforcement responsibilities have
become increasingly important, The Commission’s Strategy
miakes it clear that HSE and LAs need to work in a closer
partnership in order to support a consistent approach to
business, and to make the best use of HSEs and LAs
combined resources, It also acknowledges thar delivering an
effective parmership may require changes to current ways
of working and existing institurions, if they prove ohsracles
o Progress.

217 In response, the Executive established this Strategic
Enabling Programme to deliver the Commission’s Strategy
in respect of the new parmership berween HSE and local
government. The first step was to develop a joint approach
to setting up and delivering the Programme with LACoRS
as a practical means tor representing local government at
the heart of the Programme.

218 Good progress has been made in the first year of the
Programme, Initially, we concentrated on developing both
the principles for the partnership and for engaging widely
with the LA community. A key thread for all elements

of the Programme is communications - with some

410 individual LAs, and with the various interests, such

as the mational HSELA Enforcement Liaison Committee
(HELA), elected members of LAs, senior officers,
practitioners, and the professional institutions such as the
Chartered Institute of Environmenral Healeh (CIEH) and
the Royal Environmental Health Institute of Scotland
(REHIS). There are also some challenges in raising HSE's
collective appreciation of the role of LAs and the part they
can and do play in the wider safety system. The
establishment in 2004, by LACoRS, of a Health and Safety
Policy Forum has been a particularly helpful mechanism for
communicating and engaging with LAs.

219 A guiding principle has been that the partners
themselves should undertake the development of a
partnership, Thus, the direction of the Programme is
through a Programme Board jointly chaired and staffed by

24

HSE and local government officers. A second principle - the
partnership’s dependence on the support of LA politicians -
has been recognised through a Steering Group of
Commissioners and LA elected members. The first and
critical output of the joint programme was a high-level
agreement (the *Statement of Intent’), setting out the
commirments that provide the framework of objectives for
the Programme. HSC/E and LA representative bodies
agreed this in July 2004. In summary, it commits the parties
o

m  developing an effective parmership berween HSE and
LAs, making the best use of their respective strengths
to tackle narional, regional and local priorities for
health and safery;

a joint approach to developing the parmership;

improving communications between HSC/E and LAs,

including LA involvement in the development of
policy advice o HSC, and in the planning and
delivery of operational activities;

m  providing information, guidance and support to
enforcing authorities equitahly;

B examining and adapring as necessary the instirutions
and legal framework which currently underpin the
relarionship berween HSC, HSE and LAs;

®  developing arrangements for monitoring and audirting
the work of the enforcing authorities that properly
reflect the starus of HSE and LAs as partners;

m  contributing effectively to current and future
initiatives to improve the consistency and
co-ordination of central and devolved government
requirements which impact on regulatory services,

2200 The programme has planned its detailed work in four

distinct arcas:

front-line work and interventions;
governance and management arrangements;
support programme; and

COMMUNICATIGNS.

221 Current work underway includes:

B mapping and promulgating existing good practice in
partmership working beeween HSE and LAs. The
initial ourcome was the publication of a Best Practice
guide in March 2005;

B the establishment of partnership teams in each of
HSE's geographical divisions aimed at working ar a
strategic level with LAs as well as building local
relationships ar *practitioner’ level;
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B reviewing the Enforcing Authority Regulations 1998
(the legal framework underpinning the relationship
berween HSCE and LAs) to ensure they are fit for
purpose and support the partmership and associated
new ways of working;

m  reviewing the HSC/E-LA liaison and governance
arrangements, including HELA, to adapt the existing
arrangements so they are best shaped to support the
longer-term partnership;

m  developing an IT-based ool (an extranet) 50 as to
better share information and enable communication
berween HSE and LAs;

m  identifying and assisting in the training, information
and support needs of LA staff. Research by King's
College, London, has provided a picture of the
current position and identified areas for the
programme to Concentrare on;

[ ] making science and technology support available 1o
LAs, including the provision of £5 million over four
vears for this purpose.

222 The annual HELA conference in December 2004
emphasised the commitment by HSE and LAs to develop a
practical and effective partnership. The keynote speaker
was Philip Hampton who spoke strongly in support of the
Programme objectives, which resonated with his views of
how regulation needed to adapt and deliver what business
necds.

223 On the day-to-day fieldwork of LA enforcement
officers, there are encouraging signs thar more LAs are
adopting the topic-based approach ro inspection {as
endorsed by HELA), reflecting the prionities for action
identified by HSC. This approach will be supporred by the
growth of joint fieldwork with HSE under the Programme,
and also reflects the conclusions of the Hampton repory
about the need for regulators to ensure that their
interventions are driven by assessments of risk.

224 The Programme aims to have secured the key
elements of the parmership, and the various mechanisms to
sustain it, by the end of the 200506 work year.

Worker Involvement

225 We have been working with stakeholders to devise a
programme of activitics to deliver HSC's Collective
Declaration on Worker Involvement thar was published in
March 2004. In February 2005, the Commission approved
the programme in principle. It is based on:

®  promoting innovative ideas for encouraging more
worker involvement through the intervention of a
workers” safety adviser, in the first place through
administering the Workers' Safery Adviser (WSA)
Challenge Fund (see paragraphs 229-233);

®  securing widespread stakeholder commitment to the
idea of worker involvement as a key component of
sensible health and safety management; while in
parallel commissioning research 1o improve the
evidence base for the impact of worker involvement
on health and safery outcomes;

(] capturing, publishing and promoting case studies of
effective worker involvement that demonstrate
practical business benefits (not just health and safery
benefits) and pracucal benefits for individuals;

= communicating to stimulate changes in attitudes and
beliefs so that people feel thar health and safety s
worthwhile, worker involvement in health and safety
is sensible and getting involved is the right thing 1o do;

] stimulating the provision and take-up of training in
appropriate skills and knowledge (including but not
limived to the 10 000 safety representatives who
undertake training each yvear);

m  providing better guidance and web-based resources for
inspecrors, employers, safety representatives and
workers who are not gnion members; and

B showing leadership from HSE and local authorities.

226 The programme also includes a project to consider
some regulatory changes, namely:

| a new duty on emplovers to consult safety
Ti:pl'l‘.‘!il::ﬂtﬂ!i'lfﬁ's- on risk assessments;

B anew dury on emplovers to respond to safety
representatives’ representations; and

[ to clarify when safery representatives can represent

employees at workplaces other than where they work.

227 The intention of the Programme is 1o create a climare
for effective dialogue between employers and workers, in the
belief that this will lead to an ever more constructive
partnership berween employers and workers in health and
safery marters. In this way, we will contribute to the
development of high-performing workplaces. In the long
term, it will also reduce the need for formal regulation.

228 HSE has worked closely with TUs on several issues
relating to worker involvement, including:

[ ] revising the accident book so that those injured at
work can give consent to disclosure of information
abour their accident to safery representatives; and

m  publishing information about workers” health and
safety rights in 22 languages.

Workers' Safety Adviser Challenge Fund

229 This is a grant scheme designed 1o increase worker
involvement and consultation through the intervention of a
WhA.

230 The first yvear of the WSA Challenge Fund has been a
success, Announced by the Bt Hon Andrew Smith MP in
October 2003, Bill Callaghan formally launched the fund on
31 March 2004 and projects began on 1 July 2004, DWP
has allocated funding of £3 million over a three-year period
for projects that develop and improve worker involvement
and consultation in occupational health and safery in SMEs.
Project North East, a not-for-profit enterprise based in
Newcastle-upon-Tyne, has been appointed to manage the
fund on behalf of HSE, and Greenstreer Berman has been
appointed to evaluate it.

25
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231 In the first year, 12 projects were successful in the
competition for funding. Each project was awarded
between £33 000 and £100 000. Winners were from a wide
range of industries, including construction, hospitality, rerail
and the voluntary sector. Project partners included trade
unions, rrade associarions, local authorities, primary care
trusts, voluntary and business organisarions.

232 Some projecrs have been over-subscribed with
employers who want to join the scheme. Other projects
have had o sav *no’ to emplovers who wanted to
participate but who were outside the scope of their projects
remit. Several projects have reported thar their WhAs have
faced real challenges in sarisfying the demands of employers
and workers on their nime, once they had gor into
orgamsations and raised the level of health and safery
AWATENCSS,

233 Inone project, 17 separate businesses locared in one
premises were tackling health and safery in solation. The
WSEA encouraged these organisations to work topether and
helped them to establish a health and safety committee thar
included workers from each firm, topether with
representatives from the building management ream. The
committee has discussed a number of key issues and helped
firms to improve their health and H:‘Lﬁ.‘t':-‘ MAnAgEment.

Business Involvement

234 HSC/E can report considerable progress during the
course of the year in taking forward measures 1o promote
and encourage awareness of the importance of greater
corporate responsibility for health and safety and the
business and social benefirs this approach brings.

235 Evidence from H5E research shows:

[ | increasing numbers of boards of direcrors of
organisations in all sectors are providing leadership
and direction on health and safery in line with HSC
guidance, Directors’ responsibilities for bealth and
safety (hupdiwww.hse.govuk/pubnsfindg343.pdf);

B a growing number of large organisations are reporting
publicly on their health and safety performance in line
with HSC guidance, Health and Safety in Annual
Keports
(heepeffwww hse.govouk/revitalising/annual .htm).

236 During the course of the yvear, HSE has undertaken
waork to build the evidence base and develop tools for
stakeholders (including business, institutional investors,
insurers, employers and trade unions) to further our goal of
achieving greater corporarte responsibility and
accountability:

®  HSE published a series of case studies in February
2005, including Hilton International and Buckingham
County Council, exemplifving the business and social
benefits of director leadership on health and safety:

B in aummn 2004, HSE published a series of case
studies demonstrating the business benefits of a range
of initiatives designed to improve health and safery -
a number of these case studies, including Associared

Ocrel and the Porr of London Authoriry, fearured in a
naticnal publicity campaign run by H5E 1o promote
health and safety in spring 2005;

] HS5E 15 currently developing the Corporate Health and
Safety Performance Index (CHaSPI) and the health
and safety performance indicator for SMEs to assist
employers 1o improve their management of health and
safety. These initiatives will also provide influential
stakeholders, including investors and insurers, with a
toel o help them to engage more effectively with
organisations to drive health and safery
improvements. The SME indicator was launched in
December 2004 - HAE is planning to launch CHaSFP
in July 2005;

[ research is currently underway to examine the drivers
thar motivate and influence directors to take
responsthility and provide leadership on health and
safety and to explore how directors exercise those
responsibilities.

Swvall businesses

237 In Seprember 2004, Small Business Commuissioner
Judith Donovan established the Small Business Forum to
ensure that the *voice” of small business is heard by HSC/E.
The aim of the Forum is to consult organisations involved
in working with or advising small businesses and to ger
direct feedback, through their knowledge and experience, of
health and safery issues in the small business serting. Forum
members are generally representatives from trade
associations in sectors where small businesses are
predominant,

238 The Forum acts as a sounding board for new
operational and policy initiatives. The intention is o
improve assessment of proposed policy and legislation to
ensure it fully rakes account of the real impact on small,
and more particularly, on microbusinesses. HSE recognises
that very many small and microbusinesses are very keen not
only to comply with health and safery legislarion, but
would like to work towards higher standards rather than
just complying with the law, but they need some help. So
the Forum also scrutinises developing initiatives o ensure
that they are small-business friendly. The Forum is a
demonstration of HSES commitment to “Think Small First',

239 HSE and LAs have continued to work together o
improve health and safety management in small businesses.
The FOD North West Division worked in partnership with
17 other agencies (enforcement and private) and voluntary
SECIOr organisations o provide an event where small
businesses got to meet those organisations which can help
them stay safe and healthy, comply with employment
legislarion, ger the funding they need and operaie
successfully. HSE's highly successful SHADs have continued
1o engage with small businesses, particularly in the farming
sector. HSE has also developed partnerships with
Businesslinks at local level and is raking parr in their mulri-
agency programmes to provide information and support o
small businesses.

240 HSE is working closely with
www.businesslink.gov.uk, the designated government porral
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Supporting HSE’s programme delivery

Policy

245 The overarching objective of the Policy Enabling
Programme is for HSE to lead the way in applying the
Government’s Better Regulation principles, while
supporting delivery of the Commission’s Strategy and PSA
targets. We describe this as *“Regulating for Results’. This
work includes the Business and Worker Involvement
Srrategic Enabling Programmes.

Better Regulation

246 HSCE aims to be a leading performer in applying the
Government's Better Regulation principles. Both HSC and
HSE have followed such principles since the early 1990s,
They are embedded in policv-making and enforcement, and
underpin the Commission’s Strategy. Some indicators of
Better Regulation performance for the vear are provided as
follows:

Regulatory reform action plan (REAP)

Measures in RRAP 11
Complered 4
On target 4
Slipped 3
Dropped [i]

247 A simplificanion measure completed during the vear
repealed most of the Explosives Act 1875 and 37 items of
secondary legislation relating vo the manufacture and
storage of explosives, and replaced them with a single ser
of regulations. The measures that have slipped are being
reassessed to bring them inro line with the Commission’s
Strafegy.

248 New measures will also be added during 20035, For
example, on 31 March 2003 consultation ht-gall On
proposals for a single ser of regulatons covering
construction work. The proposals aim to reduce
bureaucracy and improve the general business management
of construction projects.

249 HSE has undertaken addinonal work not currently
mcluded in the action plan, to help stakeholders meet their
legal responsibiliies. An example of this is its work as a
member of the Strategic Forum for Construction in
contriburing o the publication of Kespect for People - Code
of Good Working Health and Safety Practice. The code is

%

designed to encourage commitment to higher standards of
health and safery. It sers our the key acrions thar
stakeholders can take to raise the industry™s health and
safety performance. It highlights leading issues thar should
be addressed and provides a ready guide to key information
sources for those seeking to bring about change other than
by reliance on the regulator.

Delivering Regulatory Refunﬂ Oiriders (RROks)

250 HSC/E has not made use of RROs, Almost all health
and safery legislation is secondary (made under the Health
and Safety at Work etc Act 1974) and there has been no
need to reform the primary legislation,

Regulatory impact assessment (RIA)

251 HSC/E has achieved 100% compliance with the RIA
process. A RIA was produced for all policy proposals that
had an impact on business, charities or voluntary bodies, in
compliance with Cahiner Office guidance.

Examples of effective RIA use

252 HSE has used a cost benefit analysis approach to
policy development since the early 1980s. This now forms
a key part of the Government’s RIA process.

253 A RIA was developed for HSEs work-related stress
management standards. Although the srandards are an
alternarive to legislation, HSE considered a RIA would
demonstrate the business case for tackling stress and show
that the proposed approach could integrare with existing
management systems at minimal cost. The RIA also
highlighted the need for additional case-study research ro
provide quantifiable data on the benefits of stress
INEErVENTLONS.

Plans to improve RIA gnality

254 HSE's economists have rraditionally carried our much
of the work in developing RIAs. During 2004/05 policy-
makers have become more engaged throughout the process.
This is encouraging more coherent and transparent policy-
making. Work is also under way to produce better estimates
of compliance rates. A model is being developed that should
allow HSE ro estimate expected levels of compliance with

proposed policies.

255 HSE will review and update internal guidance on RIA
development to ensure that it fully implements Cabinet
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Office requirements; it will also implement forthcoming
MAQ recommendations where HSEs RIAs fall short of best
practice.

Consultation

256 During the 2004 calendar year, there were 19
consultations started. OF these, 18 lasted 12 weeks or more.,
There was one limited consultation period, which relared o
the Work at Height Regulations - HSC approved a follow-
up consultation period of six weeks to focus on a specific
issue identified during previous extensive consultation.

Consultation best praciice

257 HSCGE has a long history in consulting stakeholders;
HSC has a statutory duty to consult before proposing new
or revised regulations. HSE begins consulation at an early
stage in policy development, eg using a discussion document
to draw in new ideas and develop stakeholder ownership
ahead of a full consultation exercise. This approach has
been used in reviewing the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases
and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995, The
discussion document was developed with the help of key
stakeholders, who were invited to discuss HSE's plans ar a
public forum event.

258 Examples of effective consultation during 2004
include a proposal (derived from an EC Directive) to ban
cement containing hexavalent chromium. Consultation
indicated that it was those down the supply chain (i
cement preparation manufacturers and other end-users of
cement) who were least prepared for the change and, in
some cases, faced major challenges in achieving compliance
when the ban became law. Subsequently, HSE and the
cement manufacturers convened a working group
representing relevant trade associations, workers and
enforcing authoritics. The group members identified issues
and solutions, and developed and disseminated information
tailored to their constituencies. In addition, the enforcing
authorities adopted and publicised a ‘light touch” approach
to enforcement for the first year.

259 During development and piloting of HSE’s work-
related stress management standards, but prior to public
consultation, HSE engaged extensively with stress experts
and employee representatives. Engagement was through a
series of interactive workshops, followed by email updares.
For the public consultation exercise, HSE developed an
online consultation page and feedback tool. It also hosted a
discussion forum for registered contributors. The
consultation campaign was supported by the distribution of
650 000 CD-ROMs to target secrors, via selected
publications. The CD-ROM contained an introductory
video, the consultation documents and a link to the website.
These initiatives ran alongside the usual consultarion
methods. The online consultation enabled H5E to monitor
progress and address problems at an early stage. Interim
reports informed the development of the final standards i
parallel with the consultation progress. This enabled the
standards to be launched to target on 3 November 2004.
The online discussion group encouraged sharing of views on

the proposed standards and the scale of the consultanon
has helped raise awareness of HSEs work in this area.

Alternatives to regulation

260 During 2004 HSC/E reviewed its legislative
programme, reshaping it in the light of new priornnes,
Better Regulation principles and the availability of
resources. Sixteen proposals were stopped and a further
eight were put on hold pending considerarion of alternarives
to legislation.

261 The management standards, offering pracrical advice
to businesses on stress at work, were developed as an
alternarive to imposing potentially burdensome regulations,
The standards were designed to help emplovers meet
existing legal duties, ie to carry our a suitable and sufficient
assessment of the risks ro the health and safery of their
emplovees. The standards are supported by guidance and
tools, which are available on HSE's website ar:
htepaiiwww.hse.gov.ukfstress/standards. These enable
employers and employees to work in partnership to identify
the causes of stress, develop locally-relevant solutions and
prioritise actions.

Commitments fo review regulations

262 HSE has an integrated research programme that
addresses bath generic and specific occuparional health and
safety issues across the complete spectrum of HSC/E's
regulatory responsibilities. This includes work contributing
to the review of regulations. RIAs of all major proposals
contain a commitment to review the regulations, For
instance, a baseline is being established to enable future
evaluation of the Work at Height Regulations.

Transparency of implementation plans for Enropean
legislation

263 HSEs Enronews publication provides updates on the
progress of health and safety-related European legislative
proposals, from inception to adoption and fransposition
into UK law. Five editions are published each year as a hard
copy insert to the HSC Newsletter. Euronews is also
available on the HSE website at:

hepa/fwww. hse.gov.uk/aboutus/europe/euronews.hum.

Commaon commencement dates

264 HSE implemented common commencement dates with
effect from 2005, the second government body ro do so.
This means that, with ministers” agreement, regulatory
changes arising from within the UK will be implemented on
only rwo dates each year, ie 6 April and 1 October. HSE
will also aim to do this for regulations originating from
Europe where possible. In February 2005 HSE issued its
first biannual statement of what the expected changes
would be. Harmonising commencement dates should help
those affected (ie businesses, employee representarives and
individuals) to be more aware of forthcoming changes and
better able to plan for and implement new measures
effectively.
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The Hampton Review

165 The Hampton Review considered, with business,
regulators, and in consultation with the Better Regulation
Task Force, the scope for promoting more efficient
approaches to regulatory inspection and enforcement while
continuing to deliver excellent regulatory outcomes. We
share this aim and have been actively engaged with the
review team. HSCVE looks forward to implementing the
review's recommendations,

266 Full details of HSE's legislative activities during
200405 can be found in Annex 2.

Communications
Clperpien

267 We built up and reorganised our communications
capacity during the year to achieve some fundamental
changes - a shift from reactive and racrical initiatives o
strategic communication, and from providing information
to changing behaviour.

268 With reinforcement of our communicarions team -
including account managers to handle campaigns and
co-ordinare internal client needs - and some solid successes
in our first year of the new Communications Directorate
and Communications Delivery Service (described in
paragraphs 270-289), we are well positioned to shift next
year into more large-scale campaigning,

269 Resulis of our first surveys to baseline our
communications tell an encouraging story. We continued to
score high on familiarity and favourability with citizens,
employees and employers in a repeat MORI poll. We were
particularly delighted to learn how high our stock is with
chief execurives - some 90% of them rated us favourably.
Their attitudes to health and safety were similarly positive
with nearly four in five agreeing that health and safery
benefits their company and 65% that health and safety
requirements save money in the long term.

Chur strategy

270 We started the year with Board and HSC agreement
o a new communications straregy. Built on the seven
objectives set out in headings below, the communications
strategy focused our corporate communications activity on
key target audiences: staff, national government, and key
stakeholders and opinion formers.

Reovganising communications

271 We reinforced our capacity to integrate corporate
communications with new teams to improve stakeholder
engagement and internal communications, and set up a new
account management function within the Communicarions
Directorate to manage major campaigns and help internal
clients develop communications acriviey.

272 In October, we converted our Directorare of
Information and Advisory Services into a Communications

A0

Delivery Service and reorganised it into Online Services, a
new Commercial team charged with generating income
from publications and a Creative Services ream bringing
design, editorial and publicity resources together.

273 A nerwork of communications partners throughout
the organisation provided a valuable channel for collecting
staff views and spreading informarion about
COMMUNICATION PriOTities.

Promaoting the case for bealth and safety

274 With a new focus on key stakeholders, including
parliamentary and political stakeholders, Commissioners
promoted the sensible health and safery case at party
conferences in autumn 2004 and Bill Callaghan hosted a
round-rable dinner event in January to promote a debate on
risk. He continued the theme in 2005 ar a March seminar
on risk and compensarion addressed by the Lord
Chancellor. Commissioners’ extensive activities to promote
health and safery messages with stakeholders are detailed in
The Commission’s work during 2004/05 on page viii.

275 Our campaign to promote the business case for healeh
and safety ran in February with advertising in national and
trade press and on radio, supported by direct mail and a
website. The campaign secured over 22 000 visits to our
Better Business website and over 5000 copies of the
campaign booklet were downloaded. The theme will be
continued next year at conferences and other high profile
events, We started work on large-scale new campaigns to
run later in 2005 on back pain and slips and trips.

Presenting a clear picture of HSEs role

276 New media rracking data available from October
2004 onwards showed our coverage evenly divided between
positive and neutral and only 7% negative coverage. But
the national press continued to misattribute to HSE various
*bans’ - mountain climbing without scaffolds, Maundy
Thursday foor washing in church, hanging baskers, conkers
without goggles, swimming pools. We shall continue to try
to set the record straight on what sensible health and safety
means.

277 A News Centre on our website was introduced 1o
provide journalists with easy access to HSE information,
and our Press Office publicised interventions and
enforcement activity including the outcome of prosecutions.

278 Throughout January-March 20035 we ran a trial to
boost support from the Government Mews Nerwork to our
Yorkshire and Humberside FOD regional team to test the
impact on the quantity and quality of media coverage. By
the end of February the impact on volumes was clear -
coverage had increased significantly compared to other HSE

Regions.

279 Information remains an important part of whar we do
and ar the core of this work is:

B the HSE website - each month over 530 000 visitors
made 1.6 million visirs:
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m  HSEdirect, which provides access to H5SE information
by subscription;

m  HSE Books, distributing publications, videos, and
electronic products;

[ ] Infoline, our contact centre, which handled over
270 000 inquiries with high service standards - 83%
of calls answered within 15 seconds and all queries
responded to within ten days.

Building partnershijrs

280 We identified the need for more co-ordinared and
focused approaches to key corporate stakeholders and
commissioned research from the Central Office of
Information to provide an evidence base for prioritising our
effort and developing plans. We concluded thar we needed
to focus on a small number of key stakeholders of critical
importance to delivering our rargers. We put in place
arrangements to co-ordinate our communications with
them.

281 Major corporate events to build partnerships included
a chemical industries seminar in March, the Construction
Summit in February, and a meeting of heads of
communications from organisations with a major health
and safety interest, who agreed to work more closely in
order to achieve greater communications impact. The
Commission also held irs first open meering, which was
well attended by a wide range of stakeholders.

Internal communications

282 We gave high priority to improving staff
communications during the vear (in response to staff survey
information which showed dissatisfaction). We reviewed
our internal communications channels - a house journal,
global emails, and other management communications
systems. In response to comments collecred we launched a
redesigned journal, an electronic weekly briefing system, a
new corporate ‘cascade’ briefing system and re-reviewed
them at the end of 2004, Further changes will be made 1o
respond to staff views,

283 We listened to staff requests for more visible
leadership and organised 30 roadshows in 2004 led by the
Director General, Chair and Commissioners. These reached
1200 staff and a further round started in early 2005, These
events are complemented by more Board visits to HSE
offices and a hands-on role for board members in health
and safety tours. The Director General launched a website
for direct inquiries from staff, resulting in 62 inquiries and
6000 visits to his homepage by the end of March 2(H5.

284 Major internal campaigns were run to keep staff
informed about pay negotiations, our new Merseyside
Centre, a reorganised programme structure, and health and
safety campaigns on MSDs and display screen work.

Strategic communications
285 We developed new infrastructure arrangements (new

planning, information and project tracking systems) to
accompany structural and organisational changes to

improve co-ordination and integration of our
COMMLUNICATIONS.

286 The Board agreed that we should continue to aim to
generate £5 million revenue from a smaller range of priced
publications and other products. We started the process of
converting free and priced publications for the web and will
step up these efforts in 2005/06.

287 We developed a new brand identity during the vear,
which retains our existing logo. Thiz was applied to new

pu blications, new promorional material, our website, an HSE
PowerPoint template, and - as stocks are depleted - to new
stationery.

288 We invested in research to underpin our efforts to
improve communication. We baselined our activities with
stakeholders and main target aundiences. A repear MORI
survey confirmed atticudes to health and safety and HSE.

A survey of MPs showed an increase in impressions of HSE
effectiveness over a six-month period in the year, We ran
surveys among employers and employvee groups to better
understand attitudes and perceptions of health and safety
such as managers and employees in construction, in the waste
recycling sector and across a range of business sectors facing
health risks. We targeted stakeholder groups whose behaviour
can have a significant impact on our targets including chief
executives, elected members and health and satety
practitioners in local authorities and primary care trusts.
These studies will underpin new communications strategies.
We also market tested products - a name for the new
occupational pilots, promotional material on stress standards,
asbestos, COSHH and business case and workplace transport
campaign material.

Developing a commmnications culture

289 We aim to raise the competence and confidence of HSE
sraff in communications and started a long-term training
initiative with basic communications planning training for
40 senior civil servanrs. We made similar provision for
communications partners, and project managers in the
construction and chemicals programmes,

Science

290 High-quality science and engineering is a key element in
delivering the HSC vision and mission for workplace health
and safety. It provides HSC with evidence on the causes of ill
health and incidents in the workplace. It influences our
priorities and contributes to developing solutions to control
workplace risks. The Government’s Chief Scientific Advisor is
currently undertaking a review of HSE science, covering all
activities from horizon scanning for future issues o
maintenance of existing scientific expertise. HSE has
conducted a self-assessment, based on the ten review criteria,
which will be published as an annex to the external review.
The external review team has completed a scoping study and
set up a steering panel for the review. The steering panel has
identified four case studies, encompassing the breadth of
HSE’s regulatory responsibilities, to provide information on
how HSE's science operates in practice. The review team is
likely to report their findings in autumn 2005,

kR
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Science strategy

291 A new HSC science strategy, Gathering evidence,
developing understanding, identifying solutions has been
produced, which describes how HSE will apply its science
resources to help deliver the Commission’s Strategy. The
strategy has been revised in light of the comments received
following open consultation towards the end of 2004 and
will be published in summer 20035. For further information
see: hepdfwww.hse.govoaukiscience/siraregy.him.

Horizon scanning

192 We need wo identify issues with the porential to
change or present new workplace risks in the mediam to
long rerm. HSE has established a Horizon Scanning Unit,
which will assess and help prioritise intelligence on new
developments. This will allow HSC/E to identify where
further work is justified and will inform H5E's future needs
for scientific expertise.

Science communication

293 There were 83 research reports on newly completed
projects published on the HSE website. We continue to
develop and improve our science internet pages so thar
information is more acceszible.

294 The new HSE Science and Research Outlook (SROD)
website was launched in October 2004
(heep:www.hsesro.com).

295 The SRO website and newslerter is a dynamic and
interactive vehicle for sharing and engaging with
stakeholders on science. Two issues have been published,
contaimning 23 articles on such diverse topics as
nancrechnologies and violence towards raxi dreivers. Over
2500 people have registered with the site worldwide and
this is increasing cach month, There have been over 10 000
hits, with many interesting comments received via the
interactive feedback fearure.

2896 The research projects direcrory
(htrpeffwww hseresearchprojects.com/About.him) now

provides rapid access to over 1400 current and completed
projects. In its first year of operation, there have been over
30 000 searches of the directory and over 70000 *hits’ on
individual project records.

New HSL facilities ai Buxton

297 HAL occupied its new laboratory at Buxton, built
under the Private Finance Initiative. For almost the first time
in its history, all HSL staff are under the one roof in a stare-
of-the-art laboratory. The construction was completed to
time and budget, and HSL took occupancy with minimum
disruption to irs work. As part of the project, HSLs old
premises in Sheffield were sold to Sheffield University. The
project demonstrates the importance of science in HSE's
work and represents a major addition to the UK’ scientific
capabhilities.

Sclence resonrces

298 In 2004/05 HSE spene £34.6 million on commissioned
science and rechnology (not including science funded
through HSE by industry (£5.2 million)). OF this

£34.6 million, £11.6 million was spent on research
commissioned with external bodies, and £23 million was
spent on research plus scientific and technical support with
HSL. A breakdown of the science expenditure across the
HSE programmes is shown in Figure 4.

299 The pattern of expenditure differs from the 2004/05
Business Plan as the science budget is highly responsive to
the need for reactive support and incident investigation.
Examples of work completed in 200405 included:

L approximately £700 000 scientific support o the
investigation of the Stockline Plastics explosion,
Glasgow;

B health and safery of homeworkers, good pracrice
case studies:

L] factors inhibiting the greater involvement of
emplovees in health and safety activities:

L] the development of case studies thar demonstrare the
business benefit of effective management of
occupational health and safeey;

Other Strategic [njury
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- = =
Enforcement 16% T

STEFP
44%

- healeh Discase
reduction reduction Crays lost
% 6% reduction
1% LAMHSE
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Figure 4 Percentage expenditure on science across HSE programmes (total expendirure £34.6 million)
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m  occupational health and SMEs: focused intervention
SITATEREICs;

B evaluation of Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD)
to predice smoke movement in complex enclosed
spaces. i

Risk management and risk education

300 Decision-making about sensible risk management,
sensibly applied is at the heart of the regulatory regime for
ensuring effective control of work-related health and safery.
HSC/E's basic approach comprises:

m  berrer regulation through proportionality,
consistency, transparency, targeting and
accountability, and promotion of cross-departmental
co-ordination in risk managemenr;

B cffective communication to stakeholders o help them
understand HSC/Es messages on risk management,
and 1o enable them to make sensible decisions on risk
control;

®  cquipping young people with the necessary knowledge
and skills to be risk aware and risk responsible;

m  supporting safery-critical professionals in addressing,
ar source, risk in both work practices and design.

Activities undertaken during 2004/05
Guidance for duty holders on risk-based decision waking

301 The Risk management pages on HSE's website
{http/fwww.hse.gov.uk/risk/index.htm) were redesigned to
make them more relevant to HSC/E's approach to sensible
risk management, providing straightforward explanarion,
FAQs, and links to HSE's guidance such as Five steps fo risk
assessment, Software development of an interactive version
of Five steps to risk assessment, in relation to the general
office environment, has been completed and trialling 1s
currently raking place.

302 A suite of key messages supporting HSC/E's sensible
risk management approach was developed; they will form
the basis of a focused HSC campaign on sensible risk
management in 2005,

Develap policy on aspects of HSE's risk-based decision
mﬂkiﬂg

303 To further ensure a consistent approach ro risk
management from HSE inspectors, additional guidance was
produced for HSE staff on judging whether duty holders
have met the legal requirement to reduce rick to "as low as
reasonably practicable’. The guidance is to be made
available on HSE's website.

Pramotion of national and international co-ordination in
risk management

304 HSE continued to play a significant role in assisting
the shaping and implementation of the two-year cross-
government Risk Handling Improvement Programme
{concluded December 2004) including chairing the steering
group on Managing risks to the public {hrepe/fwww.hm-
treasury.gov.uk/media/SB2AE/risk_principles_220903.pdf).

In response to the programme, HSE has enhanced its own
corporate risk-handling capabilities, including its internal
risk governance arrangements. H5E had a prominent role in
the European TRUSTNET programme designed to establish
policy, practice and competence in participative risk
governance for public policy making and delivery. A report
on the conclusion of Phase 2 of the programme has been
published and will be available in due course at:
hrrpafwwworrusmergovernance.com.

Rizk edwcation for young people

305 HSE worked in partmership with the Royal Sociery for
the Prevention of Accidents (ROSPA) and the University of
Central England (UCE), to produce a pilot scheme to
incorporate risk management in initial teacher training
programmes. This pilot was well received ar UCE and waill
continue in the next academic vear.

306 HSE actively supported Risk Watch, an injury
prevention programme aimed at improving the social well-
being of pupils aged 4-12 years by providing, through the
school curriculum, avoidable injury awareness. Evaluation
of a pilot in 2004 involving five primary schools (three in
the Highlands of Scotland and two in Nottinghamshire) was
positive, leading to an extended pilot and the inclusion of
further Topics.

307 HSE continued its support of the West Sussex whole-
school approach initiative. The pilor stage has been
complered and will be subject to evaluation with an
anticipated programme launch for 2005/06. The exercise
secks to support teachers in planning programmes of work
to develop a healthier, safer lifestyle through sumularing
thinking, and enable creative solutions when reaching
children to become safer and healthier, through classroom
activities and engagement with a wide range of stakeholders
{including school governors and the local community ).

308 An evaluation of a risk education website for
secondary-age students was commissioned by HSE. The
research (undertaken by York University) looked into the
effectiveness of using a website to improve the understanding
of risk in school students aged berween 14 and 18. Steps are
in hand ro enhance HSE's Risk education website and
develop an interactive site for children and young people.

Risk education for safety-critical professionals

309 Working with the construction industry, HSE
developed an e-learning website for use by colleges and
universities involved in training engineers and other
professionals working in the industry. And, as a member of
the Inter-institurional Group on Health and Safery Working
Party, HSE has been mvolved in developing teaching marerial
on managing health and safety risks for undergraduate
engineers, introducing concepts of proportionate risk
control. In addition, HSE funded a rescarch project at
Liverpool University to implement an agreed set of risk
education learning outcomes into a revised four-year
undergraduate mechanical engineering degree, evaluate the
success of their delivery and investigate how to promote the
new syllabus to other universities.

i3
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Managing the organisation

Business improvement

310 H5E manages a co-ordinared programme of business
improvements, through which it has achieved significant
cash releasing andfor productivity savings over a number of
vears. The outturn results show thar HSE realised savings
valued at over £11.6 million for the year, attained through a
combination of cash savings and quantifiable added benefirs
- equivalent ro 5.3% of toral administrarive costs (excluding
HSL) of £218.5 million.

311 A number of key initiatives contribured to this
achievement including reducing back office funcrions and

Staffing

Total HSCYE seaff in post by occupational group

Occupational group 01/04/2001

staff in post

010452002
sraff in post

ingreasing front line activities through continued
streamlining of corporare support, enabled by investments
in IT and more e-business.

312 Looking ro the future (2005/06-2007/08), HSE has set
a targer to deliver £50 million worth of efficiency savings
(equivalent to approximately 6% of the total budget per
vear), ar least half of which is to be realisable in cash. These
efficiency savings are necessary to enable HSE to live within
i[5 means, create an organisation thar is better placed to
achieve its PSA rargets, and contribute towards the agenda
set out by Sir Perer Gershon in his Review of Government
Efficiency.

04 2003
staff in post

010472004
staff in post

01/04/2005
staff in post

Frone line seaff* 1335 1458 1508 1551 1517

(of which the following are front (1335) (1458) (1508) (1438) (1404)
line operational inspecrors®*)

Inspectors (other than ac**) 199 167 143 122 126

Orther professional or specialist staff 1333 1461 1451 1427 1484

Other staf®=** 1214 1196 1030 919 776

{includes (includes (includes (includes {includes

187 agency 232 agency 94 agency 115 agency 100 agency

sraff) staff) staff) sraff) staff)

Total staff 4081 4282 4162 4019 3903

'l'n.l::l:- 3 Toral |'|‘|-|;.,..|'i,. 31_;3“- i|'| oSt i'r!, ;p;g;up;r[:i:_m;jl Broup

Motes:

All figures are for full-time equivalent staff. All figures have been rounded to the nearest whole number.

]

Front line staff include front line operational inspectors** and, since 0100412004, visiting staff working alongside

inspectors in front line roles delivering key health and safety messages. Such staff comprise of workplace bealth and safety
awwareness officers in FOD, Railway Inspectorate contact officers and regulatory contact officers in HID.

Inspectors at Bands 1 and 0 or working in other directorates/divisions are not included. In FOD, RI and HID, as far

as possible, inspector staff undertaking more generalised HQ functions have been eliminated from these figures. The figures
also exclude non-inspectorial specialist staff, e scientists. Inspector staff inclides discipline, medical and occupational

bealth msfrectors,

34

Resonrce Accounts Guidance now requires inclusion of agencyftemporary staff and imvard secondmentsfloans.
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HSE staff in post by divisionfdirectorate

01/04/2001

Mvisionfdirecrorate

) H- i ]'||:-'~1

01/04/2002
staff in post

O1/047 2003
staff in post

0104/ 2004
statt in post

01/04/2005
staff in post

Salicitors Office i3 30 34 33

Legal Adviser’s Office! . : = 10
Resources and Planning Directorate?® 514 515 494 444 4245
Communications Directorare’ 24 26
Policy

Health Directorate 258 258 167

Safery Policy Directorate 140 125 114

Strategy and Analytical Support

Directorate 129 137 122

Strategy Division (formerly

Strategy and Intelligence Division) - . . B &
Rail Directorate 48 40 . -
Policy Group? 16 292
Operations

Operations Unit 2is 29

Local Authority Unit 30 23 : :

Operational Policy Division 35 35

Operational Policy and Support Division® . 79
Field Operations Directorate and

HM Railway Inspectorate 1581 1723 -

Field Operations Direcrorare - 1712 1609 1623
HM Railway Inspectorare - - 184 209 173
Hazardous Installations Direcrorare® 539 359 613 w05 553
Muclear Safery Directorate 26l 268 193 287 259
Elecrrical Equipment Certification

Service’ 58 55 8

Technology Division 137 135

Corporate Science and Analytical

Services Directorate® B 76
Total HSE staff 3708 3927 3820 3658 31552
HsL 73 355 342 £1 | 35
Toral Seaff 4081 4252 4162 4019 3903

Table 4 Total HSC/E staff in post by division/directorate

Motes:
*  Includes agency staff, see Table 3.

1 The Solicitors Office was renamed the Legal Adviser’s Office in January 2003,

2 Directorate of Information and Advisory Services section of the Resources and Planning Lirectorate wias re

Communications Delivery Service on 4 October 2004.

Ry

Communications Directorate was formed in January 2004,

sformed o

4 During 2003/04, directorates in Policy were restructured into “Policy Group® and ‘Strategy and Irrtelligence Division’
(SID) (rrow “Strategy Division'}; also, staff were transferred to Corporate, Science and Amalytical Services Directordte.
The Policy Group staffing figure includes support to HSC. _

5 Operational Policy Division (OPD) took on new functions in 2004/05 to provide supfrort services to ofrerati wnal
directorates. Operational Policy and Support Division, which replaced OPD in Jannary 2005, now comprises
Operational Policy Unit (formerly Operational Unit), Local Authority Unit and the new Operations Support Lireir,

6 Staff from Hazardous Installations Directorate, Field Operations Directorate and Nuclear Safety Directorate bave been
transferred into Operational Policy and Support Diivision,

7 The Electrical Equipntent Certification Service ceased to operate on 01102002, ;

8 The Corporate Science and Analytical Services Directorate was formed 01/01/2003 and combines aralytical services,
risk policy and science and technology into one Directorate.
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Recruitment 314 During the year:

313 Recruitment into HSE is conducted in line with the L] 92 staff were recruited;

Civil Service Commissioners” Recruitment Code. We B 48 UK secondmentsfloans into and our of H5E and
operare systems and procedures thar meer the Code and two overseas secondments commenced:

ensure that recruicment 1s carried out on the basis of fair | | one extension of a short-term appointment bevond
and open competition and selection on merit. The svstems the initially publicised period and rwo fixed-rerm
and procedures are subject o periodic internal and exrernal appointments converted to permanency following
audits. The Code requires departments ro publish summary immigration restriction being lifted by the Home
informarion abour their recruitment and the use of Office;

permitted exceprions to the principles of fair and open u 14 re-appointments of tormer civil servants were
competition and selection on ment. made.

Grade Recruited Reinstate- Re-employed Transter Female Male Mon- [Msabled
to HSE menis  pensioners from other white*

EOVETTmEnt
departments

b i 1 |

Band 1 1 1 1 1 2

Band 2 2 1 i (1] 3 3

Band 3 12 1 3 1 3 13

Band 4 12 3 1 11 5

Band 5 s [ ] 5 2

Band & 38 1 57 73 43 & 3
Toeal Q92 _ 6 B 67 101 T2 b 3

Table 5 Breakdown of staff recruirment

Note: * Information on ethnic and disability status is not always provided,

I
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Resources

315 Full derails of HSC/E accounts for 2004005 can be
found in Part 2.

Private Finance lﬁitiatiw: (PFI)/Public Private
Partnerships (PPP)

Refie - IT

316 The REFIT partnership with LogicaCMG has now
completed its third year of a ten-year agreement. A
benchmarking report produced in November 2004
concluded that:

m  REFIT is delivering services thar are well received by
H5E;

B the level of investment by HSE in IT is at the lower
end of comparable statistics; and

B the benchmark costs for core deskrop and other
services continue to represent value for money.

New Merseyside Centre - Redgrave Court

317 Construction of the new centre by Kajima
Development, under PFL, continued throughout the year
and has generally gone well. Plans for fit out, IT installation
and removals are well advanced and are likely to take place
over the summer 2005,

Sponsorship

318 Working Well Together (WWT) is an industry-wide
construction health and safety campaign developed by
H5C Construction Industry Advisory Committee.

319 In 2004/05 HSE received sponsorship from several
organisations in support of the WWT Roadshow and the
White Van Roadshow, The two WWT roadshows visired
construction sites around the country to promote health
and safery messages and encourage workers to *sign up’ to
best health and safety pracrice.

£30 000
£15 000
£15 000
£15 000
£10 000

£85 000

Table & Roadshow sponsors

Departmental investment strategy

320 Capital investment is exclusively in support of the
staff resource and is mainly accommodation related, motor
vehicles and scientific equipment. The new Health and
Safery Laboratory became operational in October 2004
funded via an ‘on balance sheet” PFI contract.

Prompt payment of bills

HSE | HSL | Combined

total

Combined
%% paid
on time

Mumber
of invoices
paid on
nme

15 634 | 7onl 23294

99.37%
Mumber 1335 12 147
of invoices
paid late

Toral
INVONCes
received

15 769 | 7o72

Table 7 Prompt payment of bills
Charging

321 A review of charging in HSE, completed in autumn
2004, looked ar areas where charging could be extended.
The report made a series of recommendations and some of
these will be taken forward in 2005/06, No new or
restructured schemes have been developed for 2004/05.
Repeal of major parts of the Explosives Act 1875 and
replacement by the Manufacture and Storage of Explosives
Regulations 2005 will lead to further change later in 2005.

Information technology
322 Key projects included:

® an integrated system for the whole of our inspection
and enforcement activiry to be launched during
2005/06;

B an electronic documents and records management
system that moved into its procurement phase atter
successful piloting within parts of the business;

] the successful launch of a corporate system for
tracking FOI requests and our responses;

B an ‘extranet’ infrastructure which will more casily
support working links to an increasing number of
partner organisations in the health and safety system.
Enhanced support for working with LAs will be
launched during 2005/06.

Diversity
323 Highlights from last year include:

m  further progress towards meeting HSE and
Modernising Government targets for the proportion
of women, disabled and black and minority ethnic
staff in each grade (see Tables 8-10). However, the
downturn in recruitment activity over the past year
and a slowing of promotion opportunities is putting
progress on hold;
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| work on disability issues including:
improving working arrangements for disabled
staff;
IMProving access o on-site occupanonal
healtheare:
contributions to the public debare on disabilicy
discrimination requirements and, in parricular,
its interface with health and safety provisions.
This has included a supportive response o
DWP's consultation on the proposed public
sector duty to promote equality for the disabled
and a Memorandum o the Transport Select
Committee's inguiry into disabled people’s
ACCCSS TD “‘:'II‘IN]'I':H‘IL

L further action on race equality issues as provided for

in our Race Equality Scheme, including:

IMProving Monitoring Arrangements on
recruitment and internal vacancy filling
procedures as part of our work to encourage
applications from under-represented groups and
help meet our targers;

Progress towards Moderising Government targets

s .'||'l.'.llr|'.'|'

Band

guidance and training to visiting staff (such as
inspectors) on race awareness and on dealing
with racist incidents while making visits;
production of guidance setring out essential
health and safery rights and responsibilities for
employers and workers thar have been
translated into a number of languages other

than English;

completion of some rescarch into stress and
ethnicity which found greater levels of stress
among people of ethnic minority origin -
particularly black Caribbean women;

a number of local initiarives taken forward by
race equality contacts within HSE, such as a
survey of health and safety activity of

employment businesses in London undertaken in

conjuncrion with the local Race Equaliry

Council;

B initiating an equal pay audit, which will extend into
next vear and beyond.

8 March
2005

HSE target
2005%

Modernising

Government
target 2005

o o ) Y
SCs 1] 1.92 3.7 5.0
B1 (Ga) I.6 1.50 3.1 4.2
B2 (G7) 1.2 440 1.8 s34
B3 (SEC) 1.3 LA | 1.6 2.1
B4 (HEC) 20 3.98 <29 3.9
B3 (EQ) 2.7 4.39 3.9 5.2
B6 (AASAD) i1 6.47 i 7
Taotal 2.9 4.2% 3.5 4.7

Table 8 Staff in post with disabilities

':.ll'.'.'li'-l".l'

Band 1 April

1999

Modermising
Grovernment
target 2005

ok

¥ L o o )
5Cs 24.5 23.08 29.0 350
B1 (Ga) 6.2 19.55 100 <12.1
B2 (G7) 122 185.40 < 13.7 s16.5
B3 (SEQ) 2.0 3424 <278 FREN
B4 (HEO) 471 49.34 5000 &3
B5 (EO) 63,7 G207 S64.0 772
Ba (AASAQ) 72.9 71.49 S T0L0 £4.5
Total 431.9 45.79 442 53.3

Table @ Sraff in post by gender

* Projected %% ser ar April 1999
# = H5E or Modernising Government target met or exceeded
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Race

1 April

I'i.

8 March

Modernising
Caovernment
target 2005

SCS (3.0 1.8 1.8 1.2
B1 (G6) 0.8 1.50 23 41
B2 (G7) 12 2.04 2.1 3.7
B3 (SEO) 3.0 4.35 <3.8 6.8
B4 (HED) 3.1 .04 sd4 7.8
B5 (EO) 76 10.02 /9.3 16.5
B6 (AA/AO) 8.6 .89 9.9 17 6
Total 4.7 7.45 /5.9 10.5

Table 10 Staff in post by race

* Projected % set at April 1999
# = HSE or Modernising Government rarger met or exceeded

Note: It is imiportant to recognise that not all mew recruils or existing staff wish to divelge their ethnic background or
disability status and therefore that statistical reports may not be a complete picture of HSE's rich ntix of individuals.
We acknowledee the fundamental right of all our staff to choose whether they tale part in owr statistical aralyses.

Staff training and development
324 Training and development achievements:

n we have trained 1900 staff over 300 training events
{covering management, occupational health and
safery, IT skills, personal development and legal
trannimg);

B new courses included writing for the web,
communication skills and a management development
workshop. New provision was also developed for
dealing with requests under the Freedom of
Informarion Act;

®m  HSE has started a significant initiative to identify high
potential staff and to provide tailored development
for our leaders of the future;

u HSE has continued to maintain its commitment to
Interchange. On loan or secondment, we have had
79 HSE staff out and 40 staff into HSE. There are
16 HSE staff working overseas on secondment and
one EU national is working in H5E on secondment,

Human Resource Service Transformation
(HRST)

325 The HRST programme aims to deliver a modern and
more professional Human Resource Service that supports
an improved management culture across HSE and HSL
through:

] human resource strategies and policies that betrer
support HSE's business straregy;

m  accessible online procedures, so employees and
managers can access appropriate information 1o
improve their decision making;

[ ] casy-to-use tools and rechniques, empowering
managers to fulfil their people responsibilities;

8 reduced human resource costs to HSE through a
corporate HR advice and support centre.

326 Progress to dave includes:

®  an analysis of the market-leading commercial off-the
shelf HEL IT selutions and decision that a system will
be bought in;

[ development of work streams: HR business partners;
core strategy and policy; corporate advice and support
centre; and policy and procedures;

| a report on management capabilities that will be

progressed with Senior Civil Service;

completion of an options analysis looking at

partnership with DWE

Government targets on sickness absence

327 HSE has placed increasing emphasis on managing
long-term absences this year. A key element of our approach
has been greater use of case conferences invalving the
employee, management, trades unions and our eccupational
health provider. This is working - actual instances of
sickness absence have dropped by 8%.

328 Our success in getting employees back to work after
long-term absence has resulted in a peak in working days
recorded as lost this year. HSE lost an average of

8.52 working days per staff year; a rise of (.55 days
compared to 2003/04. However the number of people
currently on long-term sickness absence is at its lowest
paint for four years, this trend is expected to continue.

329 HSE played a key role in the work of the Ministerial
Task Force on Health, Safety and Productivity. The Task
Force published, jointly with the Cabiner Office, its review of
sickness-absence management in the public sector, The report
was well received and made a number of recommendations
on how organisations could improve their performance. In
many areas HSE is already implementing the
recommendations and others will be taken forward nexr year.

149
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Sustainable development (green housekeeping)

330 HSE is fully commired to achieving the rargers ser
down by Government. The following is a snapshot of
activities designed to help make HSE a more
environmentally-friendly organisarion:

®  carrying out environmental assessments of newly
acquired property using the Building Research
Establishment’s Environmental Appraisal Method
(BREEAM);

[} aiming o reduce the annual energy consumption on
the estate by targeting major users of energy within
the organisarion;

m  recveling of as much wasie as possible mcluding
paper. furniture, IT and electrical equipment ete;

m  paper purchased by H5E comprises 100%% posr-
CONSUMET Waste;

[ ] portable video conferencing equipment has been
installed in all HSE offices to help to reduce the
amount of business travel;

®  serict policy to limit the engine size of the 236 cars
used by high-mileage employees contracred under the
Private User Scheme.

Business nsk

331 Conrinwed steady progress has been made raking
forward business risk management. Our non-bureaucratic
approach recognises thar one size does noe fir all. The Risk
Management Improvesient Plan 200403 focused on
embedding the risk management process across the
organisation. Much of the plan was achieved. A concise
*pracrical guide® was made available ro all staff to help
develop a basic common approach. A plan for 2005006,
aimed particularly at supporting colleagues, has been
developed.

332 HS5Es Risk Management Framework codifies overall
strategy, emphasising the need o integrate business risk
management into the management system for effectiveness
and propornonality.

333 The focus at corporate level is the Corporare Risk
Register, serting our the key risks to delivering the
Commission’s Strategy. Board-level risk owners are
responsible for ensuring adequate measures for managing

their risks are in place and regularly reviewed. HSE's Board

considered the Corporate Risk Register quarrerly during
2004405 ro ensure that the right strategic risks were

identified, were being managed adequarely and could not be

effectively managed ar a lower level,

334 Across the organisation specific risk registers are
being developed for HSE's strategic programmes, their

component parts and lower level projects and programmes.

Welsh Language Scheme

335 HSC/E has continued to build on its commitment ro
the use of Welsh. The Welsh Language Board audited our

Welsh Language Scheme during 2004 and has made several

40

suggestions for further developing and promoting the
service to Welsh speakers. The practical implications are
now being considered with the Welsh Language Board's

ASSIS[ANCE.
Devolution

336 HSC/Es commitment oo work in parmnership with
devolved administrarions in England, Scotland and Wales
was confirmed in the Government’s response to this year’s
Work and Pensions Select Committes inguiry into our
waork.

337 HSC/Es broad risk priorities are the same for
England, Scotland and Wales bur there is a commitment o
tackle them in ways that meet the needs of the economies,
communities and cultures in devolved areas. Local and
regional parmerships are supporting joint planning of work,
USINE resources that are available across a range of
stakeholders, o deliver defined outcomes based on the
evidence. Our work under the Local Authorities and HSE
Working Together Strategic Enabling Programme is
intended ro ensure specific Scottish and Welsh involvement
so thart it reflecrs priorities in all parrs of Grear Britain.
Waork includes:

] HSE is investganng whether more effective co-
ordination of the health and safery system in Scotland
can be achieved by establishing a group of major
stakeholders (including the Scorrish Execurive,
business and trade union representatives) whose aim
will be o ensure the dchn:r:,' of the Commission’s
Straregy within the Scorrish conrexr. A member of the
Commission chairs the group. It will also play a full
part in the development of the Scottish Executive’s
Healelry Working Lives initatve, which aims to
deliver an integrated approach to improving the
health of the wurl::in,g age pnpuiari{m thmugh the
vehicle of work.

m  In Wales, work has continued 1o join together HSEs
priorities with those of the Welsh Assembly
Government and to better meer local needs o
improve the health of the Welsh workforce. HSE has
actively Eupp«::r{cd the ﬁ.ss:ml:ﬂ}"'s corporate health
standard for workplaces and HSE Wales has achieved
the silver award. Joint projects have been initiared
with many LAs. In partmership with WHS Wales,
passport schemes for manual handling training, and
violence and aggression have been introduced.
Preparatory work has been carried our with large
manufacturing companies based in Wales, TUC
Cymru, and the Welsh Development Agency 1o creare
a forum for benchmarking and sharing best pracrice.

B In London we are secking to effectively engage with
the key stakeholders within the Greater London
Authority (GLA) family.

B We have worked in partnership with the Southern and
Eastern Region Trades Union Congress (SERTUC)
and the GLA on an accord to find ways to promote
effective health and safery management and worker
participation in the Capital to make London a world-
class city for health and safery.
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[ We are actively involved with GLA on a number of
specific issues. Following a review of public safery
issues at the London Motting Hill Carnival and a
request from GLA, we have provided input into the
planning process and attended the inter-agency
operational planning safery group mectings. We
regularly meet with representatives from GLA, the
London Development Agency (LDA) and the Minisery
of Culture, Media and Sport to discuss H5E input
into the planning, construction and development of
the Olympic Games if the London bid is successful.

Employee involvement

338 Ir is HSE'S policy to consult the trade unions
representing its staff as widely as possible in order to give
them the opportunity to influence the development and
application of proposals relating to major organisational
and staffing changes. There is a formal consultation
structure between HSE management and unions within the
Whitley system at both national and local levels. The FISE
Whitley Council is the central forum for discussion of all
matters of concern to HSE as a whole. National Whitleys
are held quarterly and are chaired by the Direcror General.

339 HSE consulrs and negotiares with the trade unions
abour all issues affecting the rerms and conditions of
employment of staff. This continues even during periods of
tension, such as the protracted negotiations abour annual
pay awards over the last two years,

340 In 2004/05, consultations and negotiations have been
successfully raken forward on workforce planning,
managing attendance, expenses policy and the implications
of machinery of government changes, such as the transfer of
HMRI to the Office of the Rail Regulator.

341 Staff are also consulted directly through a biennial
staff artiude survey, participation in specific pilots and
through meetings held by senior managers and others on
subjects ranging from the Commission’s Strategy to
exploring issues on the development of a new reward
system for HSE. HSE is also developing a network of
HR business partners who will inform and help develop
personnel policies to ensure that they continue o meet
HSE's business needs.

Freedom of Information (FOI)

342 The fundamental premise of the Freedom of
Informarion Act is that informartion is disclosable, save in
specified circumstances of exemptions; and that the
individual has the right to request disclosure of information
of his or her choosing.

Howr HSE bas implemented the FOI Act since January
20005

343 HSE pur appropriate procedures into place by:

B setting up an organisation-wide infrastructure to
accommaodare all FOI requests, including appeals and
complaints procedures in conjunction with the Act;

| commissioning an external health check on HSE's
FOI preparations, which was undertaken by the
Constitution Unit of the University College London;

[ ] launching a new FOI website which includes the
revised and extended Publicarion Scheme required
under the Act.

344 The introduction of the new website embodies the
commitment to the principles of FOl made by HS5C/E in
their revised joint sratement on Openness.

January February March April

704 568 813 393

Figure 5 FOI requests received since January 2005

4l
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Health and safety in HSE

Introduction

345 v iz HSE's policy to ser and mamtain exemplary
standards of health and safety for its staff and contractors.
HSE staff arc exposed to a variety of risks to their health
and safety ranging from those found in the office to those
tha visiting staff meet on site. These include asbestos,
violence and aggression, noise, and railway trackside msks.

Management
Performance monitoring

346 Health and safery is on the agenda of every formal
Board meeting. This includes:

] reviewing monthly accidentfill health statisrics;

[ ] monitoring performance against our targets;
m  discussing reports on significant health and safery
158UEs;

] addressing recommendations from audit reports;
[ ] agrecing the Corporare Health and Safery Plan and
end-of-vear report on HSE's ]:N:rfnrm.'l.ncc.

Consultation

347 HSE recognises the importance of consultation with
its employees. The Corporate Health and Safety Commirtoee
(CHSC) is the principal consultation forum between the
Execurive and the staff rrade unions. Justin McCracken, the
Deputy Director General (RDG), 15 the Board champion for
health and safery. He chairs the CHSC, which meets three
times a year. A TU safery representartive is the vice-chair,

348 There are also a number of local site safery
committees. TU safety representatives make a vital
contriburion o the work of these commimees and in their
involvement in workplace inspections, accident/ill-health
investigations and health and safety events such as during
Euroweek.

Performance
Against tarpets

349 In 2004/05 HSE ser itself ambitious and challenging
targets. These were o reduce:

m  RIDDORs ro single figures;
®  DSE-related ill health (IH1) reports by 10% against
2003004

m  slips and trips injuries by 10% against 2003/04.

350 To our disappointment we have not met our targets
{see Table 11). The targers used reports from 2003/04 as a
hascline. This was a vear of good health and safery
performance in HSE. We have, unfortunately, not sustained
this good performance for a second year running.

Category 2003/04 Tugu

DSE [H1 reports 50 <45

RIDDOR reports 10 <10

Slipsftrips causing 34 <30

injury 3

Near misses 90 - l,ﬁb J}j
A

Table 11 Health and safery performance

351 As soon as it became clear thar our targers would not
be met, the Board champion called an emergency CHSC
meeting. This mecting identified the need for a dynamic
new plan that focused on areas where improvements were
possible, This plan included a communications strategy,
which was used to raise awareness about in-house health
and safery and publicise workable solutions to the most
commen causes of injury.

352 Ir was also recognised thar the accidenr-based targers
gave an insufficient picture of what was happening in H5SE,
so new lead indicators are being developed.

Significant develojments

333 During the year there was a thorough review of HSE's
health and 53&1]' MANAECMENt Arrangements. The ﬁndings
of this review pointed rowards the need for improvement in
leadership in health and safety and the tightening up of
internal procedures. In particular we need to provide our
staff with guidance thar is clearer and focused on effective
risk management. The main recommendarions have been
incorporated into our Corporate Plan for 2005/06.

354 We also introduced on-site occupational health
provision - the service offers quick and accessible advice 1o
managers and staff, particularly in managing sickness
absence, with emphasis on appropriate intervention at an
early stage. The service supports staff returning 1o work
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following ill health. We have proacrively rargered specific
causes of absence and 1ll health such as:

- stress-relared illness;
[ musculoskeletal disorders;
] work-related mjuries and discases.

355 During the vear, the occupational health advisers
(OHAs) ran sessions (o promote line A NAZEENE
awareness of H5SE's policy on dealing with drugs and
alcohol. The sessions gave advice to managers on how to
identify areas of concern.

Accidenifill bealthfnear miss reprorts and data

356  Accidents, work-related ill health and near misses are
reported and investigared. The Board champion for health
and zafery iz notified within 48 hours of all incidents
identified as reportable under RIDDOR. (See Table 12).

337 The incident rate for RIDDOR is 376 per 100 000
employees.

358 HSE estimates the total cost of the accidents/ill health
to be approximately £424 000, This includes two claims
settled during the vear relating to personal imjury.

359 HSE had a number of regulatory visits during the
year, bur no enforcement action was taken,

Next year

360 In 2005/06 we have four priority areas for acrion:

Priority A: Improving health and safery management
in HSE: the development of fie-for-purpose systems
and a sirong compliance culiure across the
OrgaAnsation.

Priority B: Targeting the main canses of harm in HSE:
improving HSE's performance with regards o DSE-
related problems, manual handling-related injuries,
slip and trip accidents and work-related stress,

Priority C: Targeting high-consequence risks: ensuring
thar work-relared road risks and lone working nsks
are properly managed.

Prionty I: Improving our ability to monitor healeh
and safety performance: identifying leading indicators
to complement existing board targers and rake sicps
to ensure rhar tangets ane met.

361 We are developing suitable lead indicarors for each of
these priority areas. We will conninue ro ser targers based on
mcident dara. For 2005006 these are to:

] reduce RIDDORS 1o single figures;

] reduce DSE-relared ill health reports by 10% agamst
2004/05;
B reduce slips and trips injuries by 10% against 2004/05.

April-March

April-March
2004

April-March

2005 2003

RIDDOHR

Fatal injuries

Major injuries
Dangerous occurences
Ovwer-3-dav mjuries

Il health

Other over-3-day injuries, g FRTAs

1l health other

Minor injurics

Mear misses, including verbal abuse and
possible accidental asbestos exposure

0 0 0

| i ]

] ] W]
M5 Bl 10(1)
4 il 41

250 5) 1161} 15(2)

1 1 i

123 101(2) 15414
1330 20) 128(17} 148%(17)
13004} S04 B5(6)

Tahle 12 Accident and ill-health staristics

Note: The figiires for non-HSE staff are included and shown in brackets.
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Table 14 Delivering planned work - quarter 1

DELIVERING PLANMNEL WOKK

End quarter 1 2004/05 Plan Outturn  Plan  Ouwtturn Plan Qutturn Plan Outturn

Total number of safety cases ete processed 124 104 NIA 20 24 24
(Mote: MSD report consents and agreements)

Total number of safery cases erc processed 124 104 MIA 19 24 24
to time and quality standards

Safery cases erc processed o nime % 104 (G100 104 (G5 100 (G100

Total number of complaints reported MIA 5825 113 81 MiA 166 4

Total number of complaints followed up MIA 4932 102 79 A 102 4

Complaints imvesngared % a0 {G)BS 1} (G198 S (Ri*61.45 W (G100

Total number of incidents reported NfA NfA 1315 1101 NIA 1251 i

Total number of incidents that meer HSC MIA 1007 129 (] BA 124 27
criteria

Total number of incidents that meer criteria 952 123 62 A 124 i
and were invcsl:igarl:d

Incidents thar met HSC criteria 95 {Gyas a3 (God 95 (G100 @3 (G100
investigated %

Number of higher risk workplaces identified MIA MNIA

Number of higher risk workplaces receiving /A NIA
an interveniion

High hazard/risk workplaces receiving an NIA NIA
intervention %

Motes:

* Low outturn arose from a problem associated with data recording: robust action was taken, which has since rectified
the problem.

OPM E** This is an annually assessed FOD-specific OPM which is reported at half- and full-year stages only.

46
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Table 14 Delivering planned work - quarter 2

DELIVERING PLANNED WORK FOD  HID NSD  NSD
End quarter 2 2004/05 Plan Qutturn  Plan  Outtern  Plan  Ouoeen Plan - Outturn
opMm Al -

Tatal number of safety cases erc processed 150 125 N/A 48 49 36

(Note: N5D report consents and agreements)

Total number of safety cases ete processed ] 150 125 N/A 47 49 _T

to time and quality standards

Safety cases erc processed to time % 1140 (G100 10K (Gles 100 (G ||:;

oPMC

Total number of complaints reported 11 %06 225 174 M/A 334 BUA 5

Total number of complaints followed up 10771 203 ] NFA 335 A §

Complaints investigated % 0 (G0 L G197 9 1G197.4 ai) u(.-l-llc:l
OPM D

Total number of incidents reported NIA NIA 2630 2249 WA 134 NIA 46

Total number of incidents thar meet HSC 2238 1500 B NfA 234 H.."'L_ 4_r«_

Criteria

Total number of incidents that meet criteria 2145 143 83 A 233 MIA 46

and were investigared

Incidents thar met H5C criteria 95 (G0 95 (G4 95 (G996 95 (G)10H0

investigated %

i{.j;nrhiﬂ*-&

Mumber of higher risk workplaces identified MIA 00

Mumber of higher risk workplaces receiving MFA 172

an intervention

High hazardfrisk workplaces receiving an 100 43

intervention o

Note:

OPM E** This is an annually assessed FOD-specific OPM which is reported at balf- and full-year stages only.

47
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Table 14 Delivering planned work - quarrer 3

DELIVERING PLANNED WORK HID R
End quarter 3 2004/035 Plan Outturn  Plan  Ougurn Plan Qutturn Plan Outtumn
OPrn Al
Total number of safety cases erc processed 133 207 MIA 6 74 55

[Mote: MSD report consents and agreements)

Total number of safety cases erc processed 233 207 NIA (13 4 33
to time and quality standards

Safety cases cte processed to time % 100 (G100 100 (G)97 100 (G100
OPM C

Total number of complaints reported A 16 826 333 277 MN/A 504 MN/A 7

-r'I:;}tal number of complaints followed up MIA 15 525 ang 7 N/A 490 A 7

Complaines investngated % %0 (G)92.3 a0 1G] %64 a0 (G972 W0 (G100
OPM D

Total number of incidents reported MN/A 3945 3307 MFA 376 MrA 65

Total number of incidenrs :i‘l:u meet HSC 3048 124 152 M/A i76 M/A 65

criteria

Total number of incidents that meet criteria 3986 215 145 M/A 375 N/A 63

and were investigated

Incidents that met HSC criteria 95 (G198 95 (G54 95 (G997 95 (G100
mvestigated %

OPM E** 3
Mumber of higher risk workplaces identified MNIA B0}
Mumber of higher risk workplaces receiving MNIA MIA

AN intervention

High hazardfrisk workplaces receiving an 100 MrA
INEErvention s

MNote:

OPM E®® This is an annnally assessed FOD-specific OPM which is reported at balf- and full-year stages only.

4%
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Table 14 Delivering planned work - quarter 4

DELIVERING PLANMNED WORK 1
End quarter 4 2004/05 Plan Qutturn Plan  Qutturn Plan Outturn Plan Ouiturn
Toral number of safery cases etc processed 310 303 NVA §2 102 79

(Mote: NSD report consents and agreements)

Toral number of safety cases erc processed BN 303 MIA T 102 79
to time and quality standards

Safety cases erc processed to time %o 100 (G)10D 100 A9268 100 (G100

Total number of complaints reported NIA 21 805 430 369 MIA 611 NIA g
Total number of complaints followed up N/A 20 681 405 3 ;e_. MNIA 587 NIA 9 R
Complaints investigated % ) (G195 o0 (G965 90 (GEe0T 50 (G) tu;_
“orMD 5
Toral number of incidents reported MNIA MIA 5260 4215 NrA 489 N/A 92
Total number of incidents thar meer H5C 4306 301 194 N/A 454 BIA 82
criteria

Total number of incidents that meet criteria 4118 301 192 BA 438 NIA L]

and were investigated

Incidents thar met HSC criteria 93 1G)9% 95 (Graa g5 {GI199.80 93 (G100
investigated

Number of higher risk workplaces identified N/A 599

Number of higher risk workplaces receiving MIA 583
an Intervention

High hazard/risk workplaces receiving an 1K) [G)97
intervention

Note: OPM E** Number identified reduced from 600 to 599 as one was wrongly identified and was not in scope, Sixteen
premises not visited due to closure, moving or cOminiing fufn-rr_':‘ﬂmur dcliom {::In.r.f in one case, threats uf violence).
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Annex 2: Legislative timetable

Much of HSEs work on legislative programmes orginares
from Europe and is unavoidable. But we do not see new or
revised regulation as the auromatic response to new or
changing circumstances. This work is informed by the
Commission’s Strategy so that resources can be deployed o

European projects

achieve maximum impact. Furthermore, in accordance with
the Government’s Better Regulation principles, unless they
can demonstrate clear health and safety benefirs, some
projects may be drawn to a close, and for others, we may
seek to deliver the same outcomes by non-legislative means.

All projects and projected milestones in this timetable are subject to the results of consultation and, where applicable, the
adaption of the relevant Enropean Directives. Where it is possible to give months for milestones these are given, where

‘quarters’ of a year are referred to, the following convention is wsed: quarter 1 = April to June, grarter 2 = July io
September, quarter 3 = October 1o December, quarter 4 = Jamary to March.

Action planned

Tule of project/

regulations

Milestone

Progress duning
200405

Chemical agents

This drafr Directive will
introduce occupational
exposure limits (OELs) to
be agreed by the EU and
will be implemented
through the new OEL
framework following
consuleation.

Diratt 2nd Indicative
Occupanional Exposure
Limiit Value Direcrive

Dangerous Substances
Directive 29th ATP
{adoprion to technical
progress|

Implementation of UK
regulations following 29th
ATP to the Dangerous
Substances Directive,
{Agreed starr of quarrer 1
2004405.)

Vote on technical progress
expected. Probable UK
implementation date
quarter 3 200504,

Vore on technical progress
and adoption of this
Directive stalled because of
an ouisianding issue over
the proposed limir for
nitrogen monoxide (WO
Adoption is unlikely before
summer 2005, HSE
commenced work in
quarter 4 to implement
most of the Direcrive ahead
of the due dare.

Consultation document
(CD) to be published
quarter 3 2004405,

Implementation due
quarter 3 2005/06.

CI published quarrer 4
2004105,

Dangerous Substances
Directive 30th ATP

Inirial negorianons to agres
substances for inclusion in
the 30ch ATP.

sn

Initial discussions berween
Member Stares quarrer 4
2004403,

Megotiarions ongoing.




Title of project/

regulations
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Action pi._‘lrl.n-:_'-;‘l

Milestone

Progress during
200405

Asbestos: EU proposals to
amend the Worker
Protection Directive
83MTIEEC

Final adopted text was
published in the Official
Journal 15 April 2003,

EC Regulation on the
Import and Export of
Dangerous Chemicals

Commence informal
consultation during
quarter 1 2004005,

CI to be published in
quarier 3 2004/05.

Proposed EC “.L'l?,_ll'.:lt'ilrrl. 10
introduce enhanced
measures to inform non-EL
countries about the dangers
of exported chemicals. To
replace the current
Regulation. This proposal
will implement the
Roterdam Convention on
Prior Informed Consent.

CI ro be published
quarter 1 200405,

Enforcement of Regulation
expected quarter 2 2004/05.

Exisring Substances
Regulations (ESK) and the
prc]gmmlm: {[JI"
Registration, Evaluanon
and Authorisation of
Chemicals (REACH)

Informal consultation
started in quarter 4 of
2004/05: CI is expected to
be published in quarter 3
2005/06. Following
consultation, final
regulations and ACOPs will
be prepared for submission
tor HSC and to the Mimster.
Timescales are such thar i
is unlikely that they will
come into force before the
Directive implementation
darte.

Enforcement Regulation
implemenred quarter 4

2004105,

Competent Authority
management with DEFRA
for 200405, H5E 1o
support DEFRA with work
such as ongoing
development of transinonal
arrangements berween ESR
and REACH.

Ongoing programme of risk
reduction strategy work.

European risk reduction
meeting planned for

quarter 3 200405,

HSE and DEFRA have
continued to progress UK
risk reduction serategies.

HSE provided ongoing
support to DEFRA on
[rANSITION Arrangements
between REACH and ESR.

Mew EL chemicals scheme
for registration and
authorisation (REACH)

Physical agents
Proposal for a European
Parliament and Couneil
Directive on Physical Agents
{Vibration)

Discussions in Council led
by DEFRA with HSE
advice.

Implementation planned in
quarter 2 200708

Implementation due July
2005,

Mo HSE milestones set but
ongoing contribution.

Timetable uncertain,

Directive adopted May
2002: came into force July
2002,

CD published guarter 3
2003/04.

Consultarion ended
quarter 4 2003104,

HSE contributed to
DEFRA-led negonations.

Regulations due to come
into force on & July 20035,

51
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Title of project/

regulations

Action planned

Milestone

Progress during
2004405

Proposal for a European
Parliament and Council
Directive on Physical Agenrs
{Moize)

Implementation due
February 2006,

Directive adopted December
2002: came into force
February 2003,

CID 1o be published
quarter 1 200403,

Proposed Moise Regulations
to be considered by H5C in
April 2005,

Proposal for European
Parliament and Council
Directive on Physical Agents
(Elecrromagnenic Fields)

Adoprion of proposed
Directive. If adopred will
need to be transposed into
UK legislation within four
vears of it coming into
force.

Directive proposed
December 2002,

Adoption in quarter 1
200:4403: coming into force
likely quarter 1 or 2
2004405,

The Directive came into
force at the end of April
2004 and will have o be
transposed into law by 30
April 2008, The
implementation process is
underway and a CD should
ke published in spring
2006,

Proposal for European
Parliament and Councl
Directive on Physical Agents
(Oprical Radiation)

Rail transport

Interoperability of the trans-
European conveniional rail
system (2001/16)

Adoption of expected
prn]'l-:u.;ll !|-1:l|' A nlrﬁ,‘[iv:'. ”
adopred will need to be
transposed into UK
legislation,

DHET lead. HSE wall
contribute,

Proposal expected quarter 1
2004005,

Directive expected o be
implemented by quarter 3
2004005,

Megotianons on proposal
began in July 2004 and
Common Posinion was
reached in December 2004,
The proposed Directive will
now be transmitted to the
European Parliament for
Second Reading.

Implementation of the
Directive on interoperabilicy
of the ‘conventional’
railway system
(2001/16/EC) delayed. The
regulations will be merged
with the currenr *high
speed’ regulations,
incorporating amendments
o provisions for both under
the Interoperability
Amendment Directive
(2004/50/EC). Estimated to
come into force in quarter 3
2005106,




litle of project/
regulations
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'1112_' [amn '|'I | ann I..'I.I

Milestone

Progress during

Proposed Railway Safery
rective

Proposed Interoperability
Amendment Directive
amending Directive
Ga/48EC on high-speed
interoperability and
Directive 2001/16/EC on
conventional
interoperability

Proposed European Railway
Agency Regulation

Proposed decision on the
Convention of International
Transporr by Rail

Proposed Market Access

Directive

Common Position has been
achieved, now working with
DT on progress through
European Parliament 1o
achieve a tavourahle
outcome in line with UK
negotatng steategy. (These
Direcrives erc are commonly
known as the Second
Railways Package.)

Adoption expected
quarter 1 2004/035,

The Railway Safery
Mirective (200449 FEC) was
adopred in Apnl 2004,
Provisions are to be
implemented via the drafi
Railways and Ocher Guided
']'r,1||'~'|'|url: f.-:."‘[n;ﬁ'lw. -,f"u,l‘l-l;r:. |
Rezularions (ROGS)
alongside the
interoperability regularions
{in quarrer 3 200506).
More detanl on ROGS can
be found in the domesric
seCiiomn |:-!|. !|1.:-\. Annex ulzdvr
Raslray Safery Regulations,

For details on the

interoperability amendment
Directive (200050FEC), see
Interoprerability on page 52.

The European Railway
Apency (ERA) was
established in January 2003,
HSE officials have reviewed
the ERA workplan and
identified kev areas that
mpact.

Proposed Directive on the
certification of train drivers
(Com (2004) 142)

Work equipment

Proposal for Third
amendment to the
Machinery Directive

HSE o contribure to DIT
lead.

Analysis and EU negotiation
[0 COninue.

[TT lead.

Proposals published
3 March.

Awaiting Council agreement
due quarter 3 or quarrer 4
2004103,

HSC [l;"!u[,'\l:l['lli_‘ll;_'ii to DFT in
quarrer 3 2004, Negotiation
continues mto 2005,

Amendment not expected o
rake effect untl 2006,

Use of Work Equipment
Directive (dealing with
Temporary Work at
Heights) 2nd amendment

Major hazards
Proposal for an amendment

to the SEVESO Directuve
(263 LEC)

To be implemented as a
single set of Work ar Height
Regularions,

Directive 2003/105/EC
adopted 31 December 2003.

Amended directive to be
implemented through
amendment 1o COMAH
Regulations.

Implement Regulations
third quarter 2004/05.

H5C endorsed
implementation strategy on
10 February 2004,

CD planned for end of
quarter 1 2004/05.

For i|11p|.|::m':'|t;'|liitllll by

1 July 2005.

Implemented through Work
at Height Regulations
(2005).

Consultanion ended May
2004,

Due to be implemented
[ July 2005.

LR
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Domestic projects

.'”II e i'_r.li'l.'l'.\' |l'fl'|.i lr_..,-”}"q-;,:n,-[ mrfestores in rj"'g, “'_r",[vr.jf;lﬁ- are ﬁd,:jr_'rf (4] ”-'-L" r{'jh’f!‘s :’r||r a;'mr;'rd!'mim:. erili'r-l‘:' il 15 J'H.FSSHJEP ey gfl'-"l‘.’
nionehs for milestones these are given, where ‘quarters” of a year are referred to the following convention is used: quarter 1
= ;ﬁ_p_rrf tor June, quarfer 2 :_Iru!]' fo _'g::'pj'r_'ni.!'n_'r, qidrier 1 = October to December, Juarter 4 = j-'-iﬂ“ﬂ-"}' to March.

Title of project/

regularions

Action planned

Milestone

Progress during
00405

Acerylene legislation

New framework tor
acetylene safery to replace
requirements currenily m
Explosives Act 1875,

Project under review.

Work stopped following
review - no signiticant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations
1944 (CIDM)

Construction (Health,
Safery and Welfare)
Regulations 1996

Control of Explosives
Regulations 2001

Dangerous Goods in
Harbours Regulations

To amend Regulations and
ACOE

CD planned for quarrer 3
2004105,

Planned implementarion
quarter 1 200607,

Consultation began in April
2005: due 1o end in July
2005,

To amend the Regulations.

As CDM Regulations
above. It 18 proposed o
amend these two sets of
regulations and produce a
single ser of construction
regulations (o be outlined
in the consultarive
document).

Consultation began in April
2005: due to end in July
2005,

Mew Regulations to
rationalise existing
Provisions,

CI 1o be published
quarter 4 2004405,

Mew Regulations ro be laid
quarter 4 2005/06,

Work suspended following
review bur is expected 1o
recommence in 2005/06,

Regulanons, ACOP and
guidance to be amended in
light of consulration
CXETCISE,

Project under review,

Work stopped following
review - no significant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Dangerows Substances
iMNotification and Marking
of Sites) Regulations 19990

Review of the Regulations.

Review completed by April
2004,

Under review.

Work stopped following
review - no significant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Dangerous Substances and
Explosive Atmospheres
Regulations 2002 (DSEAR)

Docks Regulations

Amendment to reflect
revised interface with
Marine and Coastguard
Agency.

Review of any amendments
that may be required will
take place by quarter 3 of
2004405,

Work stopped following
review - no significant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Regulations, ACOP and
puidance in process of
revision in consaltation
with the industry.

Dty to investigate
workplace accidents etc

Project under review.

Work stopped following
TEVICW - TIE xignifi:i::mr
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Consideratnon of responses
to recent consultarion
EXEFCISE,

Guidance developed
quarter 4 2003/04,

Guidance ro be published
quarter 1 200403,

Guidance published 8 July
2004,

54
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Action planned

Milestone

Progress during
2004405

Factories Act 1961 and
Offices, Shops and Railway
Premises Act 1963

Consolidation and remowval
of remaining requirements
where possible.

Produce position paper on
review work done so far
and sunser project -
quarter 1 2004705,

Work stopped following
review = no significant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

First Aid at Work
Regulations 1981

Follow on from research
project leading to a
consultation exercise in
2004,

Publish CI in quarter 2
2004/5,

Gas Safety (Management)
Regulations 199

Consultation on amending
Regulations.

Cas Safery (Insrallations
and Use) Regulations 1998

I{{'HI"IIH'I;\I:\ [ A |:|I~.|,'L:|\ SO
Diocument (DY) were
analysed and in Septémber
2004 H5C ,ll.l.'l.'pl:{'l.l HaEs
recommendation that the
Regulatons and ACOP
"I'Hil'l.ld (i1&] |]{ tll:‘ll‘l!'.l{d.

HSE will, however, address
and consult on certain issues
thar require clarification and
updating.

CID o be published
quarter 2 2004/03.

Consultation on amending
regulanons and ACOPR

CD expecred quarrer 3
2004105,

Repulations to be
implemented quarter 3
2005/6.

Health and Safety (Fees)
Regulations 2004

Annual revision of fees o
rake account of mflatan,

Mot taken forward, Gas
safety strategy reviewed to
align with the Commission’s
Strategy and prioricics
|‘L';'I‘."-l;"‘ihl.'l.].

Mot taken forward. Gas
safery strategy reviewed o
align with the Commission’s
H.tr.ﬂl_'.u.:; F.ur 210 ,'l1'|-'\| bevond
.,'|r|d pf“lr“ll,'\ reassessed.

Begulations came into force

1 April 2004,

Inhalable Dust in Coal
Mines

Mew Regulations and
ALOE.

Regulations to be submimed
quarter 4 2004/,

ACOP o be published
quarter 4 2004/5,

Consultation concluded
May 2004,

Progress has been delayed by
technical difficulties. Regu

larions and ACOP due 10 be
implemented & April 2006,

lonising Radiations
Amendment Regulations

Amend the lonising
Radiations Regulations
1999,

CD oo be ]1lll‘lli'&-|1flj
quarter 3 2004/05.

Work stopped tollowing
FEVIEW - M0 !.lg_',rufi-.':lﬂ[
benefit would be delivered
by the change.

Manufacture and Storage of
Explosives Regulations

Revise legal requirements in
new regulations - replacing
some 40 picces of earlier
legislation.

New Regulations expected
quarter 3 2004/05.

Due 1o come into force
26 April 2003,

Ferrol legislation

Phase 2 and 3 of the
Modernising petrol projeer
(Phase 1 completed by
DSEAR).

CD on proposals for petrol
filling stations {Phase 1) wo
be published by quarter 4
2004/03.

Review of phase 3 to be
undertaken in 2004/05,

Work stopped following
review = no significant
benefit would be delivered
by the change.
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Title of project/

regulations

Pipelines Safery
(Amendment) Regulations

Action planned

Amendments relating 1o the
testing of emergency plans;
addirional duties relating to
gasoline; and minor changes
to exisring definitions.

Milestone

CD to be published
quarter 2 2004/03,

Amended Regolations due
quarter 4 2004/3,

Progress during

Work stopped Fu]lnwirtg
FEVIEW - N Eigﬂiﬁcaﬂ!

benefir would be delivered }
by the change.

Railway Safery Regulations

Review of existing
requirements for railway
safety cases, approval of rail
plant and equipment, and
safery crinical work
following public inguiry
reparts, notably Lord
Cullen’s report on Ladbroke
Growve, and European
developments.

New Regulations to be
agreed quarrer 4 2004005,
These will implement safery
MANAZEMENT FEquirements
in the Railway Safety
Dirccrive, and replace three
existing sets of regulations
on railway saferv cases,
approval of rail plant and
equipment, and safery
erirical work.

Now referred to as the
Railways and Other Guided
Transport Systems (Safety)
Regulations (ROGS).

Main consulration ended
MNovember 2004 and
supplementary consultarion
in January 2003,

Timing of commencement is
dependant on co-ordination
with DIT"s implementanon
of other EC railway safety
Directives,

Railway Safety Regulations
1999

Review of requirements
concerning Train Protection
Warning Svsrem (TPWS5) for
over speed mitigation.

Possible amendments in
2004005

Awaiting proposals from
Metwork Rail for a possible
exemption application for
the removal of the TPWS

at permanent speed
restricrions where it is being
used as an over-speed
detection svstem.
Amendments delaved until
2005/06.

Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health
[Amendment) Regulations
2004 (COSHH)

Review of OEL framework
in the Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health
framewaork.

Implementation of EC
Direcoive on high chromium
(V1) cement.

Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health
Regulations (COSHH)

Revision of OEL tor
respirable crystalline silica

(RCS).

Analysis of responses to CD
due end of quarter 1.

Regularions expected
quarter 3 2004/05,

Consultation concluded and
analysed.

Main provisions
implemented on 17 January
2005 with the remainder
following on & April 2005,

Proposal (including
regulatory impacr
assessment and draft CDY
0 be submitted to ACTS
in November 2004,

CD to be published
quarter 4 2004/05,

Consider responses to CD

quarter 2 2005/05.

Implement new OEL
quarter 4 2003/06.

Consultation was due to
begin in April 2005 but
was postponed due to the
General Election, It is now
scheduled for May 2005,

13
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Action planned

Milestone

Progress during
2004/05

Offshore Installations
(Safery Case) Regulations
1992

Revise 1992 Regularions to
improve effecrivensss and
reduce bureaucracy.

Reporting of Injuries,
Discases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations

1995 (RIDDOR)

Fundamental review of
legislation aimed ar
simplificarion and greater
effectiveness,

Shipbuilding/Ship Repair
Regulations

Revoke requirements
superseded by Working ar
Heights Directive.

Standard of training in safe
gas installatons ACOP

Amend the now ourdated
1988 ACOP

CID 1o be published
quarter 1 2004/05,

Regulations due end of
quarter 1 2005/06.

Commission research and
issue DD in quarer 2
2004405,

Consider responses to DD
and issue CD quarter 4
2004/05 1o quarter 1
2005/086,

Consulation concluded in
Movember 2004,

Due in force "n.']'|1|;n'||'|{'|
2005.

|-.'uy|_|-.~.1-: ¥l d-:u., UITHENT Was
published in March 2005
and the exercise will end on
30 Jume 2005,

Consultarion exercise ended
ar end ot quarrer 4
20030044,

Analysis of consultation

EXCICISE,

Revocanions 1o be
implemented in quarter 3
2004/05.

CI} to be published in
quarrer 4, 200405 to
include recommendarions
arising from the
fundamental review of gas
safery.

Revocations occurred under
the Work Ar Height
Regulations 2005 that came
into force on & April 20035,

;"\;n[ i,qk{'” [|_11 '.'.'.,'lr'd. Caas
safery strategy reviewed to
align with the Commission’s
Strategy and priorigies
reassessed.
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Annex 3: HSC Advisory Commuittees

Industry advisory committees Subject advisory committees - '
Agriculrural Drangerous Substances

Construction Occupational Health

Mining (formerly Deep Mined Coal) Toxic Substances

Muclear Safery Biocides Consultative® |
Health Services |
Higher and Further Education i
Offshore Other committees ! "
Paper and Board HSE and Local ﬁulhﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁfmhl- ﬂ{ELL'kl --I
Printing Advisory Committee on Dangerous Pathogens i
Railway Scientific Advisory Committee on Genetic Modification
Rubber

Schools Educarion

Textiles

* The Biocides Consuleative Commattes 15 a ion-statitory comasittee established in 2001 to provide HSCE and ministers with independent scaentific advice on
the evaluation of biocidal products under the Biocidal Producs Regulations 2001, Its members are appointed by HSC subject to the agreement of ministees,

When advisory committees produce and publish guidance
they do so with H5C's endorsement. Subject advisory
committees allow the Commission to take views on difficult
issues, typically of cross-departmental interest. They provide
formal consultation mechanisms in areas of high public and
political sensitivity and the involvement of outside experts
helps give legitimacy to their, and o the Commission’s,
acrivities, They also act as a sounding board tor HSE
proposals.

H5C's advisory committecs encourage the joint
participation of all representative organisations in the
improvement of health and safery ar work, draw on the
expertise and advice available on both sides of industry and
elsewhere, give the problems of particular industries closer
and more detailed arrention than HSC iself 15 able o do,
and allow an industry focus on general 1ssues (such as noise
and CO5SHH). HSC also rakes advice from HELA, which
seeks 1o ensure consistency of approach among LAs and

HSE.

Agendas, papers and minutes of meetings, as well as
summaries of open meetings, are published on the internet
at: hurpafwww.hse.goviukfaboutus/meetingsfindex_hm.
Examples of activities during the year:

Offshore Industry Advisory Committee {(OIAC)

B Insupport of HSC's recent declaration, the key work
priority is to develop an action programme to
encourage greater workforce involvement in offshore
safery.

58

m  Fifth open session to date held in Angust 2004, This
was a joint event with the industry’s Step Change for
Safety Programme Combined Networks and provided
an excellent opportunity to encourage closer working
and discuss common goals.

(] Consideration of the outcome of consultation on

proposals for new Offshore Installations (Safery Case)
Regulations.

Construction Industry Advisory Committee
(CONIAC)

[ 4 COMNIAC was reconstituted in 2004, with a smaller
membership and a new approach designed to
COCOUrage more effective parmm‘ship with
intermediary groups and trade unions. The main
commitoee met three fimes.

] A Construction Health and Safery Summir, attended
by 200 senior directors and executives from the
industry, took place in February 20035,

® A series of working parties met to advise and carry
out work in support of HSEs Construction
Programme, eg to improve standards of worker
consultation and engagement in the industry and the
revision of the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations. The House Builders
Federation, the Construction Confederarion and the
Association of Brinsh Insurers made presentations to
CONIAC demonstrating the work being carried out
by members to improve standards in the industry.
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Railway Industry Advisory Committee (RIAC)

Fourth open meeting held in Edinburgh in July 2004,
This successful meeting, artended by approximately
80 people, addressed Are the railiways safe enough?
and Controlling risks at level crossings. The meeting
led to constructive talks between Nerwork Rail and
other stakeholders involved. '
Strategic advice provided o HSC on the development
of the Railways and Other Guided Transport Systems
iSafery) Regulations. The Human Factors Working
Group developed a website providing guidance,
information and case studies on a range of railway
I5511E5,

Advisory Committee on Toxic Substances
(ACTS)

Second open meening held in Movember 2004, which
was attended by 21 non-members. The conclusion
from a questionnaire was thar the meeting was a
SUCCESS.

Further development of proposals to introduce a new
occupational exposure limir framework, resulting in
the puhlicarinn of a consultation document in autumn
2003, There was widespread public supporr for
almost all aspects of the proposals. Recommendations
were made to HSC in 2004,

ACTS members continue 1o promote H3CEs new
Chemicals Strategy, publicise and promote the new
ACTS work plan and initiative to prevent
occupational asthma, and vo identify opportunines for
joined-up working. Several potential imtiatives are
currently being explored that may result in joint
chemical-related activities berween ACTS and other
advisory commirtees.

Helping H5E d.t:w:inp suh-pmgmmmﬁ on silica, skin
disease and occupational cancer in support of HSE’s
Chemicals Programme.

Nuclear Safety Advisory Committee (NuSAC)

Provided responses to a wide variety of consultation
documents including DTS Proposals for intermediate
level radioactive waste substitution, and HSE'
Proposal to publish HSE criteria for delicensing parts
af, or entire sites, licensed under the Nuclear
Installations Act 1965,

Raised concerns regarding the possible pace of
competition for nuclear licensed sites, which the NDA
will take responsibility for. The HSC Chair forwarded
those concerns to the Secretary of State.

A new MuSAC Chair was appointed followed by a
formal review of MuSAC in readiness for its
reconsttution.

Published a Triennial Report for its work for the
pericd 1999 go 2001

(http/iwww.hse.govauk! abourushschiacsnusacl
trirev99-01.pdf).

Occupational Health Reference Group (OHAC)

Ar the end of 2003, H5C agreed that it did not wish o
reconstitute OHAC ar thae time and that HSE should seek
other ways of consulting stakeholders on developments in
occupational healeh.

B Some former members have met on an informal basis
te assist with the development of Workplace Health
Direct, new support pilors and other programmes,
They have maintained links with their original
spmlsnrin[.'. Orga MISATIoNSs.

[ ] H5E is meeting existing occupational health providers
as part of irs work 1o determine service standards for
the pilots. It has esrablished a Programme Board for
Workplace Health Direce thar includes external
members.

[ ] Industry volunteers have been involved in the
development of stress management standards. Experts
have contributed through workshops, and a wide
electronic consultation was undertaken, rargeting
groups with a high incidence of siress.

[ ] HSE staff members maintain regular contact and
discussion with occuparional health professional
organisations. H5SE has introduced a shore quarterly
newsletter 1o keep a wider group of occupanonal
health professionals informed of current
developments. This information can be used to inform
their nerworks,

Mining Industry Committee (MIC)

®  Three meetings were held duning 2004/05.

®  During the period, the Committee reviewed progress
with the legislarive renewal programme for the Coal
Mines Inhalable Dust Regulations, the relocaton of
the Selby Mines Rescue Station to Kellingley Mine,
the Falls of Ground Annual Report for 2003004,
manriding train derailments, and the voluntary
reporting arrangements,

Printing Industry Advisory Committee (PIAC)

] PIAC plan of work concentrated on driving down
MSDs in printing and publishing, and reducing
ill health from chemical exposure. [s detailed annual
report for 2003/04 showed an overall reduction in the
rate of reported injuries for the printing and
publishing industries since the baseline year of
199972000, mostly from fewer machinery-related
accidents, but MSDs were also beginning to decline.

B A successful open meeting was held in Bristol in
November 2004 on the theme of manual handling.
Representatives from around 80 companies were
given a practical demonstration on how to carry out a
manual handling assessment using the new Manual
Handling Assessment Chart tool
{hetp=iiwww.hse.gov.uk/msd/macfindex.him).

= Members continue to actively engage in a project to
deliver key guidance directly to printing companies.
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Textiles Industry Advisory Committee (TEXIAC)

] Directed its efforts to reducing MSDs and o
preparing the rexnles, footwear and clothing
industries for new regulations on controlling noise
{expected implementation dare February 200a).

= Open meeting held on noise (to help the industry
work toward better contral ar source) at Leicesrer in
March 2005, The well-artended meeting examined the
likely impact of the proposed regulations on their
companies and worked through a number of pracrical
SCETATIOS.

Rubber Industry Advisory Committee (RUBIAC)

[ | Discussions are currently ongoing with members to
agree a new srrategic direcrion, In irs reconsrituned
form (due 2005), RUBIAC will better reflect the
whaole rubber industry and include nor juse
manufacrurers of tyres, retreaders and general rubber
goods producers but also those handling rubber goods
in the supply chain and service industries.

] Open meeting held in June 2004 at HSE's Mewcastle-
under-Lyme office. People were invited ro sit in on a
normal meeting and hsten to the committee’s
deliberations, ,

m  RUBIAC has long seen poor training as an obstacle to
securing improvements in health and safety
management in the indusiry. It issued a recommended
practice approach to training for senior executives,
managers, supervisors and shop floor workers in
support of the RUBIAC Accident Reducrion Acrion
Flan. The acrion plan has training rargets for
companies who have signed up to it. Progress on the
targets will be measured at the end of the action plan
period against a baseline survey raken when the
practice nppr::lm:h was issued.

[ ] RUBIAC members became increasingly concerned
about NHS urinary cytology screening for rubber and
other workers, As a result of lobbying by RUBIAC
members, the NHS UK MNarional Screening Commirtee
held a Bladder Cancer Screening Wurksh{:p n
September 2004 in Leeds, This was well arrended by
employer and TU members of RUBIAC who put their
arguments across so well on the benefirs of such
screening that the Committee Chair, Dr Muir Gray,
agreed thar the NHS should continue o provide the
SEFVICE.

Paper and Board Industry Advisory Committee
(PABIAC)

] Arrangements are currently being made to reconstinure
PABIAC. In the past it only dealr with papermaking;
in its reconstituted form it will address the health and
safety needs of the whole of the paper indusery, from
paper makers to converters (including corrugarors) o
recovered paper operarions.

] Successful open meeting held in November 2004
attended by abour 70 directors, managers, health and
safety professionals, TU officers and safery
representatives from the various paper industries.
Topics addressed included transport safery, safe

interventions at machines, assessing manual handling
risks and securing workforce involvement in health
and safery. The evenr was a successful way of sharing
information about best practice and delegates gave a
commitment 1o taking action o bring abour
improvements in their own businesses and places of
work.

(] A parmership approach was used o develop an
agreed health and safety improvement strategy for the
entire paper industry for the period 2005-08. The new
strategy sets agreed targets for reducing the sector's
reportable injury incidence rate, days lost due o
injury and occupational ill health, provision of
pccupational health services, arrangements for
absence management, implementanon of robust safery
management systems and continuously improving
business safety culture.

Higher and Further Education Advisory
Committee (HIFEAC) and the Schools Education
Advisory Committee (SEAC)

B Ascalled for in the Commission’s Strategy, both
commirtees were reviewed in 2003, This led to the
development of a new approach, focusing on delivery
of outcomes and invelving more effective partnership
working berween key educarion stakeholders. We sce
re-engagement at this new level as a more effective
way of delivering our rargers.

Agricultural Industry Advisory Committee
(AIAC)

AIAL held its last meeting in October 2003, H5C agreed to
the continued existence of the committee and in February
2004 approved its reconstitution. The first meeting of the
newly reconstituted ATAC will be held on 21 Apnl 2005,

Examples of the activiries and successes of AIAC three
working groups are as follows;

®  The Arboriculture and Forestry Advisory Group
(AFAG): HSE took responsibility for some of the
educational and advisory work in the forestry and
arboriculmure industries thar would have disappeared
I"n“:}willl.'; the loss of the Forestry and Arbonculture
Safery and Training Council (FASTCO).

m  The Agriculture Safety Advisory Group (ASAG): The
educarional members of ASAG (the National Forum
of Agricultural Engineers and the Association of
Lecturers in Agriculrural Machinery) were involved in
pilot tesiing education traning packs o ensure thar
HAE publications were fit for purpose. This work
included feedback o the conrractors developing the
II‘.".'ITI‘IiI!E materials as well as involvement in the
evaluation of the orginal Tractor action publication,

®  The Health in Agriculture Group (HIAG): Working
with others, including the Qualificarions and
Curriculum Authority, training providers and
awarding bodies in the industry, HIAG developed a
strategic agreement on the structure and content of
vocarional qualifications for improving the
management of health and safety in agriculture.
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HIAG also made progress in reducing the size of
bagged and similar products to further reduce the risk
of M5Ds in the industry and sponsored independent
evaluation of projects aimed ar providing
occupational health support and rehabilitation
services to the farming community,

Advisory Committee on Dangerous Substances

(ACDS)

B Two meetings were held during 2004/05 - an open
meeting in Manchester in November 2004, and a
routine’ meeting the following day, ar which members
agreed that all routine ACDS meetings would be held
in public. At the open meeting, members of the public
were invited to discuss the impact of the
Commission’s Strategy on the work of ACDS, ACDS's
involvement in work on land use planning, the
Chemical Essenrtials project and the updating of the
Explosives Act 18735,

B ACDS contributed towards the development of H5C's
final proposals for the Manufacture and Storage of
Explosives Regulations and the implementation of the
amendments to the SEVESO 1 Directive (Directive
2003/105/EC).

m  Pending its reconstitution, a review of the
Committee’s functions and working methods was
underraken. The results will be presented o HSC
during 2005/06 with recommendations regarding the
Commitree’s future role.

Other committees

HSE plays a key role in two other advisory committees which
advise Government, namely the Advisory Committee on
Dangerous Pathogens (ACDP), and the Scientific Advisory
Committee on Genetic Modificarion (Contained Use)
(SACGM({CLI)).

m  ACDP's secretariat is shared equally by HSE, the
Health Protection Agency (HPA) and DEFRA and
gives advice on biological agents.

B SACGM(CU) is a new committee set up in January
2004 ro replace HSC's long-running Advisory
Commirtee on Genetic Modificarion (ACGM).
SACGM(CU)'s secretariat is run by HSE and it gives
scientific advice to the UK Competent Authorities
(HSE and DEFRA for England and Wales, HAE and
the Scottish Executive for Scotland) on martrers
relating to genetically modified organisms in
containment facilities,

B  The committees have advised on a number of key
areas including amendments to Schedule 5 of the
Anti-terrorism, Crime and Security Act, and Civil
Contingency issues such as pandemic flu
preparcdness.

Further information can be found ar the following websites:
hitp:/fwww.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/meetings/acdp/index.hrm; and
http:/fwww.hse.gov.ukfaboutus/meetings/sacgmeu/index. hem.
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Annex 4: Statutory and other approval

schemes

In some kev areas of risk HSE continues to operate
statutory assessment or approval schemes aimed at ensuring
product safety before supply. Progress during 2004/053 is
given below,

Chemical product safety

HSE is part, or the whole, of the UK Competent Authority
or the relevant UK regulatory authority for several
international programmes on chemicals and their potential
effect on health, safery and the environment. 5ome
programmes, eg under the Notification of New Substances
(MONS) and Existing Substances Regulations, place
prescriptive legal duties on HSE. Most of the programmes
operate on the supply side, establishing a regulatory regime
for industrial chemicals ar their poine of supply, which then
guides the risk management of the chemical as it moves
through the supply chain.

Progress

HSE continued in progressing the evaluanon of subsrances
assigned o the UK and in contributing to the international
debate on chemical safety. A proposal has been made for
the replacement of the existing schemes by a new approach,
which is currently under discussion in the European
Council; HSE has been contributing to the UK position in
the negotiations (DEFRA leads for the UK). NOMNS: 208
1tems were processed against a predicoed 211,

Pesticides and biocides approval

Pesticides and biocides can present high risks to workers’
health as well as 1o bystanders and the environment.
Cowvernment has decided these chemicals warrant statutory
approval schemes, On behalf of HSC, HSE acts as the UK
Competent Authority for biocides under the EL Biocidal
Products Directive, and for the appn:n-'al of pesticides under
the national Control of Pesticides Regulations, As such HSE
carries out the technical appraisal of non-agriculiural
pesticides and has the lead for worker protection issues for
agricultural pesticides. Work has now begun on reviewing
substances under the biocides scheme thar will lead o
improved worker protecrion across the ELL

Progress
1] 150 pesticide approvals issued, 96% delivered within

agreed performance standards. One new active
substance assessed.

Bl

] 16 (00 enguirics dealt with (predicted figure: 9000,
All enguiries answered within the “service first’
deadlines.

® UK representation at European Competent Authonty
meetings continued, as did that at Technical Meerings
ro develop guidance on the evaluation of active
substances and products.

First aid approval and monitoring

The First Aid Approvals and Monitoring Section (FAAMS)
has carricd out preliminary assessments of (and arranged
for the Training Approval Services Consortium (TASC), as
its main contractor, to carry out original approval
assessments and original approval menitoring visits for) the
70 new training provider entrants to the first aid at work
training industry in 2004/05. FAAMS has also organised
(through TASC) around 300 post-approval monitoring
VISiTE [0 eXISTINE raining organisanons. FAAMS has carried
out a programme of direct verification visits with TASC in
order to assess their quality and consistency.

Asbestos licensing

Currently 3000-4000 people a year die from asbestos-
related diseases caused by exposures relating o working
conditions many vears ago. The Asbestos (Licensing)
Regulations 1983 ban anyone from carrying out work with
the most hazardous forms of ashestos-containing material
uriless they hold {or work for someone who holds) a licence
granted by HSE. HSE carries out assessments of licence
applicants to ensure that only those who are comperent are
granted a licence. Licensees are required by their licence
conditions to notify the enforcing authority with details of
the proposed work so the latter can assess the proposals
and inspect the site before or during the work.

Progress

u As ar 23 March, 251 new and renewal licences issued.

[ ] Following assessment, 24 applicants were refused a
licence, as they did not meet the required standard.

B Monitoring of performance on site resulted in 37
enforcement notices being served on licensees, the
conviction of three licensees for ashestos-relared
offences, and the revocation of one company’s licence.

B Targets for visits made by HSE to priority category
licensees were all exceeded bar one category (85% of
new licensees visited against a targee of 90%). HSE
carried our 896 site inspections.
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Foreword

1  Background information

The Health and Safery ar Work erc. Act 1974 provided tor
the creanion of a Healch and Sﬂﬁ:t}' Commuission (HSC) and
Healeh and Safery Executive (HSE) and the continuation of
the Employment Medical Advisory Service (EMAS). The
Commission came inte being on 1 October 1974 and
appointed the Health and Safety Executive on 1 January
1975, The aims of the Commission and the Execurtive,
whose existence and funcrions derive from the 1974 Act,
are to protect the health, safety and welfare of employees
and to safeguard others, principally the public, who may be
exposed to risks from work activities. For further
information refer to paragraphs 1 to 362 of the Annual
Report.

The financial statements of the Commission and Executive
have been prepared pursuant to paragraphs 14(1) and 201}
of Schedule 2 of the Health and Safery ar Work erc. Ace
1974 in a form determined by the Secretary of Stare with
the approval of the Treasury. They are accruals-based
financial statements thar show the fll in-vear costs of the
Commission and Executive. The financial statements
consolidare the figures for the Health and Safery Laborarory
(H5L). H5L became an in-house agency of HSE on 1 April
1995 and operates on ‘Next Steps Agency” principles under
the direction of a Chief Execurive, who is also their
Accounting Officer. They are required to recover the full
cost of their operations in accordance with HM Treasury’s
Fees and Charges Guide and are subject to the controls
imposed on a ner running Cosrs regime.

2 Results and appropriations

Mer operating cost for HSC was £694 006, The net
operating cost for H5E was £214 849 652,

3  Review of activities

The Annual Report reviews the delivery of aimsfobjectives
and plans published in the HSE Business Plan 2004/05.

4  Significant changes in the values of fixed
assets

Land and buildings and furniture and fittings additions
{refer Note &) include amounts of £54 million and

£2.4 million respectively relating to the completed
comstruction of a new laborarory ar Buxton to
accommaodate all of H5L and which has been funded under
the Private Finance Initianve (refer Note 20).

L]

5  Market value of land and buildings

The leaschold building ar Stoneleigh, which has an existing
use value of £225 000, has an open marker value of nil due
o the stricr user clause and the bar on assignment and sub-
letting. Other than this property, there is no significant
difference berween the book values and the marker values
of land and buildings included in these accounts.

6 Research and development

HSE's research and d.c'.':.'iupmcnt and technical SUPPOIT are
detailed in paragraphs 290 ro 299 of the Annual Reporr.

7 Future development

The Secretary and Minister of State for Work and Pensions
have recently approved the HSC Business Plan 2005006 to
2007708 (heepofwww.hse.govauk). This document sets out
how we intend o prioritse and focus our work, 1o use our
recently confirmed resource settlement (from the 2004
Spending Review) to implement the HSC Strategy for
workplace bealth and safery in Grear Britain to 2000 and
beyond and deliver the Public Service Agreement (PSA)
target. The goal by 2008 is to improve health and safery
outcomes in Great Britain through progressive improvement
in the contral of risks in the workplace.

As part of our accommaodation stravegy, and following a
comperitive exercise to provide new serviced offices for irs
Merseyside Centre, HSE chose Kajima Development as the
preferred bidder in December 2002, The full business case
was approved by the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) in August 2003 and negotiations conecluded in
October 2003 when contracts were exchanged.
Construction is well advanced and occupation is likely to
take place over the summer 20035,

8  Health and Safety Commission members
Chairman: Bill Callaghan.

Other members: George Brumwell CBE, Margaret Burns
CBE, Daniel Carrigan, Aldul Chowdry, Judith Donovan
CEBE, Jovce Edmond-Smith, Judith Hackirr, John
Longworth, Elizabeth Snape and Hugh Robertson.

George Brumwell resigned with effect from 30 September
2004 and was succeeded on 1 October 2004 by Daniel

Carrigan,
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Abdul Chowdry resigned with effect from 31 March 2005
and was succeeded on 1 April 2005 by Sayveed Khan.

9  Health and Safety Executive members
Director General: Timothy Walker CB.

Other members: Kare Timms 'liilf».r Justin McCracken and
Jonarhan Rees.

Kate Timms retired in September 2004 and was succeeded
by Jonathan Rees.

10 Corporate governance

The Health and Safety Commission and the Health and
Safery Executive are committed 1o supporting the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance and the
Turnbull Report to the exrent thar the Code can be applied
to the Public Sector.

HSC (*the Commission’) comprises a Chairrman and nine
members who are all the equivalent of independent non-
executive directors. They are appointed on a fixed term
basis (see Mote 3 in the H53C aceounts and Note 2 in the
HSE accounts) with no automatic right of reappoinmment,
The appointments are made by the Secretary of Stare
through standard public appointment procedures.
Commission members are appointed after consuleation with
OTZANISATONS representing l.'l'l'lpl'[!}'fl.'?.\* EII'I]}[H}"L‘L'S.. local
aurhorities and other relevant bodies.

HSE (*the Execurive’) comprises a Director General and two
deputies who are all the equivalent of executive directors
(see page ix of the Annual Report). All three members of
the Executive are appointed by the Health and Safery
Commission under Civil Service rules administered by the
Civil Service Commissioners and with the approval of the
Secretary of State. The remuneration of the Executive
members is determined by a Commission Pay Committee,
within the framework for Senior Civil Service pay.

The general functions of the Commission and the Executive
are specified in the Health and Safery ar Work ete. Act
1974, the Executive being primarily responsible for
operational matters. Regular meetings are held both by the
HS5C and the HSE Board o discuss strategic direction and
plans, formulate policy on key issues ete in order 1o
maintain full and effective control over all significant policy,
regulation and guidance, compliance, organisational and
financial issues.

Throughour the vear and in all material respects, the
Executive complied with the terms of the financial
memorandum issued b}' the Secretary of State. A separate
statement is made on the system of internal conrrol.

11 Equality and diversity
The Executive is an Equal Opportunities Employer with a

determination to treat all people fairly, irrespective of
gender, ethnic origin, marital status, religious belief, age,

sexual orientation or disability. Main achievements during
2004/05 are shown in paragraph 323 of the Annual Report.

12  Employee involvement

There are well-established consultation arrangements in
HSE for recognised trade unions to contribute to all marters
affecting the staff. Staff involvement is actively encouraged
as part of day-to-day line management and efforts are being
made o improve methods and channels of communicatien.
In addirion o formal consultations with H5E trade unions,
staff are directly consulted and briefed abour major
proposals for organisational or personnel changes. Further
details are shown in parageaphs 338 1o 341 of the Annuoal
Repori.

13 Prompt payments

H5E is committed to the prompt payment of hills tor goods
and services received and conforms to the principles of the
Better Payment Pracrice Code, 1ssued by the Berter Pavment
Practice Group. Payments are normally made as specified in
the contract. If there is no contractual provision, or other
understanding, payment is due 1o be made within 30 days
of the receipt of the goods or services or presentation of a
valid invoice or similar demand, whichever is later. HAE's
overall performance during 2004/05 was 99.4% (2003/04 -
98.9%) of invoices paid within the agreed credir period.

14 Health and safety within HSE

The Executive aims to set and maintain exemplary
standards of performance which are consistent with those
recommended by us to others, so as 1w ensure the health
and safety of its staff, as well as others who may work at or
visit our premises. Further details are shown in paragraphs
345-362 of the Annual Report.

15 Environment

HSE has continued to pursue and promaore best
environmental practice and ro implement initiatives ser our
in the model policy statement issued by the Department of
the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA). Further
details are shown in paragraph 330 of the Annual Report.

16 Introduction of the euro

While the UK stays outside the European Monetary Union
(EMU), the euro is a foreign currency and HSE processes a
relatively small number of foreign currency (European)
transactions. HSE continues 1o manage preparations
necessary for possible changeover to the single currency, in
line with the Second Mational Changeover Flan,

DWP continues to maintain its changeover planning and
preparation activities such that, in the event of a positive
decision to join the single European currency, the changes
required to the computer systems, business systems and
products will have been identified and quantified and we
would be able to meet the timescales set out in the Third
Mational Changeover Plan.

a7
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Statement of the Commission’s, the
Executive’s, the Chairman’s and the
Director General’s responsibilities

Under paragraphs 14(1) and 20{1) of Schedule 2 of the
Health and Safery ar Work etc. Act 1974 the Health and
Safery Commission and the Health and Safery Executive are
required to prepare a statement of accounts for each
financial year in the form and on the basis determined by
the Secretary of State, with the consent of the Treasury. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a
true and fair view of the Commuission’s and the Execurive’s
state of affairs ar the year-end and of their net operating
cost, recognised gains and losses and cash fows for the
financial year.

In preparing their accounts, the Commission and Executive
are required ro:

®  observe the Accounts Directions issued by the
Secretary of State, including the relevanr accounting
and disclosure requirements, and apply suttable
accounting policies on a consistent basis;

m  make judgements and estimares on a reasonable basis;

[ ] stare whether app]i::.'thh: accounting standards have
been followed, and disclose and explain any marerial
departures in the financial statemenis;

L] prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless it is inappropriate 1o presume thar the
Commuission and the Execunive will continue in
OPEranom.

The Accounting Officer for the Deparment for Work and
Pensions has designated the Chairman of the Health and
Safery Commission and the Director General of the Health
and Safery Execurive as Accounrting Officers for the
Commission and Executive respectively. Their relevant
responsibilities as Accounting Officers, including their
responsibilities for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which they are answerable and for the keeping
of proper records, are ser our in the Non-Departmental
Public Bodies® Accounting Officer Memorandum, issued by
the Treasury and published in Government Accounting.

&9
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Statement on internal control

1 Scope of responsibility

As Accounring Officers (for the Health and Safery
Commission, the Chair, and for the Health and Safety
Executive, the Director General), we have responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal contral that
supports the achievement of the Health and Safery
Commission’s (H5C's) and the Health and Safery
Executive’s (HSE) policies and straregic priorities, agreed
with the Department’s ministers, while safeguarding the
public funds and assets for which we are personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned
o us in Government Accounting.

HSC and HSE are Non-Departmental Public Bodies
esrablished under the Health and ."Lnﬂ:'r:,' at Work eoc Act
1974. The sponsoring department is the Department for
Work and Pensions (DWP). DWP ministers have
responsibilicy for health and safety issues in government.
HSC/E submits quarterly performance reports on progress
towards Public Service Agreement (PSA) targets to the DWP
minister responsible for workplace health and safery (the
Minister for Wark). The Chair of the Commission and
senior HSE managers meer the Minister formally mwice a
year to discuss these reports, in addition to other meetings
and contacts; HSC/E also report to other ministers on
different aspects of health and safery.

HSCE S wision 15 to gain recogmition of health and safety as
a cornerstone of a civilised society, and with that, to achieve
a record of workplace health and safery that leads the world.
Strategy for securing health and safery in relation w work
activities is set by H5C with input and support from HSE.

In February 2004 HSC published its strategy for the health
and safety system as a whole. The Strategy for workplace
bealth and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and bevond sets
ot whar HSC wants to achieve and how. It draws on
previous publications Secring Health Together and
Revitalising Health and Safety; both published in 2000.

It focuses on delivering the targers agreed with ministers
originally set ourt in Revitalising Healelh and Safery. A key
theme 15 1o concentrare on things thar HSE and LAs are
best placed to do and where they will have greatest impacr.

2 The purpose of the system of internal
control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to
a reasonalle level rather than ro eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims, abjectives and strategic priorities.
It can therefore provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectivencss, The system of internal control is
based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of HSC/ES policies,
aims and abjectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and
o manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. It

70

has been in place and progressively dl:fdnp:r] in HSCSE over
the vear ended 31 March 2005 and up o the dare of approval
of the Annual Report and Accounts, and accords with
Treasury guidance.

3  Capacity to handle risk

Reducing risk to members of the puhlii: s0 far as is reasonably
pracrical iz an integral part of HSC/E's mission, HSC consults
formally on all regulatory changes. It is also using new means
of consultation in order to ensure as wide a range of
stakeholders as possible 15 reached.

During 2004, HSE developed the Business Plan 2005/06-
200708 which sets our its di.'iiﬁ:ry plans. This will be
primarily through Srrategic Delivery Programmes [(SDPs)
supported by four Strategic Enabling Programmes (STEPs).
Risk registers are evolving for each SDP with lower level
registers in place or developing for the component parts.
Effective risk management has been built into training modules
and guidance,

HS5E's corporare planning system has been changed radically to
meet these developments. HSC's Business Plan for 2004/03, the
first o pur the new Strategy into practice, and its successor for
200506-2007/08, ser our how HSE would use its resources,
alongside LA enforcement partners and other key stakeholders,
to deliver the Government’s health and safety PSA targets.
They are aimed at protecting people by ensuring healeh and
safery risks in the changing workplace are properly controlled.

HSE has moved to delivering a I:II!'E!,‘ proportion of its work
through programmes and projecrs. A dedicared team has been
established, an intranet site set up, a structured suite of
workshops has been delivered, covering programme and
project working and the concepts of business risk, ro equip
staff for this new way of working. Specific business risk
workshops helped im bulding the risk register when three
smaller programmes were mi:rgc:l to form the Fit for work, Fir
for life, Fir for tomorrow (Fit3) Steategic Delivery Programme.
Internally produced guidance Business risk management in
HSE: A short prractical guide, a product of HSE's Risk
Management Improvement Plan (RMIP), i3 on the intraner site.
It is a requirement that formal programme and project
management technigues are used for the planning and delivery
of all programme activity.

HSE's Risk Management Improvement Plan for 2004/05 was

designed 1o embed risk management processes further across
the organization. Much of thiz has been delivered.

4  The risk and control framework

HSE's Risk Management Framework codifies its overall
strategy for risk management. It emphasises the need for
business risk management to be integraed with the
organisarion’s management system to ensure thar risks ro
business are managed effectively and proportionately.
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The Corporare Risk Register sets out HSE's strategic risks
and is the focus for business risk management at corporate
level. For each risk a Board-level risk owner has
responsibility for ensuring adequate measures for managing
their risk are in place and thar their adequacy is regularly
reviewed. Where appropriare, action is raken or in hand o
add further controls if needed. Risk owners review the risks
they own to test whether they should be in the corporate
register and their mitigation is stll appropriate. Risk
owners have provided the Accounting Officers with signed
‘stewardship statements’ confirming that the risks they own
have been properly managed.

The HSE Board considered the Corporate Risk Register
four times in 2004/05 and change proposals were adopted.
It meets formally monthly ro action health and safery issues,
broad personnel matters, and HSE's approach to policy and
strategic marters. It alse monitored and managed
performance and delivery in key areas of HSE’s business
quarterly, using a Balanced Scorecard. During 2004/05 the
Balanced Scorecard approach was further developed ro
meet HSE purposes and continues to be developed in
2005/06.

A Delivery Board was established to support HSE's main
board in monitoring the delivery of the workplace health
and safety targers. A Business Improvement and Efficiency
Board ensured HSEs business improvement and efficiency
programmes contributed to delivery of HSC/E's mission.
Both were in place for most of 2004/035 until subsumed nro
the Resources and Delivery Group (RDG) in January 2005
in order to simplify and rationalise governance structures,

The Resources and Delivery Group consists of HSE' five
principal budget holders. Its objective is to ensure thar HSE
remains in a sound financial position, uses resources
effectively, improves business efficiency and progresses
towards its PSA targets. All boards have a focus on
managing any risks to the programmes and projects within
their remirs where these could not be effectively addressed
at a lower level,

Use of resources is subject to clear delegation, specified and
agreed in writing, from HSEs Accounting Officer to
individual senior managers who are principal budget
holders.

HSE’s and HSL's* budgets are monitored as a whole and
monthly reports provided ro main budget holders, the
Finance Director and the Accounting Officer (and in turn 1o
the Department and Treasury) based on the latest resource
putturn information provided by directorates.

Established corporare policies continue to operate covering
a wide range of issues. Th-l:l-,' pruvid-r an effective control
across a range of risks including the health and safery of
HSE™s own staff and contractors, personnel matters,
planning, finance, accounring, procurement, informaton
technology and regularity, propriety and authorisation of
expenditure. All are ser our in codes and other instructions,
communmcated rhrt:rughmlt the organisation, and available
to all scaff.

The Health and Safery Laborarory (HSL) was established as an in-houwse
agency of HSE o 011933 and operates on ‘Nexr Seep Agency”
principles. [t provides health and safety science and research services. It has
its own Accounting Officer and arrangements to manage nisk.

53  Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officers, we have responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of inrernal conrrol,
Our review of this is informed by the work of the internal
auditors and the executive managers within HSE who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework, and comments made by the
external audirors in their management leteer and other
reports. We have been advised on the implications of the
result of our review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee and the
risk owners; a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The Audit Committee, chaired by Judith Hackitt, a member
of the Commission, met twice in 2004/03, In December it
discussed progress on risk management in HSE. Members
of the committee also considered by correspondence further
aspects of risk management in March, including the Risk
Management Improvement Plan for 2005/06. The
committee will continue to receive regular progress reports
in future. It is responsible for advising the Accounting
Officers on corporate povernance issues including risk and
internal control,

HSE's Internal Audit Unir has direct access to the
Accounning Officer and operates to Government Internal
Audit Standards. H5L has an internal audit function
supplied by a privare sector auditor which also works o
Government Internal Audit Standards. Their work plans are
approved by the HSL Audit Committee to which they make
regular reports. They include an opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the system of internal conrrol, and
make recommendations for improvement. The overall risk
management arrangements have been developed in
consultation with H5E' Internal Audit Unir and will be
subject to regular review by it The Internal Audit work
programmes will continue to focus on testing the adeguacy
and effecriveness of the systems of internal control in HSE
and HSL.

The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audir is thar
H5C/E has a generally sound framework of contral which
provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and
efficient achievements of its objectives. The organisation has
implemented a comprehensive business risk management
process during 2004/05 and is working to continuously
improve this process during 2005/06.

6 Significant internal control problems

There were no significant internal control problems.
Timotly Walker CB

Director General

Health and Safety Executive Accounting Officer
20 June 2005
il (-
Bill Callaghan
Chairman

Health and Safery Commission Accounting Officer
20 June 2005
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Health and Safety Commission

The certificate and report of the
Comptroller and Auditor General to
the Houses of Parliament

[ certify that | have audited the financial statements on pages
73-78 under the Health and Safery ar Work ere. Act 1974,
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and the accounting policies ser out
on page 74.

Respective responsibilities of the Commission,
Chairman, and Auditor

As described on page 69, the Chairman of the Health and
Safery Commission is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the Health and
Safery ar Work erc. Ace 1974 and directions made
thereunder by the Secretary of State and for ensuring the
regularity of financial transactions. The Chairman and the
Director General of the Health and Safety Executive are
jointly responsible for the preparation of the other contents
of the Annual Report. My responsibilities, as independent
auditor, are established by statute and 1 have regard to the
standards and guidance issued by the Audinng Practices
Board and the ethical guidance applicable to the auditing
profession.

| report my opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Healrh and Satery ar Work erc. Act
1974 and directions made thereunder by the Secretary of
Srare, and wherther in all marerial respects the expendirure
and income have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial ransactions conform o the
authorities which govern them. [ also report if, in my
apinion, the Foreword is not consistent with the financial
statements, it the Commission has nor kept proper
accounting records, or if | have not received all the
information and explanarions 1 require for my audit.

I read the other information contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it is consistent with the audired
financial statements. 1 consider the implications for my
certificare if | become aware of any apparent misstatements
or matenal inconsistencies with the financial starements,

I review whether the joint statement on pages 70-71 reflects
the Commission’s compliance with Treasury’s guidance on
the *Starement on Internal Control”. | report if it does not
meet the requirements specified by Treasury, or if the
statement is misleading or inconsistent with other
informartion | am aware of from my audit of the financial
statements. | am not required to consider, nor have 1
considered whether the Accounting Officers” Statement on
Internal Control covers all risks and controls. | am also not
required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Commission's corporate governance procedures or its risk
and control procedures.

72

Basis of audit opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with United Kingdom
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audir includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts, disclosures and regularity of
financial transactions included in the financial statements.

It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Chairman in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Commission’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequarely disclosed.

I planned and performed my audir 0 as to obrain all the
informarion and explananons which | considered necessary
in order to provide me with sufficient evidence o give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by error, or by
fraud or other irregularity and that, in all marerial respects,
the expenditure and income have been applied to the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In my opinion:

= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
net operating cost of the Health and Safety
Commission for the vear ended 31 March 2005 and of
the amount transferred to the Health and Safery
Executive and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safery ar Work erc,
Act 1974 and with the directions made thereunder by
the Secretary of State; and

® inall marerial respects the expenditure and income
have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial rransactions conform
1o the authorities which govern them.,

I have no abservations to make on these financial statements.

}4 b

Sir Jobn Bowrn

Comptroller and Auditor General, Mational Audit Office,
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road, London SWIW 9SP
27 June 2005
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Schedule 2 Health and Safety Commission:

Operating cost statement for the year ended
31 March 2005

2004/05 2003/04

£000 £1000

Administration costs

Staff costs ] 417 331
Orher administration costs 4 277 113
Giross admimistration costs H4 Hrd4

Operating income

Met operating cost m 644

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.

The Notes on pages 74-78 form part of these accounts.

Bill Callaghan

Chairman

Health and Safery Commission
Accounting Officer

20 June 2005
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Health and Safety Commission

Annual Report and Accounts 2004/05
Notes to the Accounts

1  Statement of accounting policies

The financial starements have been prepared in accordance
with the 2004/05 Resource Accounting Manual (RAM)
(hetpzfiwww.resource-accounting.gov.uk) issued by HM
Treasury, The particular accounting policies adopred by
H5C are described below. They have been applied
consistently in dealing with the items considered marcerial
in relation o the accounts.

(@) Accoumntz Directions

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the
Secretary of Stare with the approval of the Treasury, the
Health and Safery Commission and Health and Safeey
Executive have prepared a joint Foreword, Seatement of
Responsibilitnes and Statement on Internal Contrel and
separate Operating Cost Statement (Schedule 2). HSC has
not produced a Balance Sheer as any assers and liabilitnes of
HS5C are included in the HSE Balance Sheet (Schedule 3)
and are not material in value in the context of FISE
balances (see Nore 2 Request for Resources). HSC has no
bank account and all direct and indirect expenditure is paid
for by HSE, so the production of a Cash Flow Statement
{Schedule 4) is deemed inappropriate. H5C has no need 1o
produce Parliamentary Control Schedules (Schedules 1

and 3) and the relevant information is contained in those
schedules within DY PS accounts (refer MNore 2 with regard
to Request for Resources).

(b Accounting comvention

Consolidared accounts have not been prepared, with the
agreement of HM Treasury and NAQ, on the basis thar
there is a statutory requirement to produce separare
accounts for HAC and H3E and it would be
administratively burdensome and provide no additional
information for the reader of the accounts.

{e)  Pension costs

The current Chairman is not a member of the Principal
Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) but arrangements
exist wherely the Health and Safery Executive make
pension payments analogous o those thar would have been
made if he had been a member of the PCSPS and are
payable out of the current vear’s funds thar are made
available. A notional pension cost of 18.5% is added o the
Chairman’s emoluments.

74

In line with FR5 17, a pension provision has been set up on
a ‘by analogy to the PCAPS® basis to account for the value
of an equivalent fund for the Chairman. An actuarial
valuarion of the fund was carried our as at 31 March 2004.
It has been undertaken on the f{:l"uwing ASSUMPTIONS:

[ an investment rerurn in excess of price increases of
3.5% pa;

] the earnings cap increases in ling with price inflation;

[ the gross rate of return 15 assumed o be 6% pa
although this assumpnon has a minor impact on the
caleulation of the liability;

[ | in nominal terms these assumptions are then
equivalent o an allowance for increases in
pensionable salaries of 2.4% pa and an allowance for
price inflation of 2.4% pa; and

m  Mr Callaghan is not reappointed at the end of his
rerm, and his pension will be preserved unnl age 60
when it will come into payment.

The provision is included i the HSE accounts.

The appointment of Commission members is non-
pensionable,

The employees of the Health and Safery Commission, other
than the Chairman and Commission members, are civil
servants to whom the conditions of the Superannuation
Acts 1965 and 1972 and subsequent amendments apply.
For details of the schemes please refer to HSE accounrs,
accountng policy Note 1(k).

2 Request for Resources

Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safery at Work
erc. Acr 1974, the Commission is financed by Request for
Resources from DWTP (Request for Resources 2).

The rotal Requesrt for Resources received by the Health
and Safety Commission from DWP for the financial year
2004/035 was £209 719 000 and after deducting £416 757
for staff costs and £277 249 for other operating charges,
the sum of £209 024 994 was allocared to the Health and
Safety Executive. These transactions pass through Reserves
in the Balance Sheer bur produce a nil value in HSC.
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Opening general fund 1 April 2004 Ml

Met parliamentary cash fundipg 9 719

MNer operafing cost G944
Cash transfer to H5E (refer HSE Schedule 4) 209 025
Closing general fund 31 March 2005 NIL

3 Expenditure of the Health and Safety Commission
Staff numbers and costs

fa) Staff costs of the Health and Safety Commiizsion

2004/05 20003704

£000 £1000 £000 L1000

Directly employed staff Others Toral

Wages and salanes 36l 4 65 267
Social security cosrs 33 33 23
Other pension costs 19 2 19 41

e
Fad
ey

Less recoveries in respect of
outward secondments

{b} The U nuereher ||.f'.;-'!r.'_i"J."-r:|;.;'.;'_- ..!'ur,u.-lu the yedr of the accounts, other than the Chairman and Commission menibers

2004/05

Mumbers Numbers Mumbers Mumbers

Directly employved staff Others Tortal Toral

MNon-specialist staff

Maote:

Ear further details an pension arrangements for non-specialist staff please refer to HSE acconnts (aceonnting policy Note
1{k) and Note 2),
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(¢} Emaluments of the Charrman

Bill Callaghan

Eill Callaghan

Oiher
taxable
benefits

{00 Nearest
£100)

Salary

£000

100-105 0

Creher

G5 100 {l

Real
increase

in pension
at &0

£1000

INCTEASE 1N
lump sum

-

)
plus 2,
Increase in
lump sum

i gk

5
-5

Total
accrued
pension
at Gl at

31 March
ik

-

30-35 plus
95-100
lump sum

Total

35-40
plus 110-
115 lump

SLUM

CETV at
31 March
2005

CETV art

31 March

2004

CETY at
31 March

2004

2004405
Real

mner
mCELNY

£1000

in CETY

20

Nates:

."l:,J.I',.-:r.T

Salary® includes gross salary, performance pay or bonuses, overtinie, reserved rights to London weighting or

London allowances. recruitment and retention allowances, private office allowances and any other allowanee to
the extent that it is subject to UK faxation.

FPenstons

No Commission members, other than the Chairman, bave pensions (see Note 1{c)).

There are nmo owtstanding contributions payable to the Civdl Service Superannuation Vore ai 31 March 2003,
There were no employver contributions to partnership pension acconnts during the year

CETV (Cash Equivalent Transfer Value) is the actuarially assessed value of the Chairman’s pension scheme

.'IM"rI-:‘,I'e."S accried J'J_'|' bim (for Iﬁi ribrer details rn:'ll']:'r‘ to HSE Note 2(d)).

Th
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(d} Emaluments of the Commission menthers

2004405

Salary Other taxable Total

benefits

George Brumwell CBE (1) 7 500 - 4 7 500
Margarer Burns CBE 15 000 - & 734 21 734
Abdul Chowdry 15 000 - 5 576 20 576
Draniel Carrigan () 7 500 - 3 T9% 11 296
Judith Donevan CBE 15 000 - 3} 551 15 551
Joyece Edmond-5mich 15 000 - 732 15 732
Judich Hackirt 15 000 - : 15 000
John Longwaorth 15 000 - a9 15 959
Hugh Robertson (3) 15 000 - T8 15 078
Elizabeth Snape 15 000 . - 15 000

200304

Salary Dther raxahle Total

(o nearest £100)

George Brumwell CBE 1 475 1 836 k 3311
Margarct Burms CBE 1475 7 421 7 200 16 7o
Abdul Chowdry 1 475 33519 & 100 11 094
Judith Donovan CBE 1 475 4 590 3 100 9 145
Jovee Edmond-Smith 1 475 5714 T 7 859
Judich Hackirr 1 475 2142 . 3617
John Longworth 1 475 2924 300 4 £99
Maureen Rooney CBE (4) 123 - 123
Elizabeth Snape (5) A15 918 - 1 533
Owen Tudor (6) 1475 2778 4 253

12 538 31 842 18 100 a2 480
Motes:

(1) Resigned 30 September 2004,

21 Appointment commmenced 1 Oetaber 2004,
(3] Appofntment commenced 1 April 2004,

(4]  Died May 2003.

(3]  Appomtment commenced 1 Novemiber 2003,
(6)  Resiened 31 March 2004,

The mongtary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the emplover and treaved by the Inland Revenue as
a taxable emolinent. Other taxable benefits for Commission members include mileage and an accommrodation allowanee,
as appropriate. Any emsuing tax liabiiey (s met by HSC,
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Motes (continwed):
The Chairman and Commission memibers are appointed for a fixed term of up to three years. The Chairman is part-time,
working four days a week. If the Chairman or a member leaves the Commission other than on the expiry of their term of

affice, and it appears to the Secretary of State that there are special circumstances that justify the payment of compensation,
a payment can be made as determined by the Seeretary of State with Treasury approval.

4  Non-administration costs of the Health and Safety Commission

2004505 200004

£1000

General administrative expenses 147 112
Travel, subsistence and hospitality for;
Chairman, Commission members and support staff (see note below) HH ()

Rent, rates, maintenance and other premises costs i 41

Note;

Travel, subsistence and bospetality expenses for the Chairman and Comeission members was £33 943 (200304 -
£51 726), while the total for the support staff was €11 815 (2003/04 - £8 T18).

5  Related party transactions

The Health and Safety Commission is an Executive Non-Departmental Public Body with Crown status and is sponsored by

WP

WP is regarded as a related party. During the vear, HSC did not have any matenial transactions with DWP or other
entitics for which DWP is regarded as the parent Department.

Mone of the Commission members or any persons connecred with them have any interest in any marerial transacrions with
HSC/HSE or received benefits from their suppliers during the year.
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Health and Safety Executive

The certificate and report of the
Comptroller and Auditor General to
the Houses of Parliament

I certify thar [ have audited the financial statements on
pages 80-103 under the Health and Safety ar Work etc. Act
1974, These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain fixed assets and the accounting
policies set our on pages $4-86.

Respective responsibilities of the Executive,
Director General and Auditor

As described on page 69 the Director General of the Health
and Safery Executive is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements under the Health and Safety ar
Work erc. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the
Secretary of Stare and for ensuring the regularity of
financial transactions. The Director General and the
Chairman of the Health and Safery Commission are jointly
responsible for the prepararion of the other contents of the
Annual Report. My responsibilities, as independent audiror,
are established by starute and [ have regard to the standards
and guidance issued by the Auditing Pracrices Board and
the ethical guidance applicable to the auditing profession.

| repore my opinion as to whether the financial starements
give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safery ar Work erc. Act
1974 and direcrions made thereunder by the Secretary of
Stare, and whether in all material respects the expenditure
and income have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial ransactions conform to the
authoritics which govern them, | also report if, in my
opinion, the Foreword is not consistent with the financial
statements, if the Execurive has not kept proper accounting
records, or if 1 have not received all the information and
explananions I require for my audir.

I read the other information contained in the Annual
Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial starements. | consider the implications for
my certificare if [ become aware of any apparent
missrartements or material inconsistencies with the financial
STATEMEnts.

I review whether the joint statemenr on pages 70-71 reflecrs
the Executive’s compliance with Treasury’s guidance on the
Starement on Inrernal Control. [ reporr if it does not meert
the requirements specified by Treasury, or if the statement is
misleading or inconsistent with other information [ am
aware of from my audit of the financial statements. I am
not required to consider, nor have 1 considered whether the
Accounting Officers’ Statement on Internal Control covers
all risks and conrrols. | am also not required to form an
opimion on the effectiveness of the Executive’s corporare
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with United Kingdom
Audinng Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts, disclosures and regularity of
financial transactions included in the financial statements.
[e also includes an assessment of the significant estimares
and judgements made by the Direcror General in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Executive’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequarely
disclosed.

I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which | considered necessary
in order to provide me with sufficient evidence ro give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by error, or by
fraud or other irregularity and that, in all marerial respects,
the expenditure and income have been applied o the
purposcs intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions contorm to the authorites which govern them.
In forming my opinion | alse evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

Opinion
In my opinion:

B the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Health and Safery
Executive ar 31 March 2005 and of the net
operating cost, recognised gains and losses and cash
tlows for the vear then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Health and Safery
at Work erc. Act 1974 and the directions made
thereunder by the Secretary of State; and

[ in all material respects the expenditure and income
have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform o
the authonties which govern them.

I have no ohservations to make on these financial
STATEMEnTs.

L/ A
# ifj{--r,(,m
Sir Jolw Bowrn
Comptroller and Audiror General, Manonal Audir Office,
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road, London SWIW 95P
27 June 2005

7
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Schedule 2 Health and Safety Executive:

Operating cost statement for the year
ended 31 March 2005

2004505 200304

£000 1000

Administration costs

Sraff costs 2 147 773 146 363
Crther administration costs 3 294 653 Bl 562
Gross administration costs 242 426 227932
Operating income 5 {49 313) (51 304)
ELl income 3 (F01) (61 )
Met admimstration costs 192 412 176 027

Programme costs

Expenditure 4 24 850 29 a3
Less income 4 825 (7 412) {8 363)
MNet programme costs 22 438 21 238
Net operating cost 214 850 197 265

All incorre and expenditure is derived from continning operations.

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses for the year ended 31 March 2005

200405

£000
Mer gain on revaluation of tangible fixed assers (refer Mote 13) 6224 3
Increase to provision arising on actuarial valuation of pensions by analogy - (83)
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial vear 224 (52)

The Notes on pages 84-103 form part of these accounts.

Hik
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Schedule 3 Health and Safety Executive:
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2005

31 March 2005 31 March 200

£1000 £000 £1000

Fixed assers
Tangible assers 6 B3 429 27 176

Debrors: falling due afrer 9 4 778 406
mare '[!'I-'II'I one year

Current assets

Stocks a3 1 &2 2 255
Debrors @ 22 314 21973
Cash at bank and in hand 10 224 137

24 158 24 365

Creditors (amounts falling

due wathin one year) i1 {12 193) (11 312}
Met current assets 11 965 13 053
Total assets less current liabilities 100 172 40 635

Creditors (amounts falling due
atrer more than one year) 11 (57 607)

Provisions for hiabilines 12 (3 T44) (3 435)
and charges

358 821 37 200
Taxpayers' equity
General fund 18 31 496 34 332
Revaluarion reserve 13 7325 2 868

The Notes an pages 84-103 form part of these accounts,

Timothy Walker CB

Director General

Health and Safery Executive ﬁm.
ACC!rLtIII‘iII!.: Oithicer

20 June 2003

|
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Schedule 4 Health and Safety Executive:
Cash flow statement for the year ended

31 March 2005

Ner cash outflow from operating activities (204 282) {187 063)
Capiral expenditure and hnancial investment (3 985) (3 287)
Receipts due to DWT which are outside the scope of H5E's activities 1 I
Payments of amounts due to DWP (TRT) 2 286)
Financing 200 025 196 422
{Decrease)increase in cash i the period Refer over 1 187
NOTES
Reconciliation of operating cost to operating cash flows
Met operating cost 214 850 197 265
Adjuse for non-cash transactions (R 998) {2 156)
Adjust for movements in working capital other than cash 7 {1 596) (2 227)
Adjust for movements in creditors over one Vear 11 - 10
Use of provisions 12 B53 1171
Interest element of finance lease payment (827) -
Met cash outtlow from operating activities 204 252 187 063
Analysis of capiral expenditure and financial investment
F'L::'\'h.'n.l,' of I-|1-:|_'|,|. ASSels 5 1e5 (] 25“;
Proceeds of L‘|I'-|,‘H.'l*|.1.! of El?{l,'l,l. ASSLETS [l ]ﬂﬂ] l:-‘-[]ﬂ]
Met cash outflow from investing activities 3985 5 887
Analysis of financing and reconciliation to the net cash requirement
From DWIEP 209025 196 423
Drecreasel/(increase) in cash 28 (1 187}
Adjustment for payments and receipts not related to supply
."'i.]'l'lirllllt"'- dm,' Eiy l]“l,\:!.'

received in a prior year and paid over {(7R7) 12 28a)
- received and not paid over 1 |
- Excess Appropriations in Aid included in income - THh

Met cash requirement 193 736
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Reconciliation of net cash outflow as per Note 10 to movement in cash as per Schedule 4

above

2004/05 2003/04

£1000 £000

Net cash inflow (as per Mote 10) g7 46
Movement in uncleared payments (included within credirors) (115) 1 141
(Decrease)fincrease in cash in the period (as per Schedule 4) 1 187

The Notes on [hages 4103 form Jrart t.llf. these ACCOirHES,
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Health and Safety Executive:
Notes to the accounts

1  Statement of accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the 200405 Resource Accounting Manual (RAM)
{hetp:fwww.resource-accounting.gov.uk) issued by HM
Treasury. The particular accounting policies adopred by
HSE are described below. They have been applied
consistently in dealing with the items considered marerial in
relation to the accounts. The financial statements
consolidare the figures for HSL.

The accounting policies contained in the RAM follow
generally accepted accounting practice for companies (UK
GAAP) to the extent thar 13 meaningful and appropriare ro
the public secror.

{al  Accounts Direction

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the
Secretary of Stare with the approval of the Treasury, the
Health and S:lftr!.' Commission and Health and Satery
Execurive have prepared a joint Foreword, Statement of
Responsibilities and Statement on Internal Conrrol. These
aceounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention modified to account for the revaluation of fixed
assers (including the depreciated replacement cost of the
specialist |.'L|:|ur:|tn::|r:.' site at Buxton) and stocks, where
material, ar their value o the business by reference to their
currént costs, HSE has no need to produce Parliamentary
control Schedules (Schedules 1 and 5) and the relevant
information is contained in those schedules within DWP's
aceounts (refer HSC Accounts Nore 2 with regard to
Request for Resources).

(b)) Amalysis of activities

All the activities of the Execurive are designed to use the
measures in the Health and Safery at Work ere. Acr 1974 10
further the reduction of occupanonal accidents and disease.
(¢}  Covernment granis

Grants receivable

Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safery ar Work
etc. Act 1974, the Commission has been financed by
Request for Resources from the DWP.

The Commission pays ro the Executive such sums as the

Commission considers appropriate for the purpose of
enabling the Executive to perform its functions. The

&4

Request for Resources is credited to the General Fund in the
vear in which it is received.

Grants payable

Girants payable are recorded as expenditure in the p:riud
when the underlying event or activity giving entitlement to
the grant has been complered.

{d) Assets

All assets are held by the Health and Safety Executive on
behalf of the Health and Safery Commission.

ltems of equipment costing less than £2000 are charged to
expenditure in the year of purchase, except for computer
equipment (refer also Nores 6 and 20) costing over £500, and
items of furniture which are grouped for capitalisation by
year of acquisition.

Items of equipment purchased under research contracrs and
held by outside bodies are charged to expenditure in the year
of purchase.

Fixed assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition and
installation.

Non-property assets are revalued to open market value. Price
index numbers for current cost aceounting (MM17) published
by the Office for Manonal Statistcs are used o estimare value
where market value is not obtainable. For 2004/05 tangible
fixed assets were revalued at the Balance Sheer date.

Land and buildings are valued on an existing use basis except
for the specialist laboratory site at Buxton which has been
included ar depreciated replacement cost.

In accordance with the Resource Accounting Manual and
FR5 13, professional revaluations of land and buildings will
be undertaken ar least every five vears, The respective values
of all frechold properties and u:n|:|.' those leaschold properties
thar qualify as finance leases (refer accounting policy Note 1)
are included in the Balance Sheer. Land and buildings at
Buxton were independently valued ar 31 March 2005 by
Jones, Lang, La Salle. The property at Carlisle was
independently valued during 2000001 by Donaldsons,
Chartered Surveyors. In each case the valuations were in
accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the
Roval Institute of Chartered Surveyors. In the periods
between formal valuations properties have been revalued in
accordance with appropriate indices.
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(e}  Depreciation
Frechold land is not depreciared.

Drepreciation is provided on all other tangible fixed assers
from the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculared to write-off the replacement cost
or valuation of an asset evenly over its expected useful life
except for vehicles acquired for the car leasing scheme
where 60% of the original cost is depreciated over the
three-year life of the contract. Assets in the course of
construction and residual interests in off-halance sheet PFI
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought
into use or reverts to HSE respectively.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated at the following rates
to write them down to estimated residual value on a
straight-line basis over their estimared useful lives.

(i Revaluation reserve
i

The revaluation reserve reflects the unrealised element of
the cumulative balance of indexation and revaluation
adjustments. Surpluses arising on the revaluation of fixed
assets are credited to the revaluation reserve. Deficits arc
charged to the reserve in respect of amounts previously
credited; the balance of any deficit is charged to the

(g Stocks and work in progress
Stocks and work in progress are valued as follows:

B finished goods and priced goods for resale are valued
at cost or, where materially different, current
replacement cost, and at net realisable value only
when they either cannort or will not be used. The cost
of free publications is written off in the year in which
it is incurred;

®  work in progress is valued at the lower of cost,
including appropriate overheads, and net realisable
value,

(b} Foreign currency

Assers and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translared into sterling ar the exchange rates prevailing at the

vear end,

Translation differences are dealt with through the Operating
Cost Statement.

(i)  Research

Expenditure on research is written off in the vear in which it
is incurred.

(i} Capital charge

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by HSE, is
included in operating costs. The charge is calculated ar the
Government’s standard rate of 3.5% in real terms on the
average of all assets less liabilities, excepr for donated assers
and cash balances with Office of HM Paymaster General,
where the charge is nil.

(k) Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of
the Civil Service Pension Schemes which are described in
Note 2. The defined benefit elements of the schemes are
unfunded and are non-contributory except in respect of
dependants’ benefits. HSE recognises the expected costs of
these elements on a systematic and rational basis over the
period during which it benefits from employees” services by
payment to the Principal Civil Service Pension Schemes
(PC5PS) of amounts calculated on an aceruing basis. Liability
for payment of furure benefits is a charge on the PCSPS, In
respect of the defined contribution element of the schemes,
HSE recognises the contributions payable for the vear.

fIf Leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a
leased asset are borne by HSE, the asset is recorded as a
rangible asser and a debr is recorded to the lessor of the
minimum lease payments discounted by the interest rate
implicit in the lease. The interest element of the finance lease
payment is charged to the Operating Cost Statement over the
period of the lease at a constant rate in relation to the balance
outstanding. Other leases are regarded as operating leases and
the rentals are charged to the Operating Cost Statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

55
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(m)  Admnistration and programme expenditure

The Operating Cosr Statement is analvsed berween
administration and programme costs. Administration coses
reflect the costs of running the organisation as defined
under the admimistranon cost-control regime, together with
associated operating income. Income 15 analysed in the
notes between that which, under the regime, is allowed o
be offser against gross administrarive costs in determining
the ourturn agamnst the admimistration cost limit, and chat
operanng income which is not. Programme costs reflect
non-adminisiration coses, including payments of grants and
other disbursements by the Executive.

(n]  Private Finance Imitiative (PFI) transactions

PFI cransactions (refer More 20) have been accounted for in
accordance with Treasury Technical Note Mo. 1 {Revised),
entitled Hore toe Aceount for PRI Transactions as required
by the Resource Accounting Manual., Where the balance of
risk and rewards of ownership of the PFI asser are borne by
the PFl operator, the PFI payments are recorded as an
operating cost, Where H5E has contributed assers, a
prepayment tor their fair value is recognised and amortised
over the life of the PFI contrace. Where at the end of the
PFI contract a property reverts to HSE, the difference
berween the expected tair value of the residual assers on
reversion and any agreed payment on reversion is built up
over the life of the contracr by capitalising parr of the
unitary charge each vear

Where the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the
PFI asset is bome by HSE, the asset is recognised as a fixed
asser and the liability to pay for it is accounted for as a

finance lease. Contract payments are apporiiened between
an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge.

(o)  Provisions

HSE provides for legal or constructive obligations which are
of uncertain timing or amount at the Balance Sheet dare on
the basis of the best estmarte of the expenditure required to
sertle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of
money is significant, the estimared risk-adjusted cash flows
are discounted using the Treasury discount rate of 3.53% in
real terms.

(p)  Contingent labilities

Disclosure conforms to FRS 12, including discounting
where the time value of money is marerial,

(g} Value Added Tax

Maost of the activities of HSE are outside the scope of VAT
and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged
to the relevant expendirure caregory or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assers. Where outpur tax
i5 charged or input tax is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT,

(r) Openiting incaome

Crperating income is income which relates directly to the
operating activities of HSE. It principally comprises fees and
charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external
customers. Operating income is stated ner of VAT,

2 Staff numbers and costs of the Health and Safety Executive

{a) Staff costs

L1000
Dhrectly
employved staff

2004505

£1000
Orthers

£'000
Total

Wages and salaries 117 894 3389 121 283 120 209
Sacial securiry cosrs %572 28 @ 600 9 345
Oreher pension costs 17 243 4 17 289 16 986
Total 144 709 3 463 148 172 146 540
Less recoveries in respect of

ourward secondments (399 - (399) (177}
Total net costs 144 310 146 363
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Mote:

The Principal Crual Service Schemes (PCSPS) to whiclh most of HSE's employvees are members are unfunded multi-employer
defined benefie schemes but HSE iz unable to idemify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. A full actsarial
valiwation was carried out as at 31 March 2003, Details can be fownd in the FESONFCE decoints of the Cabinet Office: Crnl
Superanmiarion (hrptfoeecivilservice-pensions. gowak),

For 2004405 emplover congributions of £17 078 346 were payable to the PCSPS (2003404 - £16 958 873) at one of the
four rates in the range 12-18.5% of pensionable pay, based on salary bands, Employer contributions are io be revicwed in
2008/06 following a full schene valuation by the Government Actuary, The contribution rates reflect benefits as they are
acerned, not when the costs are actually incurred, and reflect past experience of the scheme.

Emplovees fotning after 1 October 2002 could ot to foin a partnership pension account - a stakebolder pension with an
q_"rrrjf.lf:r_'r.:'r contribution. For 2004005 :':'le'uj.'cr contributions of £16 706,00 (200304 - £16 603.37) were p_.'.-.,.r ter fhree

appointed stakeholder pension providers (refer also Note 2e).

Ten people retired early on il-health grounds; the total additional accried pension habilities in the year amounted to
L£15 039 (2003004 - information is not available),

(b)  The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employved during the year

2004505 200304

Directly Others Total Total
employed staff

Total 4090

(e} Salary and pension entitlements of the Director General

Salary Benefits Real Total CETY ax
in kind increase accrued 31 March
10 meaArcst pension 2005

£100 at &0 at
31 March
£000 E £:000 £°000 £000 £1000

Timothy Walker CR

2004/05 145-150 - 0:2.5 plus  55-60 plus 1042 957 40
5-7.5 170175
lump sum lump sum

200304 145-150 - 2.5-3 §0-55 n'a 957 02
plus 10- plus 155-
12.5 lump 16dl 1||I1'Lp
sum SLLM
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(d)  Salary and pension entitlements of the Executive members

2004705

Benchirs To: CETV CETV
in kind INCTEASE ACCIUL at 31 at 31

0 nearcst  In pens pens March March
£100 at 60 at 60 at 2005 2004
31 March
£000 £ £°000 £000 £000 £'000

Kate Timms CB (1)  73-80 - 0-15plus  65-70 plus 1214 1181 18
2.5-5 lump 195-200
SLm lump sum

Justin McCracken  120-125 . 0-2.5 plus 5-10 plus 112 87 15
2.5-5 lump  20-25 lump
Sum sum

Jomathan Rees (1) 55-60 - 2.5-5 40-45 504 418 57

Salary Benefits Total Real
imnd i v

[0 nearcst in PENS 10N

S
v

£100 at i

L1000 1 LMD

Kate Timms CB (1) 130-135 = 5-7.5 Bi-65 1 151 122
plus plus
17.5-20 190-195
lump lump
sum sum
Jusrin McCracken 115-120 - 0-2.5 £-10 87 36
plus plus
2.5-5 15-20
lump lump
sum UM
Notes:

(1)  Retired 7 October 2004,
(2] Appoimtment commenced 13 September 2004,

Details of HSL's semior marnagement emoluments can be found in their own published accounts.

A Casl Equivalent Transfer Valwe (CETV) is the actwarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits
accried by a member at a particular point in time, The benefits valued are the member’s acerned bemefits and any
contingent sponse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payviment made by a pension scleme or arrangement to
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to
transfer the benefits accried in their former scheme, The freresion fignres shown relate to the benefits that che individual bas
accrued as a conseguence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their serpice in a senior capracity fo
“'J"'"I;' disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and from 2003/04 the other pension details, include the value of any f:ﬂ:'risif;-n
benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the CSP arrangements and for which the

BE
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CS Vote has received a transfer payment commensurate to the additional pension liabilities being assumed. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension
service in the schenme at their oun cost. CETVs are calenlated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Salary

Pension

‘Salary’ includes gross safn_njr. performarce pay or bomnuses, overtime, reserved rights to London weighting or
London allowances, recruitment and retention allowances, private office allowances and any other allowance to
the extent that it is swbject to UK taxation.

None of the Executive members received Benefits in Kind.

The Director General is appoinied for a fixed term of up to five vears. The ather Executive members are
appointed for a fixed term of up to three years. None of the menibers receive any predetermined compensation
Ppayment on termination of office.

There were no emplover contributions to partnership pension accounts during the year,
The Executive are all members of the PCSPS.

Pension benefits are provided through the Civil Service pension arrangements. From 1 October 2002, civil
servants may be in one of three statutory based 'final salary’ defined benefit schemes (classic, premivm and
classic plus). New entrants after 1 October 2002 may choose betrween membership of preminm or foining a
rood guality ‘money purchase’ stakebolder based arrangement with a significant emplover contrifustion
(partnership pension account).

ja)  Classic scheme

Benefits acerwe at the rate of 1/80ch of pensionable salary for each vear of service. In addition, a lemp sum
equivalent to three years' pension is payable on retirement. Members pay contributions of 1.5% of pensionalbile
earnings. On death, pensions are payable to the surviving spowuse at the rate of balf the member's pension. On
death in service, the scheme pays a lump sum benefit of tiwice pensionalble pay and also provides a service
enhancement on computing the spouse’s pension. The enhancement depends on length of service and cannot
exceed 10 years. Medical retirement is possible in the event of serious ill bealth. In this case, pensions are
brought into payment immediately without actwarial reduction and with service enbanced as for widow(er)
PEHSIONS.

(B} Premiem scheme

Benefits accrne at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings for each vear of service. Unlike classic, there
is wo antomatic lwmp sum, but members may commute some of their pension to provide a lump sum up to a
maxinuns of 3/80ths of final pensionable earnings for each year of sevvice or 2.25 tinmes pension if greater (the
commutation rate is £12 of lemp sum for each £1 of pension given up). For the purposes of pension disclosure
the tables assumte maximum conmutation, Members pay contributions of 3.5% of pensionable earnings. On
death, pensions are payable to the surviving spouse or eligible partner at the rate of 3/8ths of the member’s
pension (before any commutation). On death in service, the scheme pays a lump sum benefit of three times
pensionable earnings and also provides a service enbancement on computing the spowse’s pension. The
enbancement depends on length of service and cammot exceed 10 years. Medical retirement is possible in the
event of serious ill bealth. In this case, pensions are brought imto payment immediately without actuarial
reduction. Where the member's ill bealth is such that it permanently prevents them undertaking any gainful
emiployment, service is enhanced to what they wonld bave acerued at age 60.

fe)  Classic plus scheme

This is essentially a variation of premiun, but with benefits in respect of service before 1 October 2002
ealemlated broadly as classic.

Pensions payable under classic, premium and classic plus are increased in line with the Retail Prices Index.

{d) Partnership pension dcconit

This is a stakebolder-type arrangement where the employer pays a basic contribution of between 3% and
12.5% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakebolder pension product. The employee .nf::e_s mol 'FM“T
to contribute but where they do make contributions, these will be matched by the employer to a limit of 3% (in
addition to the employer's basic contribution). Employers also contribute a further 0.8% of pensionable salary
to cover the cost of risk benefit cover (death in service and ill health retivement). The member may retire at any
time between the ages of 50 and 75 and use the accumulated fund to purchase a pension. The member may
choose to take up ro 25% of the furd as a lump sum.

a9
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3 Non-staff administration costs to the Health and Safety Executive

2004405 2003/04

£°000 £7000

Rentals under operating leases:

Hire of plant and machines 144 16%
Other operaring leases 9 995 Bo97T

PFI service charges:

Off-balance sheet contracts 23 987 17 680
On-balance sheet PFI conrracrs 2750 5
Auditor's remuneration 83 24

Mon-cash items:

Drepreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 5 997 6 321
Cost of capital charge 1329 1 384
Loss on revaluation of fixed assers I 151
Profit/loss on sale of fixed assers (61) 212
Provisions: provided in year 1117 887
Other non-cash items 93 90
Other expenditure 49 149 45 w9

Miokes:
Travel, subsistence and bospitality expenses for the Execntive members were £37 226 (2003/04 - £39 152), while the total

for all orber staff was €11 003 298 (2003104 - £11 392 420).
There were mo payments made o the NAO for mon-audit work carried out in the year,

Analysis of other expenditure

200405 2003004

£ (00 £000

Accommodarion 15 4000 13 797
Iravel and subsistence 11 041 11 432
Oither 212 708 20 380

i

kL]
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4  Net programme costs

2004/05 2003/04

£'000

Research 16 566 16 248
Publicity, marketng and distribution 8 980 10 936
Other 4 3104 2 399
Sub rotal 29 850 29 603
Less programme income (7 412) (8 365)

MNet total 21 238
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5 Income £100 000, The charges for these activities, which are exclusive

of VAT, include provision for the recovery of notional interest,
The activities of the Executive include certain chargeable apart from the licensing of nuclear installations where the
services, each of which is subject ro a financial objective of notional charge is not an expense that can be recovered under
full cost recovery. Memorandum Trading Accounts are the Muclear Installations Act 19635,

prepared where the cost of a particular service exceeds

Income Surplus/ Surplus!
(Deficit) | Dehicit)

2004505 20003 /04

£000 £000 £5000 £000

(1) HAE fees amd charges

Licensing of nuclear installarions 21 692 21 6392 =

Safery-related research in the nuclear mdustry 1 208 1 208 - -

Genetically modified organisms 130 102 {28) {(57)

First-aid approvals 233 146 (87) (102}

Ashestos Licensing Unir 154 280 (4) (43)

FEPA |-|_'|,'\. ,1!1-.1 ||."|.'E.' 1 (68 1 0@as = =

Authorisation of biocides and pesricides 279 24 (255)

Motificanon of new substances 267 302 35 B

Conrrol of major accident hazards 3432 3392 (400 79

Enforcement of railway safery legislation 6 761 6 708 (53] 196

Enforcement of offshore safety legislation 7 756 8 030 274 338

Enforcement of Gas Safery Management Regularions 215 213 (12} (14)
43 335 43 165 (170) 461

] |,|_'.,1||;|1 I1|||,| '*-.;ﬂ-n_'l::r i .,Il'll:ll';“lll'!.' {'!\[-:;I'Il:i' CHSTOITIERS .-'|' ?.ﬁ]' _"I. lﬁ-"' -

Health and Safery Laboratory EU income 444 444

Other fees and agency charges - 173

Total fees and charges at 31 March 2003 47 045

Toral I-l_'n;-. .||'|4,| q_i'l,,'lr;_"{'\ ar 31 March 2004 48 3139 48 997

(i1} HSE sales and other income

Sale of publications 3418 4 383 BH5 1 372

Orher sales/income - 5741

EL income 257 a7

l'otal sales and other income at 31 March 2005 3675 10 381

Total sales and other income ar 31 March 2004 4 543 11 273

This analysis conforms to the HM Treasury's Fees and Charges Guide and is not intended to comply with SSAF 25
"5('__1:.!}&'".'...'.[ Refrorting,
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Revts receivable are as follows

2004505 2003704

£000 L1000

Rents from other government departments i1 31
Rents from external tenants 28
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6  Tangible fixed assets

Land &
Buildings

£°000

Cost or valuation 20 659
at 1 Aprl 2004

Reclassifications
(Cost) 111
Additions in vear A5 851
Revaluations in vear 5 772
Disposals during
year (& 320)

Balance at
31 March 2005

Depreciation at 7 289
1 April 2004

Charge in year 2 909
Revaluations in vear (111)
[Msposals during

year (1 576)

Accumulated
depreciation at

31 March 2005

Met book value

Information

Technology

£000

3 589

3o
415
(73]

(555)

2 963

i1l
(32)

(309)

Motor
lI|."l,:;'| ivl,' |1:~.

£1000

3 4635

931
41

(1 103)

Sl
14

(6bBS5)

Plamt &

Machinery

£000

13 973

6l
1 109
(53)

(1 453)

13 608

9 331

1 096
(45)

(1312)

2120

|"|,t|' N i [ure
& Fitnings

£1000

10 986

3 402
4483

{3 0a0)

1121
159

(2772)

L.onstruction

£ (0

924

209)
42

L1000
53 596
61 750

6 142

(12 491)

105 997

26 420

5 997
{15)

(6 B34)

at 31 March 2005 67 562 (70 2075 4 488 7 BBE 757 83 429
Met book value

ar 31 March 2004 13 370 hlé 2115 4 592 5 549 924 27176
Asset financing

Owned 10 295 679 2075 4 488 5415 42 22 994
Finance leased

On-balance sheet 57 267 = : 2 453 = 59 720
PFl contracts

PFI residual intereses - - 715 715

Met book value at
31 March 2003

4 454

83 429

a4
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Analysis of land and buildings between freebold, long and short leaselold

The net book value of land and buildings ac 31 March 2005 compnses:

2004405 2003/04

£000 £000

Frechold 4819 5727
Long leaschold - .
Shorr leaschold #2 743 7 643

67 562 13 370

7  Movements in working capital other than cash

2004/05 200304

£1000 £7000

Decreasel(increase) in stocksfwork-in-progress (55 (372)
Increase in debtors (175) 1 399)
Increase in creditors falling due within one year 6l 2 594
Met (increase)decrease in working capital other than cash 1 021 823
Less decrease in amounts payable to DWP 783 1 499
Less (increase) in capital creditor (210) (5]

8  Stocks and work-in-progress

200405 2003/04

£000 £000

Consumahles 549 it
Work-in-progress 677 681
584 1 506

Finished stock for sale
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9  Debtors

2004405 2003004

1000 £000

Debrs falling due wirhin one year:

Trade debrors 5 598 7 189
Imprestfadvances 546 598
Prepayments 2175 2156
Taxation: VAT debror 3953 2728
Other debrors [ 10
Accrued income 10 036 9 312
Sub total 22 314 21 973

[Debts falling due after more than one year:

PFI prepayment 4 383 .
Other prepayments 137 #4
Imprestsfadvances 258 322
Sub total 4 778 404

Tou E3

Nofe:

The imprestsiadvances total of £803 994 (2003/04 - £920 667) includes £341 939 (2003/04 - £427 302) advances of salary
for house purchase, £197 804 (200304 - £231 485) advances of salary for season ticket purchase, £146 387 (2003104 -
£153 028) imprests and £117 864 (2003004 - £108 852) other advances. There were 53 officers who bad £2500 or more
autstanding at 31 March 2008 which fotalled £323 537 (200304 - £382 039 - relating to 57 afficers).

10 Cash at bank and in hand

2004/05 200304

£000 £ 000

Balance at 1 Apnl 137 a1
Met cash inflow 46
Balance at 31 March 137
The following balances at 31 March are held an:

Office of HM Paymaster General

Commercial banks and cash in hand 224 137

L]
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11 Creditors

2004/05

£000

Amounts falling due within one vear:

Trade creditors - non capial 495 Bas

Trade credirors - capiral 332 121

Orher creditors 29 77

Accruals and deferred income 11 336 9432

Receipts payable to DWP 1 787
12 193 11 312

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Imputed finance lease element of on-balance sheer PFl contracts 57 607

Total 69 800 11 312

12 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Farly
departure cosis

£000

Dilapidations

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2004 1 487
Movement berween provisions 173
[ncrease in provision 334
Provisions not required wrirten back (35)
Amounts utilised (636)
Unwinding of discount 25

Balance at 31 March 2005

712 1236 3 435
. (173) -
525 3534 1 213
- (41) (76)
- (217) (853)
- - 25

Early departure costs

HSE meets the additional costs of benefits beyond the
normal PCSPS benefits in respect of employees whe retire
early. HSE provides for this in full when the carly
retirement programme becomes binding on HSE by
establishing a discounted provision. In past years H5E paid
in advance some of its liability for early retirement and the
balance remaining is treated as a prepayment.

Legal claimis

Provision has been made for various legal claims against
HSE. The provision (which is included in “other’) reflects all
known claims where legal advice indicates thar it is more
than 50% probable that the claim will be successful and the
amount of the claim can be reliably estnmared. Mo
reimbursement will be received in respect of any of these

claims.

Legal claims which may succeed but are less likely to do so
or cannot be reliably estimated are disclosed as contingent
liahilities in Note 21.
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15 HReserves

2004,

000

Balance at 1 April 2 868 3227
Arising on revaluation during the year (net) 6224 31
Transfer to general fund of realised element of revaluation reserve (1 767} (350

Balance at 31 March 2 a8

14 Capital commitments

2004705

£7000 L1000

Contracted commitments for which no Provision has been made 326 495

15 Losses and special payments

2004405 200304 2004505 200304

Mo, of cases Wi, o L1000 £1000

Cash 24 ] ﬁ 2
Claims abandoned 176 144 130 198
Administrative losses 1 - - .
Fruitless payments 25 43 (] 24
Stores - - 507 317
Special payments 33 52 252 28

259 247 569

Special payments made by HSE o staff and members of
the public totalled 33 cases in 2004/03 to the value of

£231 701, Included in this figure is a pavment of £230 000
plus £13 125 recoverable benefits that was paid to a former
employee who was exposed 1o ashestos during her
employment with HSE, and developed mesothelioma.
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16 Commitments under operating leases

Commitments under operating leases to pay rentals during the table below, analysed according to the period in which
the year following the year of these accounts are given in the lease expires:

2004/05 200304

Land and Orher Land and Orther
buildings buildings
£1000 £000 £000 £000

Leases expiring within:

One yvear B35 44 753 33
After one year but not more than five years Th8 4 696 128
More than five years 4 425 - £ 761

45 10 212 161

17 Finance leases

HSE's obligations under finance leases are as follows:

2004503 2003104

£ 000 £000

5 3 3

Rentals due within one year . 12
Rentals due after one year but within five years .

Rentals due thereatter - -

I 12

2

[ess interest element - 2
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18 Reconciliation of net operating cost to changes in general fund

Met operating cost for the year (Schedule 2)
Mer parliamentary funding
Excess appropriations in aid to be surrendered to D'WF

Transferred to general fund in respect of realised element of

revaluarion reserve (Mote 13)

Release from general fund (Chairman’s pension)
Release from general fund (other)

Mon-cash charges (DWP services)

Cost of capiral

Met (decrease)fincrease in general fund
General fund at 1 April

General fund at 31 March (Schedule 3)

200405

2003004

(214 850) (197 265)
209 025 196 422

z [/ 56)

1 767 390

2 (23)

= (3)

(107} S0
1329 1 384

(2 836) 149
34 332 34 183

19 Related party transactions

The Health and Satery Executive is an Executive Non-
Departmental Public Body with Crown status and is
sponsored by DWE

DWT is regarded as a related parey. During the year, HSE
had several rransactions with DWP rotalling £721 000
(2003/04 - £590 000) that mainly related o the provision
of pension services and premises costs. HSC and HSE did
nor have material rransactions with other entities for which
the D'WP 15 regarded as the parent Department.

In addirion, H5E had a number of material transactions
with other government departments and other central
government bodies. The significant transacrions have been
with the Central Office of Information {expenditure of

£2 188 404, 2003/04 - £288 000}, Civil Service College
(£290 000, 2003/04 - £302 000), Government News
Metwork (£593 000, 2003/04 - £541 000), Treasury
Solicitor (£587 000, 2003/04 - £339 000), Office for
Manonal Sratisncs (£355 000, 2003/04 - £242 0000,
DEFRA (£443 000, 2003/04 - £320 000) and UKAEA-
Fusion (income of £2 333 000, 2003/04 - £1 224 000)
mainly relate to premises, research, training, computer,
legal services and administrative expenditure together with
relevant income from the provision of health and safery
advice and services. None of the Executive members, the
Director General or senior managers, or any person

100

connected with these, had any interest in any material
transactions with HSE or received benefits from HSE
suppliers during the vear.

20 Commitments under PFI contracts
HSE has entered into the following PFI contract.
Off-balance sheet

IT sertices

In June 2001, HSE signed a 10-year contrace with a partner
(Logica CMG with Computacenter as the key sub-contractor)
far the provision of information and communications
technology and Information Strategy (15) service across all
HSE sires and o all HSE users.

The Agreement is based on a model agreement for PFI
contracts, Typically in PFI deals, the contracror provides
services and risk is transferred o the party best able o
manage it. The parmer has taken over ownership of HSE
IT hardware and some software assets and is responsible for
providing all future assers needed to deliver the IT service,

If Logica CMG were to meet the i‘.ld.'Tl-lll.'IH.'lllL'E standards in
the contract and the transaction levels and business
developments fall within the agreed parameters, the payments
under the contract at constant price levels would be:
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Amounts falling due within one year

Net present value of amounts falling due within two to five years

Net present value of amounts falling due within six to ten years

| Hl:p-mr andd the Health and "-Jlfl.'l:. Commissssn/Exeoutive Accounts 05

200405 200

£'000

£ 00

13 589 12 997

32 734 50 439

19 975

A discount rare of 3.5% has been used to derive the net
present cost of the non-discretionary payment streams in
VEars two to tern.

The estimared capital value of the contract is £23 million.
Cn-balance sheet

With effect from 28 Ocrober 2004, H5L took occuparion of
serviced accommaodation for laboratory and support
funcrions provided under a 32 years and 29 weeks term
‘design, build, finance and operate’ contract with 1CE 1 rel.
The balance of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
property, sitwated at Harpur Hill, Buxton, is borme by HSL
and hence the buildings and furniture provided are included
in HSL's balance sheet as fixed assets. The liability ro pay
for these assets is in substance a finance lease obligation,
Contractual payments comprise an impured finance lease
charge and a service charge.

Imputed finance lease obligations under on-balance sheet
PEI contracts

Rentals due within one year 2005/06

Rentals due within two to five vears

Rentals due thereafter - 24 vears and 7 months
Sub total

Less interest element

Toral

5 910
1% 351
153 157

206 478

{148 871)

57 al)7

The rotal amount charged 1o HSLs Income and expenditure
account in respect of the service element of on-balance sheet
PFI transactions was £1 260 174 and the value of the
payments to which H5L is committed during 2005/,
subject to ICB achieving contracted levels of service and
availability, is £3 062 199, this commitment expiring within
30 vears.

21 Contingent liabilities

Thames Trains has discontinued action against H5E and we
are in the process of reclaiming our costs, an estimate of

which has been included in other income.

HSE is currently defending two equal-pay cases. In October
2003, H5E successfully appealed at an Employment Appeal
Tribunal against an Employment Tribunal decision handed
down in July 2002. That appeal was subject to cross
appeal, and in October 2004 the Court of Appeal referred a
point of law to the European Court of Justice. Depending
upon the ourcome of thar reference the case could be
decided in HSEs favour or remitted 1o an Employment
Tribunal to be heard again. The legal process could,
therefore, continue for a considerable peried of time.
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23 Intra-government balances

2004005

Debtors
amaounts
falling due
within
One Y

£1000

Debtors
amounts
talling due
in more than
one year

£1000

Creditors
amounis

ling due
within
L4111 }'Eﬂ r

£000

Creditors
amounts
falling due
in more than
one year

£000

Balances with other central 4 779 - 221 -
government bodies

Balances with local authorities 250 - 247 -
Balances with NHS rrusts 30 - 33 -
Balances with public 479 ] )

corporations and trading funds

Balances with bodies exrernal o 16 776 4 778 11 592 57 607

EOVErMITIENT

At 31 March 2005

200304

Balances with other central 2 9350

government hodies

Balances with local authorities 119

Balances with MHS rrusts 5 1
Balances with public 12 -
corporations and trading funds

Balances with bodies external o 18 887 406 11 311

government

Ar 31 March 2004

[Debtors
AMOUns
falling duc
within

ane I

£ 000

Diebrors
AMOLNS
falling due

in more than

one year

£1000

Creditors
amounts
falling due
within

one fn.'t,!dl!’

Creditors
AMOUnTs
falling due
in more than
one year

£1000

A full analysis of total debtors and creditors berween public

sector balances has been underraken in 2004/05. A

comparative analysis for 2003/04 was limited to trade
debtors, trade creditors and VAT only. The other elements
{refer Notes 9 and 11) have been assumed to be balances

external to Government.
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Glossary of abbreviations

A
ACAS

ACDP
ACDS
ACGM

ACOP
ACTS
ADC
AFAG
AIAC
A
ASAG
ATP

B
BMFL
BOHRF

BP
BREEAM

BTF

C
CBI
CCTV
CD
CDM

CETV
CFDy
CHasPI

CHSC
ClA
CIEH
CITE
COMAH

COMIAC
CO5A5

CO5HH
C5CS

CTG
CTSA

104

Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration
Service

Advisory Committee on Dangerons
Pathopens

Advisory Commitiee on Dangerons
Substances

Advisory Commirtee on Genetic
Maodificarion

Approved Code of Pracrice

Advisory Commirtee on Toxic Substances
Association of District Councils
Arboriculture and Forestey Advisory Group
Agriculoure Industry Advisory Committee
Accounting Officer

Agriculture Safery Advisory Group
Adapranon to Technical Progress

British Muclear Fuels plc

British Occupational Health Research
Foundation

British Petroleum

Building Research Establishment's
Environmental Appraisal Method
Eritish Transport Police

Confederarion of British Industry

Closed Circuit Television

Consultation Document

Construction (Design and Management)
Regulations 1994

Cash Equivalenr Transfer Value
Compurarional Fluid Dynamics

Corporate Health and Safery Performance
Index

Corporate Health and Safety Committee
Chemical Industries Association

Chartered Institure of Environmental Health
Construction Industry Training Board
Contral of Major Accident Hazards
Regularions

Construction Industry Advisory Committes
Corporate Science and Analyrical Services
Direcrorare

Control of Substances Hazardous to Health
Regulanons

Construcrion Skills Certification Scheme
Corporate Topic Group

Channel Tunnel Safery Authoriry

] b
DDG
DEFRA

DFT
DG
DoH
DSE
DSEAR

DTl
WP

E
EA
EBRD

EC
EFF

EMAS
EMM
EMU
EPS
ERA
ERTMS
ESR

EU

F
FAAMS
FASTCO

FaTals
FAL)
Fit3

FOD
FOl
FOM
FRS

G
GB
GDP
GLA
GMOD
GP
GPs

Discussion Document

Deputy Director General
Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs

Department for Transport

Direcror General

Department of Health

Display sereen equipment

Dangerous Substances and Explosive
Armospheres Regulations
Department of Trade and Industry
Department for Work and Pensions

Environment Agency

European Bank for Reconstruction and
Dw:lnprm:nr

European Commission

The organisation for manufacturing,
engineering and technology-based business
Emplovment Medical Advisory Service
Enforcement Management Madel
European Monerary Union

Enforcement Policy Statement

European Railway Agency

European Rail Traffic Management Systems
Existing Substances Regulations

European Union

First Aid Approvals and Monitoring Section
Forestry and Arboriculture Safery Training
Council

Falls, Transport and Lifting key safety issues
Frequently Asked Cluestion

Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow
Seraregic Delivery Programme

Field Crperations Direcrorate

Freedom of Information

Faculry of Occupartional Medicine

Financial Reporting Standard

Grear Britain

Gross Domestic Product
Grearer London Authoricy
Genetically Modified Organism
General Practiioner

Global Positioning System



H
HAV
HELA

HIAG
HI
HIFEAC

HM
HMRI
HPFA

HR
HRBST
HSAO
HsC
HSE
H5L
HSW Act

I

IAC
[AEA
ICI
IFRLUP

ILGGRI

1M
I'T
150

L
LA
LACaRS

LAN
LDA
LUL

MAC
MIC
MORI
MSD

MDA
MACY
MDA
MHS
it ||
MLCSG
MOMNS
MNSD
MuSAC

OEL
Ofgem
0GC
OHA
OHAC
OHSR
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Hand Arm Vibranon

Health and Safety Excoutive/Local
Authorities Enforcement Liaison Committee
Health in Agriculture Group

Hagardous Installanions Directorare
Higher and Further Education Advisory
Commires -

Her Majesiy's

Her Majesty's Railway Inspectorate
Health Protection Agency

Human Resources

Human Resource Service Transformarion
Health and S.nfcr]r Awareness Officer
Health and Saferv Commission

Health and Safery Execurive

Health and Safery Laboratory

Health and Safety ar Work ete Act 1974

Industry Advisory Committee

International Atomic Energy Agency
Imperial Chemical Industries
Implementation of the Fundamental Review
of Land Use Mlanning Project

Intermanional Liaison Group of Government
Railway Inspectors

Institure of Occupational Medicine
Informanion Technology

International Standards Organisation

Local Authoriry

Local Authorities Coordinators of
Regularory Service

Local Area Nerwork

London Development Agency
London Underground Limited

Manual Handling Assessment Chart
Mining Industey Committee

Marker and Opinion Bescarch International
Musculoskeletal Disorder

Muclear Decommissioning Authority
Mational Audir Office

MNuclear Decommissioning Authoriry
Mational Health Service

Muclear Installarions Inspectorate

Mational Level Crossing Safety Group
Maotification of Mew Substances Regulations
Muclear Safery Directorate

MNuclear Safety Advisory Committes

Oceupational Exposure Limit

Office of Gas and Electricity Markets
Office of Government Commerce
Ogccupational Health Advisor
Ogccupational Health Advisory Committee
Occupational Health, Safety and Return to
Work

OIAC
CPM
QPsP
ORR
50

P
PABIAC

PADHI

PC5P5
PFI
PIAC
FFP
P5A

Q

QCA

R

RAG
RAIB
RAM
RDG
RDP
REACH

REFIT
REHIS

RIA
RIAC
RIDDOR

RIMINI

RIMP
ROGS

ROSPA
RPD
RRATP
RRO
RSSE
RTA
RLUBIAC

5
SACGM(CU)

SAD
SAMNET

SAPs
SAT

5C5

sDP
SEAC
SERTUC

SHAL

Offshore Industry Advisory Committee
Ourpur Performance Measures
Cperational Policy and Support Division
Office of the Ral Regularor

Offshore Safery Division

Paper and Board Industry Advisory
Committee

Manning Advice for Developments near
Hazardous Installations

Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme
Privare Finance Initiative

Printing Industry Advisory Commirres
Public Private Partmership

Public Service Agreement

Cualifications Curriculum Authoriy

Red, Amber or Green

Rail Accident Investigation Branch

Resource Accounting Manual

Resource Delivery Group

Rail Delivery Programme

European Commission’s Strategy for a Future
Chemicals Policy

Business Consultancy & 1CT Services Partner
{Rerendering for IT)

Roval Environmental Health Institure of
Scotland

Regularory Impact Assessment

Railway Industry Advisory Committee
Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Ocourrences Regulations

Risk Minimisation (Network Rail’s company
standard)

Risk Management Improvement Plan
Railways and Other Guided Transport
Systems [Safety) Regulations

Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
Resources and Planning Directorare
Regulatory Reform Action Plan

Regulatory Reform Orders

Rail Safery and Standards Board

Road Traffic Accident

Rubber Industry Advisory Committee

Scientific Advisory Commirtee on Genetic
Muodificanion (Conrained Use)

Safety Awareness Day

Safery Management and interoperability
thematic Wetwork for railway systems
Safery Assessment Principles

Slips Assessment Tool

Senior Civil Service

Srrategic Delivery Programme

Schools Education Advisory Committee
Southern and Eastern Region Trades Unions
Congress

Safery and Health Awareness Day
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